Public Document Pack

Dear Councillor
The next meeting of the HEALTH AND HOUSING will be held at 6.30 pm on
THURSDAY, 28 OCTOBER 2021 in the Council Chamber, 13 Church Street,
Clitheroe, BB7 2RA.
I do hope you can be there.
Yours sincerely

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
AGENDA

1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS (Pages 3 - 6)
MEETING

3.

DECLARATIONS
OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY,
OTHER REGISTRABLE AND NON REGISTRABLE
INTERESTS
Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any
disclosable pecuniary, other registrable or non-registrable
interest in respect of matters contained in the agenda.

4.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

ITEMS FOR DECISION
5.

MOBILE HOMES SITE MANAGER - FIT AND PROPER (Pages 7 - 34)
PERSON REQUIREMENT

6.

REVIEW OF FEES AND CHARGES 2022/23

7.

DISABLED FACILITIES GRANTS - PROPOSED POLICY (Pages 57 - 66)
AMENDMENTS

8.

ALTERNATIVE SYSTEM FOR DOG WASTE LITTER BINS (Pages 67 - 72)
- REPORT FROM THE DOG FOULING WORKING GROUP

9.

STRATEGIC HOUSING WORKING GROUP - DRAFT (Pages 73 - 74)
TERMS OF REFERENCE

(Pages 35 - 56)

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION
10.

CAPITAL MONITORING 2021/22

(Pages 75 - 92)

11.

REVENUE MONITORING 2021/22

(Pages 93 - 108)

12.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - GENERAL UPDATE

(Pages 109 - 152)

13.

MINUTES OF THE DOG FOULING WORKING GROUP - (Pages 153 - 156)
26/07/21

14.

REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE
BODIES
None.

15.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

ITEMS FOR DECISION
None.
ITEMS FOR INFORMATION
16.

DISABLED FACILITIES GRANT - UPDATE
1

(Pages 157 - 160)

Electronic agendas sent to members of Health and Housing – Councillor Mark Hindle
(Chair), Councillor Jan Alcock JP, Councillor Stephen Atkinson, Councillor Ian Brown,
Councillor Rosemary (Rosie) Elms, Councillor Steve Farmer, Councillor Jonathan Hill,
Councillor Brian Holden (Vice-Chair), Councillor Kerry Fletcher, Councillor Ged Mirfin,
Councillor Richard Newmark, Councillor Donna O'Rourke, Councillor Mary Robinson,
Councillor Richard Sherras and Councillor Robin Walsh.

Contact: Democratic Services on 01200 414408 or committee.services@ribblevalley.gov.uk

Agenda Item 2
Minutes of Health and Housing
Meeting Date:

Thursday, 2 September 2021, starting at 6.30 pm

Present:

Councillor R Newmark

Councillors:
J Alcock
S Atkinson
I Brown
R Elms
S Farmer
J Hill

G Mirfin
R Newmark
D O'Rourke
M Robinson
R Sherras
R Walsh

In attendance: Chief Executive, Head of Regeneration and Housing, Acting Head of
Environmental Health, Senior Accountant and Strategic Housing Officer
Also in attendance: Councillors S Fletcher and K Fletcher
239

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence from the meeting were received from Councillors M Hindle and
B Holden.
As Councillor Hindle the Committee Chair and Councillor Holden the Committee Vice
Chair, were absent for the meeting, the Chief Executive requested nominations and
seconders for a Committee Chair, after a vote, Councillor Newmark was appointed
Chair for this meeting.

240

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the meeting held on 10 June 2021 were approved as a correct record
and signed by the Chairman.

241

DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY AND NON PECUNIARY INTERESTS
There were no declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests.

242

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There was no public participation.

243

REQUEST FOR GRANT AWARD FOR HOMEWISE
The Director of Economic Development and Planning submitted a report requesting
members to consider a quarterly grant payment to Homewise towards provision of a
home improvement service in the borough.
Members were reminded that amongst other things:




Homewise is a Registered Charity, dedicated to improving the
homes and quality of life of older and disabled people.
They provide advice, support, and assistance to elderly, disabled
and vulnerable people.
Their aim is to help people to remain warm, safe and secure in their
home.

Page 3

The report noted that:





In 2019 Homewise entered into a Grant Agreement with the Council.
The agreement was not entered into in 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic.
A grant payment of £5,760 to Homewise is included in the Council’s
annual budget.
Homewise send an invoice to the Council at the end of each quarter
which includes details of the activities undertaken within the Borough
during the quarter.

RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Subject to completion of a grant agreement, approved payment of a grant
for up to £5,760 to Homewise to be paid quarterly following receipt of an
invoice.

244

CAPITAL MONITORING - 2021/22
The Director of Resources submitted a report updating members of this Committee’s
2021/22 capital programme for the period to the end of July 2021.
Members were reminded that for this Committee, five capital schemes with an original
estimate budget, totalling £639,640, were approved by the Special Policy and
Finance Committee and Full Council at their meetings in February 2021 and March
2021 respectively.
The report noted:






That following budget changes, the total approved budget for this
Committee’s capital programme of eight schemes was now £1,336,560.
That details of the of the above schemes were set out in Annex 1 of the
report.
That at the end of July 2021, £222,752 had been spent or committed.
That the £222,752 equated to 16.7% of the total approved capital
programme for this Committee.
That no schemes were completed by the end of July 2021.

In addition to the above, the report set out the progress and remaining budgets on
each of the schemes.
245

REVENUE OUT TURN - 2020/21
The Director of Resources submitted a report informing members of the 2020/21
revenue outturn for this Committee.
Members were informed that:
 The national deadlines for local authorities to produce their Statement of
Accounts and have them audited had been changed with effect from the
2020/21 financial year statements.
 Due to the accounting complexities brought about by COVID-19, the resource
pressures in respect of COVID-19 business support grant payments and
burdensome financial reporting in respect of COVID-19 to Central
Government, it had not been possible to meet these deadlines. This had also
been the case at many other local authorities.

Page 4

The report noted that after allowing for transfers to and from earmarked reserves,
there had been an overall underspend of £344,759 for this Committee and that this
had been added to General Fund Balances.
246

REVENUE MONITORING - 2021/22
The Director of Resources submitted a report relating to the progress of the 2021/22
revenue budget for this Committee, as at the July 2021.
The report noted that the comparison between actual expenditure and the original
estimated budget to the end of July 2021, showed an underspend of £66,066 after
allowing for transfers to and from earmarked reserves.

247

CHANGES TO STRATEGIC HEALTH STRUCTURES - UPDATE
The Director of Economic Development and Planning submitted a report updating members on
changes to the strategic health structures affecting the borough.
Members were reminded that for some time the health and care organisations in
Lancashire and South Cumbria had worked together as the Healthier Lancashire and
South Cumbria Integrated Care System (ICS).
The report noted that:
 In February 2021 the Government published its white paper outlining how the
NHS in England needed to change to enable health and care to work more
closely together.
 From the white paper the subsequent Health and Care Bill had been published
which sought to drive strategic change both in terms of how health services
are delivered and commissioned and how different organisations, including
local authorities, can work together to help promote health care, public health,
and social care.
 It is understood that the Health and Care Bill was likely to be enacted in the
next few months.
Members were agreed that changes to the health structures is an important event and
needed to be carefully monitored.

248

COVID-19 - UPDATE
The Chief Executive submitted a report providing members with an update on the
status of the COVID-19 pandemic in the Ribble Valley and the work undertaken by
the Council in addressing the issues created by the pandemic.
A verbal report, which provided members with the very latest statistics on the
pandemic was also presented.
Members were reminded that a similar report had been submitted to this Committee
on the 10 June 2021.
Both the written report and the verbal update provided a range of statistics relating to
the Ribble Valley including:
 Number of COVID-19 cases
 Number of tests by testing venue
 Contact tracing
 Enforcement action
 Levels of vaccination

Page 5

Appendix 1 to the report provided a detailed analysis of COVID-19: cases, tests, and
vaccinations.
249

DOG FOULING WORKING GROUP - MINUTES 16 APRIL 2021
Minutes of the Dog Fouling Working Group were noted.

250

REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES
There were no reports from representatives on outside bodies.

251

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
That by virtue of the next item of business being exempt information under Category
1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act the press and public be now
excluded from the meeting.

252

HOMELESSNESS - UPDATE
The Director of Economic Development and Planning submitted a report that provided
a general overview of the demands on the homeless service and the changing nature
of priority cases.
The report noted that since the COVID-19 restrictions had been lifted and housing
allocations and general movement in the housing market had returned, there had
been a significant change in the demands on the housing service. This included an
increase in the number of homeless presentations from Ex-Offenders and people with
high support needs.
At this point in the meeting the Chief Executive provided a verbal update on the
Afghan Citizens’ Resettlement Scheme and what it would mean for the Council.

253

GRANT APPROVALS - UPDATE
The Director of Economic Development and Planning submitted a report informing
members of the recent approvals for Disabled Facilities Grants and Landlord Tenant
Grants.
The report noted that since the last committee report, no new Landlord Tenant Grants
had been approved.

254

AFFORDABLE HOUSING - UPDATE
The Director of Economic Development and Planning submitted a report informing
members of the number of affordable housing completions over the past 12 months.
The report noted that delivery of affordable housing is a key priority for the Council
and that it was important that delivery was monitored and reported on.

The meeting closed at 7.25 pm
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, Mike
Hill mike.hill@ribblevalley.gov.uk.

Page 6

Agenda Item 5
RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO HEALTH & HOUSING COMMITTEE

DECISION

THURSDAY, 28 OCTOBER 2021
THE MOBILE HOMES (REQUIREMENT FOR MANAGER OF SITE TO BE FIT
AND PROPER PERSON) (ENGLAND) REGULATIONS 2020
submitted by:
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
principal author: MATTHEW RIDING – PT HEAD OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES
meeting date:
title:

1

PURPOSE

1.1

To inform Committee of the implications of the Mobile Homes (Requirement for
Manager of Site to be Fit and Proper Person) (England) Regulations 2020. Approval
is sought to adopt a Fit and Proper Person Fees Policy and Determination Policy, to
support the introduction of the Fit and Proper Person test (F&PP) in relation to caravan
site licensing (residential sites).

1.2

Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities:


Community Objectives – This document will contribute to two of the three stated
ambitions, namely:
-

“to help make people’s lives safer and healthier”; and

-

“to protect and enhance the existing environmental quality of our area”.



Corporate Priorities – To “promote a healthier environment and lifestyle” and
“ensure a well-managed Council providing efficient services based on identified
customer needs”.



Other Considerations – None.

2

BACKGROUND

2.1

Following a Government review of the Mobile Homes Act 2013, the Government
introduced a new regime under the Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act
1960 called the Fit and Proper Person test.

2.2

The new regime was introduced by regulations, the Mobile Homes (Requirement for
Manager of Site to be Fit and Proper Person) (England) Regulations 2020, on
23 September 2020. The regulations apply to all protected residential sites which are
operated on a commercial basis.

2.3

The fit and proper person requirement will ensure that site owners, or their managers,
of protected residential sites have integrity and follow best practice. Additionally, it
provides the safeguard that such individuals will not pose a risk to the welfare or safety
of persons occupying mobile homes on the site. Once approval is granted, the
applicant’s details must be kept on a register of fit and proper persons maintained by
the local authority.

2.4

Where a site owner or their manager fails the fit and proper person test, and they are
unable to identify and appoint a suitable alternative manager who must pass the fit and
proper person assessment, the local authority can instead appoint a person to manage
the site (but only with the consent of the site owner).

Page 7

3

ISSUES

3.1

Ribble Valley currently has 27 licensed caravan sites and the majority of these have
been granted for holiday purposes and/or have stipulated closure periods. Therefore,
only two sites in the Ribble Valley meet the criteria of ‘relevant protected sites’, being
‘Shireburne’, Waddington Road, Clitheroe and ‘Three Rivers’, Eaves Hall Lane,
West Bradford.

3.2

When conducting the fit and proper person assessment, a local authority must consider
the following points relevant to the application:

3.3

-

Is the individual able to conduct effective management of the site?

-

Personal information relating to the applicant concerned (including a criminal
record check).

On receipt of an application the local authority may:
-

grant the application unconditionally;
grant the application subject to conditions;
reject the application.

3.4

The local authority must, as soon as reasonably practicable after the end of the period
allowed for making representations, make a final decision and serve the decision
notice on the applicant. The applicant can decide to appeal the decision by making an
application to the First-tier Tribunal.

3.5

A Determination Policy has been drafted for consideration and adoption in order to
support the assessment of F&PP test applications (attached as Appendix A to this
report).

3.6

A Fees Policy has been drafted for consideration and adoption to support the recovery
of costs associated with performing this new function (attached as Appendix B to this
report).

4

RISK ASSESSMENT

4.1

The approval of this report may have the following implications:


Resources – Approval of new fees will generate income to help cover the costs of
work on the Fit and Proper Test.



Technical, Environmental and Legal – There are no environmental or legal
implications, other than the Council is required to maintain a register of fit and
proper persons for ‘relevant protected sites’.



Political – None.



Reputation – None



Equality & Diversity – There are considered to be no significant implications.

5

RECOMMENDED THAT COMMITTEE

5.1

Considers and approves the adoption of the proposed Determination Policy set out in
Appendix A.

Page 8

5.2

Considers and approves the adoption of the proposed Fees Policy set out in Appendix
B, including approval of the following fees:
-

Mobile Homes Fit and Proper Test Application Fee; £261.00.

-

Mobile Homes - Site Manager Appointment Costs (costs recovered in full from
site owner).

MATTHEW RIDING
PART TIME HEAD OF
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

MARSHAL SCOTT
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

For further information please ask for Matthew Riding, extension 4470.

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX A

FIT AND PROPER PERSON
DETERMINATION POLICY
(MOBILE HOME SITES)

Page 11

Introduction
The Mobile Homes (Requirement for Manager of Site to be Fit and Proper Person)
(England) Regulations 2020, require the manager of a site to be a Fit and Proper Person
(“the Regulations”). Local authorities are accordingly required to introduce a fitand proper
person test for mobile home site owners, or the person appointed to manage the site,
unless they are eligible for an exemption under the Regulations1.
The Regulations, made on 23 September 2020, allow local authorities to receive
applications from site owners, or the person appointed to manage the site, from 1 July2021
up to and including 30 September 2021.
A local authority must be satisfied that the site owner “is a fit and proper person to manage
the site” or, if the owner does not manage the site, “that a person appointed”to do so by the
site owner “is a fit and proper person to do so” or has, with the site owner’s consent,
“appointed a person to manage the site.”
Where a site owner or their manager fails the fit and proper person test, and they are unable
to identify and appoint a suitable alternative manager, who must pass the fit and proper
person assessment, the local authority can instead appoint a person to manage the site,
but only with the consent of the site owner.
Principally, the fit and proper person test applies to a “relevant protected site”. A relevant
protected site is a site, which requires a licence and which is not solely for holiday purposes
or is otherwise not capable of being used all year round. In other words, a relevant
protected site is a site where residents can live in their homes for the full year. The fit and
proper person requirement will ensure that site owners, or their managers, have integrity
and follow best practice. Additionally, it provides the safeguard that such individuals will not
pose a risk to the welfare or safety of persons occupying mobile homes on the site i.e. park
home owners.
The Evidence
When conducting the fit and proper person assessment, Ribble Valley Borough Council
(the local authority) must consider the following points relevant to the application:
1. Is the individual able to conduct effective management of the site. This includes,
but is not limited to, securing compliance with the site licence and the long-term
maintenance of the site. It follows that, the local authority must have regard to:
(i) whether the person has a sufficient level of competence to manage the site;
(ii) the management structure and funding arrangements for the site; or
(iii) the proposed management structure and funding arrangements
1

*i.e. it is a non-commercial, family occupied site under Regulation 3

Page 12

(a) Competence to manage the site
This includes reviewing the competency of the appointed individual. The individual
must have sufficient experience in site management, or have received sufficient
training, and be fully aware of the relevant law as well as health and safety
requirements.
The management structure and funding arrangements for the site
Ribble Valley Borough Council will consider whether relevant management
structures are in place and whether they are adequate to ensure effective
management of the site. Officers will need to ensure that the applicant has a robust
management plan, this should also be reviewed to ensure it addresses the following
issues: the pitch fee payment, proximity of the manager to the site,manager’s contact
details for residents (including out of office and emergency contact details), the
complaints procedure, maintenance, staffing, and refuse removal. The authority
reserves the right to include other relevant matters as deemed appropriate for
individual applications, this list is therefore not exhaustive.

It is advisable that the site is managed by an applicant based in the UK and a
management structure would be unlikely to be suitable if the applicant is an
individual, or a company (including its directors), which does not reside or have a
permanent UK address. This is because there may be complex issues as a result of
this, such as needing the court’s permission to serve a claim in a foreign country.
The applicant’s interest in the land will also have an important impact, as would their
financial standing, management structures and competence, all of which could
contribute to the overall assessment of their suitability to manage the site effectively.
(c) The proposed management structure and funding arrangements in placefor
managing the site
Ribble Valley Borough Council must consider whether the applicant has sufficient
funds (or has access to sufficient funds) to manage the site and comply with licence
obligations. Evidence of these funds should be readily available.
Third party (including an associated company) funding should be disclosed, asthis
will impact on the authority’s ability to deem whether the application is financially
viable.
2. Personal information relating to the applicant concerned. This includes a
criminal record check and should include evidence that the applicant:
(a) has not committed any offence involving fraud or other dishonesty, violence,
firearms or drugs or any offence listed in Schedule 3 to the SexualOffences Act 2003
(offences attracting notification requirements);

Page 13

(b) has not contravened any provision of the law relating to housing, caravan sites,
mobile homes, public health, planning or environmental health or of landlord and
tenant law;
(c) has not contravened any provision of the Equality Act 2010 in, or in connection with,
the carrying on of any business;
(d) has not harassed any person in, or in connection with, the carrying on of any
business;
(e) is not or has not been within the past 10 years, personally insolvent;
(f) is not or has not been within the past 10 years, disqualified from acting as a
company director;
(g) has the right to work in the United Kingdom and,
(h) is a member of any redress scheme enabling complaints to be dealt with in
connection with the management of the site (when this is in place).
Ribble Valley Borough Council has a duty to investigate any conduct which could
amount to harassment and any evidence obtained will be reviewed to determine
whether it is sufficient to be used to prosecute a site owner. Officers may also rely
on convictions by the courts as evidence of harassing behaviour which would reduce
the risk of the local authority being successfully challenged on any refusal to approve
an applicant on this basis.
Ribble Valley Borough Council may have records of previous harassment
complaints made against a site owner or their manager. Even if no action was taken
on these complaints, these can still be taken into consideration in the fit and proper
person determination. These complaints may identify further potential risks and can
also provide an indication of potential underlying problems with the management of
the site or the site owner’s lack of experience/skills in dealing with customers.
Officers can address any underlying issues by attaching conditions to the
individual’s entry on theregister.
3. Upon rejection of a person’s application by Ribble Valley Borough Council this will be
centrally recorded and include the details of the person involved and the reasons for
the rejection.
Items to take into consideration
4. “The applicant” is defined at paragraph 2 of the Regulations as “the person who makes
an application under regulation 6”.
5. The “relevant person” is also defined at paragraph 2 of the Regulations to mean “the
subject of the fit and proper person assessment under Regulation 7”.
6. The conduct of any person associated or formerly associated with the relevant person
(whether on a personal, work or other basis) is also an important factor to be considered
in the fit and proper person assessment.
7. Site owners may be required to provide details of any current or former associatesof the
relevant person in the application form. Those associates will not include

Page 14

other current joint owners as that information would have already needed to have
been provided in their own application forms.
8. It is not routinely required to provide information of all current or past associates ofthe
site owner. However, it is advisable that, prior to making any final decisions, officers
consider the conduct of past and current associates relevant to that individual’s
application. The site owner can be asked to provide additional information during the
application process.
9. Officers will be required to establish whether an individual is considered to be an
associate of the relevant person and then whether their conduct is relevant to the
application. A relevant associate could be defined as any individual who may have
played a part, directly or indirectly, in a decision or action, which has had an impacton
residents’ rights, or the quiet enjoyment of their homes.
10. The Regulations are drafted widely giving the opportunity for local authorities to take
into consideration other relevant matters. However, officers should be cognisant that
poor management practices do not affect a person’s conduct, unless they are also a
breach of the criminal or civil law. A person cannot be deemed unfit due to conduct,
simply because of poor management, although that factor is highly relevant to
determining any question of suitability or competence. However, all conduct is relevant
in relation to the person’s fitness to hold a licence and/or manage the particular mobile
home site.
11. Officers are able to decide the specific matters they deem relevant to the fit and proper
person application. These matters could be in relation to current or previousissues, or
events, that have occurred in relation to the park site or any other park site owned or
managed by the site owner or site manager in another local authorityarea. Additionally,
the site owner’s conduct regarding other business, outside of the park homes sector,
can also have implications on the financial and management arrangements of the site
in question. Any matters which are believedto be of relevance to the application should
primarily focus on the relevant person’s conduct, competence and their suitability to
manage the site.
12. It is advisable that evidence is obtained by officers to support any additional matters
that they require to be taken into consideration for the application. This is to mitigate
any risks should they face being challenged at a tribunal because of their final decision.
The evidence could include previous tribunal and court decisions, documents or records
from Companies House, or other public bodies orfinancial institutions. Allegations which
have not been investigated or documentedmay be difficult to use as evidence to support
the authority’s decision.
Applications
The Regulations use various terms in the application process and these are outlined
below:
As mentioned earlier “Relevant person” is defined in paragraph 2 of the
Regulations and is “the subject of the fit and proper person assessment under

Page 15

Regulation 7”. Please note that this could be the site owner or person appointed to manage
the site by the site owner.
“Relevant officer” is defined in paragraph 1 of Schedule 2 of the Regulations, wherethe
applicant is a company, a relevant officer will be a director or other officer of the company;
or, where the applicant is a partnership, a partner; or, where the applicant is a body
corporate, a member of the management committee of that body.
“Required Information” is defined in paragraph 14 of Schedule 2 of the Regulations as:
the person’s name and business contact details; details of the person’s role or proposed
role in relation to the management of the site; where the person has not yetbeen appointed,
the address, telephone number and email address (if any) at which the person may be
contacted in respect of the application; details of each relevant protected site (other than
that to which the registration application relates) — for which the person holds a licence
issued under section 3 of the Caravan Sites and Control ofDevelopment Act 1960, or in
which the person has a legal estate or equitable interest,or which the person manages.
The application for inclusion in the fit and proper register, must therefore include the
following:
The applicant and site details required
13. Details of the site and the applicant:
(1) The applicant’s name and business contact details.
(2) Where the applicant is not an individual, the following information inrelation to
the individual completing the application on behalf of the applicant and each relevant
officer:
(i) the person’s name;
(ii) details of the person’s role (if any) in relation to themanagement of the site.
(3) The name and address of the site.
(4) Evidence of the applicant’s legal estate or equitable interest in the site.
(5) Confirmation that the applicant is the occupier within the meaning ofsection 1 of
the Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960.
(6) The name and business contact details of any other person that has a legalestate
or equitable interest in the site.
14. The name and address of each other relevant protected sites:
(1) for which the applicant holds a licence issued under section 3 of theCaravan Sites
and Control of Development Act 1960;
(2) in which the applicant has a legal estate or equitable interest; or
(3) that the applicant manages.
15. The applicant must clearly specify whether their application is made in respect of either
the applicant, or site owner, or the person that the applicant or site owner has appointed
to manage the site.

Page 16

Information relating to the site manager
16. In circumstances where a “site manager” has been appointed to manage a site more
information is needed. The person who is applying for the site manager to beregistered
as a fit and proper person (the relevant person) must provide the following information:
the site manager’s name and details of that person’s role (if any) in relation to the
management of the site.
If the site manager has appointed or intends to appoint a further individual (“A”),
‘Required Information’ would also be needed from A. And where A is not a relevant
officer of the site manager, the relevant officer to whom A is accountable for the dayto-day management of the site, should be the one to provide the Required
Information.
Additional information when the applicant is the relevant person and an individual
17. When the applicant is the relevant person, and is an individual, and the applicant has
appointed, or intends to appoint, someone else (“B”) to be responsible for the day-today management of the site, ‘Required Information’ would be needed from
B. If B is not an individual but is, instead, for example, a company, and B has appointed
an individual (“C”) to do the-day-to day management, ‘Required Information’ would be
needed from C. Where C is not a Relevant officer of a company, the relevant officer to
whom C is accountable for the day-to-day management of the site would also need to
provide the Required information.
Additional information where applicant is relevant person and not an individual
18. When the applicant is the relevant person but is not an individual and the applicanthas
appointed or intends to appoint someone else (“B”) to be responsible for the day-to-day
management of the site, Required information would be needed from this person. If B
is not a Relevant officer of the applicant the person to whom B is accountable for the
day-to-day management of the site (“C”) would also need to provide the Required
Information. Where B itself is not an individual, the individual(“D”) that B has appointed
or intends to appoint to be responsible for the day-to- day management of the site would
also need to provide the Required Information.Where D is not a Relevant officer of B,
the relevant Officer to whom D isaccountable for the day-to-day management of the site
would also need to providethe Required Information.
19. It can be seen from the above that the Regulations prohibit the operation of a relevant
protected site unless the site owner or its site manager (whatever the management
structure might be) has been assessed by the local authority as a fit and proper person
to do so. This has been included to ensure that consistent standards are applied to
companies and other organisations that are not individuals.
Criminal record certificate/s
20. Criminal Records Certificates must be issued under section 113A (1) of the Police Act
1997 and will be required where: (a) the Relevant person is an individual and

Page 17

(b) for each individual in relation to whom the applicant is required to provide information
for example, a site manager or individuals A, B, C or D as outlined above.
21. The application will need to be accompanied by a basic DBS certificate.
22. The certificate must have been issued no more than six months before the date ofthe
application. It is incumbent upon the site owner to ensure that any certificates provided
meet this requirement.
Declaration
A declaration made and signed by the “appropriate person”, which means:
(a) where the applicant is a company, a director or other officer of the company;
(b) where the applicant is a partnership, one of the partners;
(c) where the applicant is a body corporate and the conduct of the management ofthe
body is vested in its members, a member;
(d) where the applicant is not a body falling within (a) to (c) above, a member ofthe
management committee;
(e) where the applicant is an individual, that individual.
23. Where the applicant is not the relevant person, the declaration must confirm that the
applicant has made all reasonable enquires into the matters mentioned in paragraph 9
of the Regulations and considerations relevant to the fit and proper person assessment
as set out below.
24. The declaration should also state that the information provided in the application is
correct and complete to the best of the applicant’s knowledge and belief.
Considerations relevant to fit and proper person assessment
25. Proper management of the site includes, but is not limited to, securing compliancewith
the site licence and the long term maintenance of the site.
26. To be able to secure the proper management of the site, officers must (amongst other
things) have regard to whether the relevant person has a sufficient level of competence
to manage the site and the management structure or proposed management structure
and funding arrangements.
Decisions, notification and rights of appeal
27. The local authority must make a decision on the application in a timely and
practicable manner and either:
(a) where the decision is to grant the application unconditionally and include the
relevant person on the register for 5 years, serve a final decision notice on the
applicant; or
(b) otherwise, serve a preliminary decision notice on the applicant.

Page 18

28. On receipt of an application the local authority may:
(a) grant the application unconditionally;
(b) grant the application subject to conditions; or
(c) reject the application.

Granting the application unconditionally
29. Where officers are satisfied that the applicant meets the fit and proper person test
unconditionally, they must include the applicant on the register for 5 years. The authority
must issue a final decision notice to the applicant to inform them of its decision.
30. The final decision notice must clearly state:
(a) the date the final decision notice is served;
(b) the final decision;
(c) the reasons for the decision;
(d) when the decision is to take effect;
(e) information about:
(i) the right of appeal to the First Tier Tribunal; and
(ii) the period within which an appeal may be made.
To include the applicant on the register subject to certain condition(s)
31. In some circumstances, the local authority can specify that the individual for the fit and
proper person test will only be successful if certain conditions are met. If theseconditions
are satisfied, the local authority can grant an application subject to thosecondition(s). The
local authority can also grant an application for less than 5 years.
32. It may be the case that officers decide to include the person on a register subject to
condition(s), if it would only be satisfied that the person would meet the fit and proper
requirement if the condition(s) were complied with. An applicant will be ableto appeal
against the decision to attach (or vary) any condition to an entry on the register. It is
therefore imperative that officers have clear and justifiable reasons for attaching any
condition(s) and that any conditions imposed can be enforced by the Ribble Valley
Borough Council.
33. Conditions will need to be clearly stated for the applicant’s understanding and this will
also allow for the local authority to ensure that they are enforceable.
An example of the requirements are included in the Table 1 below.

Page 19

Table 1
Specific

The specific condition/s a site owner is being requested toaddress.

Measurable
Achievable

The conditions required and the outcome(s) expected.
The applicant should be reasonably expected to be able toachieve the
condition. For example, it may not be reasonable to expect a site owner
of one small site to have the same resources to introduce the same
procedures as a medium sized company.
The applicant should have a clear understanding of how the required
outcome can be reached and that there are no circumstances or factors
which would make the achievement of the outcome impossible or
unlikely.
A clear timescale in which the task/action must be completed.

Realistic

Timebound

What can a condition relate to?
34. The fit and proper person test is aimed at ensuring that the person managing the site is
competent and the conditions should relate directly to the person’s ability to secure the
proper management of the site.
35. Where a person has contravened legislation, or committed offences set out in
paragraph 2 above, it is not recommended that conditions are set in relation to those
matters. This is because such a condition would be unlikely to meet the tests set out
above in paragraph 33. For example, if a person has committed fraud or violence, that
specific incident cannot be reversed by requiring the person to perform a specific task.
36. In cases where the person has committed those listed offences or contravened
legislation, these breaches should be considered, together with all the other information
available, when reaching the preliminary decision.
37. A condition can also be set with respect to ensuring the relevant person has the ability
to secure the proper management of the site. In summary, conditions can relate to any
factors which are relevant to the person’s competence to manage the site, the
management structure, or funding arrangements for the site, an associated person’s
influence, and any other relevant factors.
38. Example 1 - The local authority has evidence of a site owner’s failure over a certainperiod
of time to address residents’ complaints. This is an example of poor management which
could be resolved by the site owner implementing an adequatecomplaints procedure. A
condition could be attached requiring the site owner to “implement an effective and
accessible three stage complaints process for residents by xx date and provide the LA
with quarterly reports of complaints and outcomes, from that date and for the first year”.
If the condition is met within the specified time frame, the local authority can record
this in the register. If, at a future date, it is found that the site owner failedto implement
a complaints procedure, a further opportunity to comply may be given and this
could include a new condition of the site owner providing

Page 20

quarterly reports of complaints and outcomes for each year. The site owner could
also be expected to complete a relevant “CPD customer service/Dealing with
complaints” course by a certain period. However, should the local authorityconsider
the actions as unlikely to achieve the desired outcome, the site owner could be
removed from the register.
39. Example 2 – If, when considering an application, certain documents or informationare
unavailable to the applicant, because of delays from third parties, the local authority
may wish to attach a condition to the entry on the register that the site owner “is to
provide the authority by registered post, with the original xx documentby xx date”.
40. Example 3 - An associated person has been visiting the park and, through their action
‘X’, has caused distress to the residents impacting their well-being and security. A
condition could be attached to the register requiring the site owner to put measure(s) in
place by xxx date preventing the associated person, or any otherperson, from carrying
out action X on the site.
Decisions not to include the applicant on the register
41. Should Ribble Valley Borough Council determine that the applicant does not meet the
requirements, and attaching conditions would not be appropriate, the authority canrefuse
to grant the application.
42. Where the authority makes a decision to include the applicant on the register, subject
to conditions, or not to include the applicant on the register, a preliminary decision notice
to the applicant must be issued.
43. The preliminary decision notice must clearly state:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

the date the preliminary decision notice is served;
the preliminary decision;
the reasons for it;
the date it is proposed that the final decision will have effect;
information about the right to make written representations
where the preliminary decision is to refuse the application, the consequences of
causing or permitting the land to be used as a relevant protected site in
contravention of the regulations; and
(g) where the preliminary decision is to grant the application subject to conditions,
the consequences of failing to comply with any conditions.
Right to make a representation
44. An applicant who receives a preliminary decision notice will have 28 days in whichto
make representations to the local authority. The 28-day period begins with the day after
the day on which the notice was served.
45. The local authority is obliged to consider and take any representations it receives into
account before making a final decision.

Page 21

Final decision notice
46. The local authority must, as soon as reasonably practicable, after the end of the period
allowed for making representations, make a final decision and serve the decision notice
on the applicant.
47. The final decision notice must set out:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

the date the final decision notice is served;
the final decision;
the reasons for it;
when the decision is to take effect;
information about the right of appeal and the period within which an appealmay be
made;
(f) where the decision is to refuse the application, the consequences of causing or
permitting the land to be used as a relevant protected site in contravention of the
regulations; and
(g) where the decision is to grant the application subject to conditions, the
consequences of failing to comply with any condition.
Appeals
48. The applicant can decide to appeal the decision by making an application to the Firsttier Tribunal (Property Chamber) (“the tribunal”) within specific timeframes set by the
tribunal. The applicant is permitted to appeal against any decisions served by the
Authority. These could include:
(a) including the relevant person on the register for an effective period of less than
5 years;
(b) including the relevant person on the register subject to conditions; and
(c) rejecting the application.
49. Where an applicant accepts the authority’s decision not to include the person originally
stated in the application on the register, they will be required to seek alternative
management arrangements to comply with the fit and proper person requirement. If they
fail to do so they will be committing an offence.
50. An appellant will not be able to claim compensation for losses incurred pending the
outcome of an appeal.
Withdrawal or amendment of notice
51. There may be circumstances where the authority may decide not to continue or to
withdraw a previously agreed action such as after serving:
(a)
(b)
(c)

a preliminary decision notice but before service of the final decision notice;
a final decision notice but before the decision to which it relates takes effect; or
a notice of proposed action but before the proposed action is taken.

Page 22

52. To withdraw or amend a notice, the authority will serve notice to the person on
whom the original notice was served.
53. There are no requirements for notices to contain specific information, however, itis
recommended that a withdrawal or amendment notice should state:
(a) That it is withdrawing/amending the original notice (a copy of the originalnotice

should be attached for reference);
(b) the reasons for withdrawing the notice;
(c) the date it takes effect; and,
(d) the implications of the decisions in relation to the person’s entry on theregister.
Removal from the register
54. If, after a person is included in the register, and new evidence relevant to the
person’s inclusion becomes available, the authority may decide to:
(a) remove the person from the register;
(b) impose a condition on the inclusion of the person in the register (whether or not
there are conditions already imposed;
(c) vary a condition; or
(d) remove a condition.
55. Officers must use their judgement when determining whether to review an entry and
consider any subsequent actions are required. Any such decision should be related to
the person being a fit and proper person rather than, for example, site licensing issues
which are governed separately. If the local authority decides to take any of the actions
listed in paragraph 51 (a) to (c) above, the local authority must serve a notice of any
proposed action on the occupier.
56. The notice of proposed action must clearly state:
(a) the date the notice of proposed action is served;
(b) the action the local authority proposes to take;
(c) the reasons for it;
(d) the date it is proposed that the local authority will take the action;
(e) information about the right to make written representations;
(f) where the proposed action requires the removal of a person from the register, the
consequences of causing or permitting the land to be used as a relevant protected
site in contravention of the regulations; and
(g) where the proposed action is to impose a condition on the inclusion of a person in
the register or to vary a condition, the consequences of failing to comply with said
conditions.
57. A notice of proposed action is not required if the local authority decides to remove a
condition attached to an entry. A removal of a condition is viewed widely as being a
positive step, which is unlikely to be opposed. It is for that reason that a notice of
proposed action is not required. As good practice, the authority will make the site owner
or their manager aware of the decision in writing and also ensure the registeris updated.

Page 23

Notice of action taken
58. Where a notice of proposed action is given, the occupier will have 28 days, startingfrom
the day after the notice is served, in which to make representations.
59. The local authority must, as soon as reasonably practicable after the end of the 28-day
period, decide whether to carry out the proposed action.
60. Where the local authority decides to take the action, the local authority must servea
further notice on the occupier, indicating the action that has been taken, within the
period of 5 working days beginning with the day after the day on which the action was
taken.
61. The notice of action must set out—
(a) the date the notice of action is served;
(b) the fact that they have taken the action;
(c) the reasons for doing so;
(d) the date the action was taken;
(e) information about the right of appeal and the period within which an appealmay
be made;
(f) where the action is to remove a person from the register, the consequences of
causing or permitting the land to be used as a relevant protected site in contravention
of regulations; and
(g) where the action is to impose a condition on the inclusion of a person in the register
or to vary a condition, the consequences of failing to comply with any condition.
Offences
62. There are 3 offences which can occur within the Regulations. They are as follows:


Operating a site in contravention of the fit and proper person regulations - The site
owner has certain defences under the Regulations in any proceedings brought against
them.



Withholding information or including false or misleading information in the registration
application - The site owner will not have any defences under the Regulations in any
proceedings brought against them for this offence.

 Failing to comply with a specified condition - The site owner will have certaindefences
under the Regulations in any proceedings brought against them.
63. Ribble Valley Borough Council is responsible for enforcing the regulations. A site owner
found guilty of any of the above offences will be liable on summary conviction to a level 5
(unlimited) fine.
Defences
64. One defence is available to a site owner who has inherited a site and would be found to
have a reasonable excuse for failing to make an application within the relevant periods as

Page 24

set out below.
Relevant periods in specific circumstances
65. The below table outlines limited circumstances where a site owner may have adefence.
Row

Circumstance

1

the occupier held a site licence immediately before
the day on which regulation 4 (operating a site
without being a fit and proper person) came into
force on 1 October 2021.
the period of a person’s inclusion in the register in
relation to the site has come to an end other than asa
result of action by the local authority under regulation
8(1)(a)( removal from the fit and proper register after
new relevant evidence becomes
available).
at the time that the occupier became entitled to within
the period of 3 months possession of the landit was
in use as a relevant protected site; and within the
period of 28 days beginning with the day after the
day on which the person became the occupier ofthe
land the occupier notifies the relevant local authority
of its intention to make an application
under regulation 6 (application for inclusion in the
register)
at the time that the occupier became entitled to
possession of the land it was in use as a relevant
protected site; and the occupier does not give the
notification referred to in row 3 above
a person appointed to manage the site no longer
does so; and within the period of 28 days beginning
with the day after the relevant day the occupier
notifies the relevant
local authority that the person no longer does so
a person appointed to manage the site no longer
does so; and the occupier does not give the
notification referred to in row 5 above
the breach of regulation 4(1) (operating a site without
being a fit and proper person) arises because the
local authority has removed a personfrom the
register; and within the period of 28 daysbeginning
with the relevant day in relation to the
local authority’s decision the occupier notifies the
relevant local authority of its intention to make a new

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Relevant period for making an
application in the circumstance
From 1st July 2021 before 1
October 2021, the day on which
regulation 4 came into force
not less than two months before
the end of the period of the
person’s inclusion in the register

beginning with the day after the
day on which the person became
the occupier of the land

within the period of 28 days
beginning with the day after the
day on which the person became
the occupier of the land
within the period of 3 months
beginning with the day after the
relevant day

within the period of 28 days
beginning with the day after the
relevant day
within the period of 3 months
beginning with the relevant day

application under regulation 6 (application for
inclusion in the register) in relation to the site
the breach of regulation 4(1) arises because thelocal within the period of 28 days
authority has removed a person from the register;
beginning with the relevant day
and the occupier does not give the
notification referred to in row 7 above

Page 25

9

10

the breach of regulation 4(1) (operating a site without
being a fit and proper person) arises because the
local authority has rejected an in-time application;
and within the period of 28 days beginning with the
relevant day in relation to the rejected application the
occupier notifies the relevant local authority of its
intention to make a new
application under regulation 6
the breach of regulation 4(1) (operating a site without
being a fit and proper person) arises because the
local authority has rejected an in-time
application; and the occupier does not give the
notification referred to in row 9 above

within the period of 3 months
beginning with the relevant day

within the period of 28 days
beginning with the relevant day

The Fit and Proper Persons Register
66. Ribble Valley Borough Council must set up and maintain a register of persons who theyare
satisfied are fit and proper persons to manage a site in their area. This register must be
open to inspection by the public during normal office hours. This register will also be
published online.
67. The register will provide a record of the outcome of the fit and proper person tests that the
authority has carried out for sites. The register will include the following:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

the name and business contact details of the person;
the name and address of the relevant protected site to which the applicationrelates;
the status of the person (site owner or manager of the site);
the dates of the first and last day of the period for which the person’s inclusion in the
register has effect;
(e) whether any condition is attached to the person’s inclusion in the register;and
(f) where any condition is attached to the person’s inclusion in the register—
(i) the number of any such conditions;
(ii) the dates of the first and last day of the period for which any such condition applies
(if applicable); and
(iii) the date any condition is varied or satisfied (if applicable).
68. Where a person has met the fit and proper person test, the register will give detailsof that
person and of the site, including decisions made on how long a person’s inclusion is for, up
to a maximum of 5 years.
69. In order to comply with the fit and proper person requirement a site owner must atleast two
months before the period (e.g. 5 years) comes to an end submit a new application for the
person (or alternative) to be included in the register.

Page 26

70. Where there are rejected applications, the following information will be included in the
register:
(a) the name and address of the site to which the application relates;
(b) that an application in respect of the site has been rejected; and
(c) the date on which the application was rejected.
Details of the rejected application will remain on the register until a successful fitand
proper person application is made in respect of the owner or manager of the site.
The name of the rejected applicant will not be included on the register.
71. Where the local authority has, with the site owner’s consent, appointed a person to
manage the site, the local authority must include the following information:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

the name and business contact details of the person;
the name and address of the site which the person has been appointed to manage;
the status of the person;
the dates of the first and last day of the period for which the person’s inclusion in the
register has effect;
(e) whether any condition is attached to the person’s inclusion in the register;and
(f) where any condition is attached to the person’s inclusion in the register—
(i) the number of any such conditions;
(ii) the dates of the first and last day of the period for which any such condition
applies (if applicable); and
(iii) the date any condition is varied or satisfied (if applicable).

Page 27

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX B

FIT AND PROPER PERSON FEE
POLICY (MOBILE HOMES)
2021/2022

Page 29

FIT AND PROPER PERSON
FEE POLICY
Introduction
1. A relevant protected site is a site, which requires a licence, which is not solely
for holiday purposes or is otherwise not capable of being used all year round.
In other words, a relevant protected site is a site where residents can live in
their homes for the full year. A relevant protected site cannot operate unless
the local authority is satisfied that the manager qualifies as a fit and proper
person, Sections 12A -12E of theCaravan Sites and Control of Development
Act 1960, as implemented by Section 8 Mobile Homes Act 2013 (subject to
paragraph 10 below).
2. A site owner under the Mobile Homes (Requirement for Manager of Site to be
Fit and Proper Person) (England) Regulations 2020 (SI 2020/1034) (“the
Regulations”) must apply to their local authority for the relevant person
(themselves or their appointed manager) to be added to the register of fit and
proper persons managing sites in their area (“the register”).
3. The site owner may only apply to be added to the register if they hold, or have
applied for, a site licence for the site. This provision also applies where the site
owner or site manager is a registered company.
4. The Regulations permit the local authority to determine the fee for an
application or registration for someone to be added to the register. It is
imperative that the fee is included with the application and failing to include this
may mean that the site owner is in breach of the requirements of the
Regulations.
5. It is important to highlight that this fee policy will refer to the recovery of costs
which the local authority may have incurred, or which will be incurred, in
appointing a person to manage a site with the site owner’s consent. This will be
calculated separately to the application fee.
6. Site owners will be required to submit a completed application from 1 July until
30 September 2021 (3 months) and pay the fee, outlined below, to Ribble Valley
Borough Council.
Fees for Fit and Proper Persons Register Applications
Application Fee
7. Ribble Valley Borough Council has provided a breakdown of tasks associated
with the fit and proper person assessment and/or checks to be included on the
fit and proper register in Table A on page 5.
8. The fee is set as per Table A at £261.00 for the fit and proper person application
process.

Page 30

9. The local authority has taken into account the following matters on which costs
are incurred, or likely to be incurred, when determining it’s fee policy for
consideration of applications for entry on a fit and proper person register:
(a) Initial enquiries;
(b) letter writing/emails/telephone calls etc. to make appointments and
requesting any documents or other information from the site owner or
from any third party in connection with the fit and proper process;
(c) sending out forms/processing online application forms;
(d) updating files/ computer systems and website;
(e) processing the application fee;
(f) land registry searches;
(g) time for reviewing necessary documents and certificates;
(h) preparing preliminary and final decision notices;
(i) review by manager or lawyers; review any representations made by
applicants or responses from third parties;
(j) updating the public register;
(k) carrying out any risk assessment process considered necessary; and
(l) reviews of decisions or in defending appeals.
10. The charges are limited to recovering the costs of exercising the fit and proper
person test function only and do not include other costs that have already been
charged for by other service areas.
11. Please see Table A found at page 5 which outlines the above and provides
transparent justification for the fee to be imposed upon receipt of the initial
application. The purpose of this table is to demonstrate that the fees imposed
are fair and transparent providing justification as to why a site is required to pay
the fee. In light of the small number of sites that this applies to no annual fee
will be charged in addition to the application fee for ongoing enforcement.
Additional Considerations Taken into Account for the Application Fee:
12. Ribble Valley Borough Council will be required to conduct relevant background
checks regarding the applicant’s background in management and their financial
standing. The results of these checks will allow the local authority to decide on
whether or not to accept the application. The time taken for these checks has
been accounted for in the fee, irrespective whether or not the entry on the
register is granted.
13. Where an applicant contacts the Environmental Health team before making an
application, to ascertain the likelihood of the success of that application, the
authority is expected to provide informal advice, for example, the conditions
surrounding an application, the information required to be submitted and
general guidance on making the application. There is further guidance relating
to this in the fit andproper person determination policy.
14. Any preliminary advice the local authority provides is accounted for in the fee
and will not be charged separately.

Page 31

Revising Fees
15. Ribble Valley Borough Council will review this fee policy after 12 months and
will publish the revised policy. Any changes will be justifiable and reasonable,
ensuring full transparency for the site owners.
16. The purpose of publishing the fee policy is to show that the fees imposed by
the local authority are fair and transparent so that anyone required to pay a fee
can understand the charges.
Amending Conditions Attached to an Entry on a Register
17. Ribble Valley Borough Council may alter the conditions attached to an entry on
a register (by adding new conditions or changing or deleting existing ones),
following a review. Officers must notify the site owner of its interim decision
(except in the case where it is deleting a condition) and consider any
representations made by the site owner, before reaching a final decision. If the
site owner is unhappy with the decision to alter, or not alter, the conditions, they
will have a right of appeal to the First-tier Tribunal (Property Chamber).
18. There are no requirements for a site owner to make an application for a
condition to be altered. Any costs involved with amending existing conditions,
or adding new conditions to an entry, are factored into the application cost.
Payment of Fees
19. As outlined above in paragraph 4, Ribble Valley Borough Council is not required
to consider an application for entry on the register unless that application is
accompanied by the correct fee. If the correct fee is not paid, the application
will not be valid and the site owner could be in breach of the Regulations.
20. If Ribble Valley Borough Council decides not to approve an application the
applicant is not entitled to a refund of the fee paid.
An Appointed Manager Fee
21. This is where the local authority is provided with the site owner’s consent to
appoint an individual to manage a site. The costs associated with this should
be reasonable and are recoverable from the site owner. These fall outside the
application process.
22. Costs that can be recovered will depend on the agreement made between
Ribble Valley Borough Council and the site owner. Before entering into any
discussions or agreements relating to the appointment of the manager, advice
will be sought from the legal team.

Page 32

Table A
Mobile Homes Fit and Proper Person Test Fees
1 - Mobile Homes Fit and Proper Person Test - APPLICATION FEE - costing
Hours
HoEHS

0.25

1.00
5.25

1.00

Hourly rate (including on-costs) - 2021/22

£60.88

£42.09

£24.54

Total cost to apply to Fee

EHO
0.50

Admin
Officer

Process
Pre application advice
Receipt of application and recorded on Civica.
Acknowledgement email sent.
Check application is full and proper,
complete, signed and fee paid.
Enter details on system and receipt fee.
Review application and make enquiries re
FPP documents and declarations (including
management and finances).
Check documents and certificates.
Review any representations from applicant or
third parties, including reviews carried out by
manager and legal.
Application of any conditions to registration.
Update Civica.
Grant of application (Final Notice) or serve
Preliminary Notice
Oversight/approval of Final Notice or
Preliminary Notice (by HoEHS)
Add relevant person's details onto public
register
Work on Enforcement/review of any appeals
during registration period (assume some
work across 5 year period on small number of
sites)
Total hours

0.25

0.50

2.00

0.50
0.50
0.25
0.50
0.25
0.25

£15.22

£220.97

£24.54

Total cost
£260.73

Set 21/22 fee at £261.00
Rounded up to next 50p or £1
2 - Mobile Homes Fit and Proper Person Test - ANNUAL FEE
No annual fee charged for on-going enforcement in light of small number of sites.
3 - Mobile Homes Fit and Proper Person Test - SITE MANAGEMENT FEE
If the Local Authority is provided with the site owner's consent to appoint an individual to
manage
a site, the costs associated with this should be reasonable and are recoverable from the site
owner.

Page 33

These are outside the application process.

Page 34

Agenda Item 6
DECISION

RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO HEALTH AND HOUSING COMMITTEE
meeting date:
title:
submitted by:
principal author:

28 OCTOBER 2021
REVIEW OF FEES AND CHARGES 2022/23
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
ANDREW COOK

1

PURPOSE

1.1

To seek member approval on proposals to increase this Committee’s fees and charges
with effect from 1 April 2022.

2

BACKGROUND

2.1

The Council’s fees and charges are reviewed on an annual basis as part of the budget
setting process.

2.2

This report requests that members consider proposals for the increase in fees and
charges for this Committee’s services. Such charges would be implemented with effect
from the 1 April 2022 and would operate for the duration of the 2022/23 financial year.

2.3

The Council’s latest budget forecast allows for a 3% inflationary increase in the level of
income raised from fees and charges. The review aims to increase budgeted income for
2022/23 by this amount when compared with this year’s original budget estimate.

2.4

After applying this percentage increase, most proposed charges have been rounded up
to the next 10p, 50p or £1 dependent on the size of the fee to minimise any problems with
small change. This inevitably impacts on the individual percentage rise for each separate
charge, particularly when the current charge is low. Therefore, a small number of fees,
where rounding up would have meant the actual fee increase being significantly more
than 3%, have been rounded down to the nearest 10p.

3

ADVICE OF POLICY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE AND BUDGET WORKING GROUP

3.1

At their meeting in September 2021, Policy and Finance Committee considered the overall
three year Budget Forecast. This forecast assumes that fees and charges are increased
overall by 3%.

3.2

Policy and Finance Committee asked that Budget Working Group give guidance to
committees based on the Budget Forecast. Service committees are asked to review their
fees and charges in order to achieve this overall target increase in income of 3%.

3.3

The current year’s budgeted income to be received from fees and charges which are set
by this Committee is £284,970. A 3% increase on this total would therefore generate
£8,549.

4

REVIEW OF FEES AND CHARGES 2022/23

4.1

The review of fees and charges was co-ordinated by Financial Services, working together
with Heads of Service and budget holders.

4.2

The following process was undertaken:


1 of 21
14-21hh

Heads of Service are provided with an indication of the fees and charges factoring
in a 3% increase on the base budget for 2022/23.

Page 35



4.3

Discussion meetings are then held between the Heads of Service and Financial
Services to enable the Heads of Service to propose a set of fees and charges for
their services. This may include areas where there is a national requirement or
service specific reason for setting a fee or charge different from the 3% target
increase.

Following discussions a proposed set of fees and charges for implementation from 1 April
2022 has been produced for this Committee and is shown at Annex 1. This Annex
provides the following details:


The current charges for 2021/22.



The 2021/22 budgeted income estimated to be raised by each charge (Net of VAT).



The proposed charges for implementation from 1 April 2022.



The resulting percentage increase in each proposed charge from 2021/22 to
2022/23.



An indication of the potential income that may be achieved in 2022/23, should the
proposals be agreed (Net of VAT).



The date that each charge was last increased (They are all reviewed annually but
may not necessarily be increased).

4.4

The indication of potential income which is shown throughout Annex 1 is provided for
guidance purposes only and is based on past and current activity levels. No account is
taken of any change in future service use which may be influenced by a change in charge
levels or any other factors.

4.5

If Committee agrees the fees and charges as shown in Annex 1, the overall increase in
income based on current budgeted activity levels is expected to be £8,750, or 3.07%.

4.6

A small number of the proposed fees and charges for 2022/23 have been set on a different
basis to just an inflation increase from 2021/22. These are explained in the following
sections of the report.

5

MOBILE HOMES REGULATIONS 2020 FIT AND PROPER PERSON TEST - NEW FEES

5.1

A report elsewhere on this agenda is requesting this Committee to approve the
implementation of two new fees with immediate effect in relation to the new responsibilities
that the Council has under the Mobile Homes Regulations 2020. These fees are:


Mobile Homes Fit and Proper Person Test Application Fee.



Mobile Homes Site Manager Appointment Costs.

5.2

Proposed fees for 2022/23 are included in Annex 1 for these two fees, on the basis that
this Committee will approve the implementation of these new fees with immediate effect
in 2021/22.

6

CLITHEROE CEMETERY MEMORIAL BENCH FEE

6.1

There is currently a fixed fee of £797.00 for provision of a memorial bench at Clitheroe
Cemetery. This fixed fee was set on the basis that only one type of bench was offered to
those wanting to purchase a memorial bench. However, it is proposed to change the fee
with immediate effect to be “At Cost – Materials and Labour”, to allow people to select
their own choice of bench, as agreed with the Council, rather than limiting them to one
type of bench. Different types of benches will have different costs associated with them,
so a fixed fee is no longer appropriate.

2 of 21
14-21hh

Page 36

7

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH AND DOG OFFENCES FIXED PENALTY NOTICES

7.1

No inflation related increases are proposed for Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs) charges in
2022/23. This is because these charges are set by this Committee within Government
guidelines for maximum and minimum levels and these levels do not increase by inflation
each year.

8

RISK ASSESSMENT

8.1

The approval of this report may have the following implications:


Resources – Fees and charges provide a key income source for the Council. Fees
and charges also provide a mechanism to target concessions, and also to charge
service users directly rather than allowing the financial burden of certain service
provision to fall on the Council Tax.



Technical, Environmental and Legal – The Local Government Acts of 2000 and
2003 extended authorities’ powers to charge for discretionary services.



Political – None.



Reputation – Substantial increases to charges can generate adverse publicity.



Equality and Diversity – One of the aims of the fees and charges mechanism on
many services is to pass on service concession in order to increase inclusivity.

9

CONCLUSION

9.1

Service committees were asked to increase budgeted income from fees and charges by
a target of 3% in 2022/23, in line with the Budget Forecast approved by Policy and Finance
Committee in September 2021.

9.2

The proposed list of fees and charges for this Committee’s services, for implementation
from 1 April 2022, is attached at Annex 1. The proposed fees are based on work
undertaken by Financial Services, Heads of Service and budget holders.

9.3

If Committee agree the proposed fees and charges for implementation from 1 April 2022,
then potential income from the fees and charges for this Committee’s services will
increase in 2022/23 by 3.07%.

9.4

It is also proposed that the Clitheroe Cemetery Memorial Bench fee is changed with
immediate effect to “At Cost – Materials and Labour”.

10

RECOMMENDED THAT COMMITTEE

10.1

Approve the 2022/23 fees and charges proposed for this Committee in Annex 1, for
implementation from 1 April 2022.

10.2

Approve to change the Clitheroe Cemetery Memorial Bench fee with immediate effect to
“At Cost – Materials and Labour”.

SENIOR ACCOUNTANT

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

HH14-21/AC/AC
18 October 2021
For further information please ask for Andrew Cook
BACKGROUND PAPERS – None
3 of 21
14-21hh

Page 37

Annex 1
Health and Housing Committee – Proposed Fees and Charges 2022/23

CLITHEROE CEMETERY - CLCEM

Exclusive Burial
Rights

Woodland Burials

Ledger Code

VAT

Date of
last
change

Current
Charge
from 1st
April 2021

Budgeted
Income
Net of VAT
for 2021/22

Proposed
Charges
from 1st
April 2022

Percentage
Increase in
Charge

£

£

£

%

Indication of
Potential
Income Net
of VAT for
2022/23
£

Page 38

Grave Plot

CLCEM/8447u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

880.00

20,290

907.00

3.07%

20,910

Ashes Plot

CLCEM/8447u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

434.00

7,200

448.00

3.23%

7,430

Woodland Burial

CLCEM/8747u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

797.00

13,830

821.00

3.01%

14,250

Tree and Wild Flower
Planting

-

-

No Charge

No Charge

0

No Charge

N/A

0

Stillborn and Child up
to 1 month***

-

-

No Charge

No Charge

0

No Charge

N/A

0

Child under 16 years
old

CLCEM/8441u

01-Apr-21

172.00

0

178.00

3.49%

0

3 depth

CLCEM/8441u

01-Apr-21

790.00

4,450

814.00

3.04%

4,590

2 depth

CLCEM/8441u

01-Apr-21

653.00

8,430

673.00

3.06%

8,690

1 depth (Includes
Woodland Burials)

CLCEM/8441u

01-Apr-21

609.00

19,180

628.00

3.12%

19,780

Ashes (Includes
Woodland Burials)

CLCEM/8441u

01-Apr-21

147.00

4,980

152.00

3.40%

5,150

Interments

Non
Vatable
Non
Vatable
Non
Vatable
Non
Vatable
Non
Vatable

Please Note: Fees are double (for purchase of exclusive burial rights and interment) for persons who are non-residents of the Ribble Valley
***Interment of stillborn and child up to 1 month old will be the same fee as that for interment of a child under 16 years old for persons non-resident in the
Ribble Valley

4 of 21
14-21hh

CLITHEROE CEMETERY - CLCEM

Provision of
Foundation
Right to Erect
Headstone
Right to Place Stone
Plaque on Ashes Plot

Fees for Memorials

Page 39
Other Cemetery
charges

5 of 21
14-21hh

CLCEM/8446n
CLCEM/8442u
CLCEM/8442u

Cemetery Plaques

CLCEM/8445z

Removing/Refixing
Headstones for Burials

CLCEM/8599u

Commemorative Trees

CLCEM/8508z

Commemorative
Shrubs

CLCEM/8508z

Memorial Bench

CLCEM/8507z

Search Fee

CLCEM/8780n

Copy of Grave Deed

CLCEM/8781n

Certificate of Burial /
Certificate of Transfer /
Copy Certificate

CLCEM/8782n

PUBLIC HEALTH ACT BURIALS AND
CREMATIONS - BURCR

Public Health Act
funerals

Ledger Code

Public Health Act
Funerals officer time
fee (per hour)

Ledger Code

BURCR/8576z

VAT

VAT
Inclusive
Non
Vatable
Non
Vatable
Non
Vatable
Non
Vatable
Non
Vatable
Non
Vatable
Non
Vatable
VAT
Inclusive
VAT
Inclusive
VAT
Inclusive

VAT

Non
Vatable

Date of
last
change

Current
Charge
from 1st
April 2021

Budgeted
Income
Net of VAT
for 2021/22

Proposed
Charges
from 1st
April 2022

Percentage
Increase in
Charge

£

£

£

%

Indication of
Potential
Income Net
of VAT for
2022/23
£

01-Apr-21

98.00

0

101.00

3.06%

0

01-Apr-21

179.00

3,830

185.00

3.35%

3,960

01-Apr-21

97.00

770

100.00

3.09%

790

N/A

550

N/A

680

01-Apr-21
01-Apr-21

At CostMaterials
At CostMaterials

530
660

At CostMaterials
At CostMaterials

01-Apr-21

182.00

0

188.00

3.30%

0

01-Apr-21

96.00

0

99.00

3.13%

0

01-Apr-21

797.00

0

At Cost Materials
and Labour

N/A

0

01-Apr-21

33.00

0

34.00

3.03%

0

01-Apr-21

33.00

0

34.00

3.03%

0

01-Apr-21

43.00

0

44.30

3.02%

0

Current
Charge
from 1st
April 2021

Budgeted
Income
Net of VAT
for 2021/22

Proposed
Charges
from 1st
April 2022

Percentage
Increase in
Charge

£

£

£

%

Date of
last
change

01-Apr-21

53.10

0

54.70

3.01%

Indication of
Potential
Income Net
of VAT for
2022/23
£
0.00

CLITHEROE MARKET – CLMKT

Cabins

Stalls - Tuesday &
Saturday

Page 40

Stalls - Sunday
Events

Stalls - Thursdays

Pitches
Clitheroe Market
Special Events

6 of 21
14-21hh

Tuesday, Thursday
and Saturday - per
week
Use of Cabins
(preparation
purposes): Non
Market Days

Ledger Code

Proposed
Charges
from 1st
April 2022

Percentage
Increase in
Charge

£

£

£

%

Indication of
Potential
Income Net
of VAT for
2022/23
£

VAT
Inclusive

01-Apr-21

59.40

108,430

61.20

3.03%

111,720

CLMKT/8824n

VAT
Inclusive

01-Apr-21

29.20

2,480

30.10

3.08%

2,560

01-Apr-21

19.90

1,890

20.50

3.02%

1,950

01-Apr-21

10.20

0

10.50

2.94%

0

01-Apr-21

16.40

4,070

16.90

3.05%

4,190

01-Apr-21

8.70

610

9.00

3.45%

630

01-Apr-21

11.30

0

11.60

2.65%

0

01-Apr-21

21.50

0

22.20

3.26%

0

01-Apr-21

10.20

0

10.50

2.94%

0

01-Apr-21

5.10

0

5.20

1.96%

0

01-Apr-21

8.70

20

9.00

3.45%

20

01-Apr-21

4.10

0

4.20

2.44%

0

01-Apr-21

16.90

1,700

17.40

2.96%

1,750

01-Apr-21

8.70

10

9.00

3.45%

10

01-Apr-21

Price on
Application

0

Price on
Application

N/A

0

CLMKT/8825n

- 10 ft Third Stall
Reduced Rate

CLMKT/8825n

- 8 ft

CLMKT/8825n
CLMKT/8825n
CLMKT/8825n

Non Contract Traders

CLMKT/8825n

- 10 ft

CLMKT/8825n

- 10 ft Third Stall
Reduced Rate

CLMKT/8825n

- 8 ft

CLMKT/8825n

- 8 ft Third Stall
Reduced Rate
Tuesday and Saturday
- per day

Date of
last
change

Budgeted
Income
Net of VAT
for 2021/22

CLMKT/8824n

- 10 ft

- 8 ft Third Stall
Reduced Rate
Regular Contract
Traders

VAT

Current
Charge
from 1st
April 2021

CLMKT/8825n
CLMKT/8826n

Thursday - per day

CLMKT/8826n

Special Events Fee

CLMKT/8885n

VAT
Inclusive
VAT
Inclusive
VAT
Inclusive
VAT
Inclusive
VAT
Inclusive
VAT
Inclusive
VAT
Inclusive
VAT
Inclusive
VAT
Inclusive
VAT
Inclusive
VAT
Inclusive
VAT
Inclusive
VAT
Inclusive

DOG WARDEN AND PEST CONTROL DOGWD

Page 41

Pest Control

7 of 21
14-21hh

Commercial - Single
Treatment Charge
(per hour plus
materials - minimum
charge 1 hour)
Commercial - Annual
Contract - Per Visit
Domestic Single
Treatment Charge
(Rodents - up to 3
visits)
Domestic Single
Treatment Charge Out of Hours (Rodents
- up to 3 visits)
Domestic Callout
Charge - Per Visit
(Unspecified reason up to 3 visits)
Domestic Single
Treatment Charge Public Health Pests
(eg. cockroaches and
bed bugs - up to 3
visits)
Domestic Single
Treatment Charge Public Health Pests
(eg. cockroaches and
bed bugs - up to 3
visits) - Out of Hours

Ledger Code

VAT

Date of
last
change

Current
Charge
from 1st
April 2021

Budgeted
Income
Net of VAT
for 2021/22

Proposed
Charges
from 1st
April 2022

Percentage
Increase in
Charge

£

£

£

%

Indication of
Potential
Income Net
of VAT for
2022/23
£

DOGWD/8696n

VAT
Inclusive

01-Apr-21

55.00

0

56.70

3.09%

0

DOGWD/8696n

VAT
Inclusive

01-Apr-21

40.00

4,360

41.20

3.00%

4,490

DOGWD/8725n

VAT
Inclusive

01-Apr-21

48.00

8,130

49.50

3.13%

8,380

DOGWD/8725n

VAT
Inclusive

01-Apr-21

96.00

0

98.90

3.02%

0

DOGWD/8725n

VAT
Inclusive

01-Apr-21

48.00

0

49.50

3.13%

0

DOGWD/8725n

VAT
Inclusive

01-Apr-21

48.00

0

49.50

3.13%

0

DOGWD/8725n

VAT
Inclusive

01-Apr-21

96.00

0

98.90

3.02%

0

DOG WARDEN AND PEST CONTROL DOGWD

Non-Public Health
Insect Treatment (eg.
wasps, ants, flies,
carpet beetles and
fleas)

Page 42

Pest Control Missed
Appointments
Dog Bins Emptying Post Mounted - one
collection per bin per
week

8 of 21
14-21hh

VAT

Date of
last
change

Budgeted
Income
Net of VAT
for 2021/22

Proposed
Charges
from 1st
April 2022

Percentage
Increase in
Charge

£

£

£

%

Indication of
Potential
Income Net
of VAT for
2022/23
£

Wasps/Fleas/Ants/
Other - Single Visit
Charge during working
hours

DOGWD/8412n

VAT
Inclusive

01-Apr-21

48.00

4,580

49.50

3.13%

4,720

Wasps/Fleas/Ants/
Other - Each additional
nest treated on same
visit

DOGWD/8412n

VAT
Inclusive

01-Apr-21

24.00

0

24.80

3.33%

0

Wasps/Fleas/Ants/
Other - Out of hours Single Visit Charge

DOGWD/8412n

VAT
Inclusive

01-Apr-21

96.00

0

98.90

3.02%

0

Per missed
appointment

DOGWD/8726n

VAT
Inclusive

01-Apr-21

48.00

0

49.50

3.13%

0

Commercial - per bin
per week

DOGWD/8596n

VAT
Inclusive

01-Apr-21

8.90

0

9.20

3.37%

0

Parish Councils - per
bin per week

DOGWD/8596n

VAT
Inclusive

01-Apr-21

5.20

1,300

5.30

1.92%

1,330

Current
Charge
from 1st
April 2021

Budgeted
Income
Net of VAT
for 2021/22

Proposed
Charges
from 1st
April 2022

Percentage
Increase in
Charge

£

£

£

%

DOG WARDEN AND PEST CONTROL DOGWD - FIXED PENALTY NOTICES

Public Space
Protection Orders Dog Offences

Ledger Code

Current
Charge
from 1st
April 2021

Maximum full penalty no discount allowed

Ledger Code

DOGWD/8631z

VAT

Non
Vatable

Date of
last
change

01-Apr-19

100.00

100

100.00

0.00%

Indication of
Potential
Income Net
of VAT for
2022/23
£
100

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - ENVHT

Boarding in Kennels
Licence (Animal
Welfare Regulations
2018)

Page 43

Boarding in Catteries
Licence (Animal
Welfare Regulations
2018)

Home Boarding
Licence (Animal
Welfare Regulations
2018)

9 of 21
14-21hh

Boarding in Kennels Processing Application
Fee
Boarding in Kennels Compliance/
Enforcement Fee
Boarding in Kennels Variation Fee (with
inspection)
Boarding in Kennels Variation Fee (no
inspection)
Boarding in Catteries Processing Application
Fee
Boarding in Catteries Compliance/
Enforcement Fee
Boarding in Catteries Variation Fee (with
inspection)
Boarding in Catteries Variation Fee (no
inspection)
Home Boarding Processing Application
Fee
Home Boarding Compliance/
Enforcement Fee
Home Boarding Variation Fee (with
inspection)
Home Boarding Variation Fee (no
inspection)

Ledger Code

VAT

Date of
last
change

Current
Charge
from 1st
April 2021

Budgeted
Income
Net of VAT
for 2021/22

Proposed
Charges
from 1st
April 2022

Percentage
Increase in
Charge

£

£

£

%

ENVHT/8674u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

244.00

251.50

3.07%

ENVHT/8674u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

116.00

119.50

3.02%

ENVHT/8674u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

176.00

181.50

3.13%

ENVHT/8674u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

80.00

82.50

3.13%

ENVHT/8674u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

244.00

251.50

3.07%

ENVHT/8674u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

116.00

119.50

3.02%

ENVHT/8674u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

176.00

181.50

3.13%

ENVHT/8674u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

80.00

82.50

3.13%

ENVHT/8776u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

213.00

219.50

3.05%

ENVHT/8776u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

84.00

86.60

3.10%

ENVHT/8776u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

143.00

147.50

3.15%

ENVHT/8776u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

80.00

82.50

3.13%

1,320

Indication of
Potential
Income Net
of VAT for
2022/23
£

1,360

190

200

370

380

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - ENVHT

Day Care for Dogs
Licence (Animal
Welfare Regulations
2018)

Page 44

Breeding of Dogs
Licence (Animal
Welfare Regulations
2018)

10 of 21
14-21hh

Day Care for Dogs Processing Application
Fee
Day Care for Dogs Compliance/
Enforcement Fee
Day Care for Dogs Variation Fee (with
inspection)
Day Care for Dogs Variation Fee (no
inspection)
Breeding of Dogs Processing Application
Fee
Breeding of Dogs Compliance/
Enforcement Fee
Breeding of Dogs Variation Fee (with
inspection)
Breeding of Dogs Variation Fee (no
inspection)

Ledger Code

VAT

Date of
last
change

Current
Charge
from 1st
April 2021

Budgeted
Income
Net of VAT
for 2021/22

Proposed
Charges
from 1st
April 2022

Percentage
Increase in
Charge

£

£

£

%

ENVHT/8776u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

213.00

219.50

3.05%

ENVHT/8776u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

84.00

86.60

3.10%

ENVHT/8776u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

143.00

147.50

3.15%

ENVHT/8776u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

80.00

82.50

3.13%

ENVHT/8675u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

244.00

251.50

3.07%

ENVHT/8675u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

116.00

119.50

3.02%

ENVHT/8675u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

176.00

181.50

3.13%

ENVHT/8675u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

80.00

82.50

3.13%

Indication of
Potential
Income Net
of VAT for
2022/23
£

1,430

1,390

70

70

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - ENVHT

Selling Animals as
Pets (Single Species)
Licence (Animal
Welfare Regulations
2018)

Page 45
Selling Animals as
Pets (Multiple
Species) Licence
(Animal Welfare
Regulations 2018)

Selling Animals as
Pets (Single Species) Processing Application
Fee
Selling Animals as
Pets (Single Species) Compliance/
Enforcement Fee
Selling Animals as
Pets (Single Species) Variation Fee (with
inspection)
Selling Animals as
Pets (Single Species) Variation Fee (no
inspection)
Selling Animals as
Pets (Multiple Species)
- Processing
Application Fee
Selling Animals as
Pets (Multiple Species)
- Compliance/
Enforcement Fee
Selling Animals as
Pets (Multiple Species)
- Variation Fee (with
inspection)
Selling Animals as
Pets (Multiple Species)
- Variation Fee (no
inspection)

11 of 21
14-21hh

Ledger Code

VAT

Date of
last
change

Current
Charge
from 1st
April 2021

Budgeted
Income
Net of VAT
for 2021/22

Proposed
Charges
from 1st
April 2022

Percentage
Increase in
Charge

£

£

£

%

ENVHT/8676u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

188.00

194.00

3.19%

ENVHT/8676u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

61.00

63.00

3.28%

0

Indication of
Potential
Income Net
of VAT for
2022/23
£

0

ENVHT/8676u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

120.00

124.00

3.33%

ENVHT/8676u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

80.00

82.50

3.13%

ENVHT/8676u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

269.00

277.50

3.16%

ENVHT/8676u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

139.00

143.50

3.24%

400

410

ENVHT/8676u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

199.00

205.00

3.02%

ENVHT/8676u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

80.00

82.50

3.13%

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - ENVHT

Hiring out Horses
Licence (Animal
Welfare Regulations
2018)

Page 46

Exhibition of Animals
Licence (Animal
Welfare Regulations
2018)

Additional Activity
Licence Fee (Animal
Welfare Regulations
2018)
Additional Host
Inspection Fee
(Animal Welfare
Regulations 2018)

12 of 21
14-21hh

Hiring out Horses Processing Application
Fee
Hiring out Horses Compliance/
Enforcement Fee
Hiring out Horses Variation Fee (with
inspection)
Hiring out Horses Variation Fee (no
inspection)
Exhibition of Animals Processing Application
Fee
Exhibition of Animals Compliance/
Enforcement Fee
Exhibition of Animals Variation Fee (with
inspection)
Exhibition of Animals Variation Fee (no
inspection)
Extra fee for each
Additional Activity on a
Multiple Activity
Licence, where
applicable
Extra fee for each
Additional Host
inspected for
Franchise Licence
applicants/holders

Ledger Code

VAT

Date of
last
change

Current
Charge
from 1st
April 2021

Budgeted
Income
Net of VAT
for 2021/22

Proposed
Charges
from 1st
April 2022

Percentage
Increase in
Charge

£

£

£

%

Indication of
Potential
Income Net
of VAT for
2022/23
£

ENVHT/8677u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

303.00

312.50

3.14%

ENVHT/8677u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

170.00

175.50

3.24%

ENVHT/8677u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

235.00

242.50

3.19%

ENVHT/8677u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

80.00

82.50

3.13%

ENVHT/8676u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

244.00

251.50

3.07%

ENVHT/8676u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

No Charge

No Charge

N/A

ENVHT/8676u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

176.00

181.50

3.13%

ENVHT/8676u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

80.00

82.50

3.13%

ENVHT/any of
above as
applicable

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

33.00

0

34.00

3.03%

0

ENVHT/any of
above as
applicable

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

48.00

0

49.50

3.13%

0

110

110

0

0

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - ENVHT

Re-score Inspection
(Animal Welfare
Regulations 2018)

Animal Welfare
Licences - Others

Ledger Code

VAT

Date of
last
change

Proposed
Charges
from 1st
April 2022

Percentage
Increase in
Charge

£

£

£

%

Indication of
Potential
Income Net
of VAT for
2022/23
£

ENVHT/any of
above as
applicable

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

133.00

0

137.00

3.01%

0

Dangerous Wild
Animals

ENVHT/8678u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

157.00

0

162.00

3.18%

0

Annual Zoo
compliance audit

ENVHT/8679u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

188.00

194.00

3.19%

ENVHT/8679u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

120

Vets fees charged at cost in addition to the fees shown above, where applicable

Page 47
14-21hh

Budgeted
Income
Net of VAT
for 2021/22

Re-score Inspection,
where requested

Zoo - 4 year renewal

13 of 21

Current
Charge
from 1st
April 2021

376.00

120
387.50

3.06%

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - ENVHT

Street Trading
Licences

Caravan Sites
Licences

Page 48

Mobile Homes
Regulations 2020 Fit and Proper
Person Test
(NOTE - THESE ARE
NEW FEES THAT
HEALTH & HOUSING
COMMITTEE ARE
BEING ASKED TO
APPROVE ON 28
OCTOBER 2021)

14 of 21
14-21hh

Street Trading
Consent - Classes I, II
& III per annum
Street Trading
Consent Class V per
Event
Street Trading
Consent Class IV
First time - new (based
on 12 hours)
Annual (based on 6
hours)
Amendment of site
(based on 6 hours)

Ledger Code

VAT

Date of
last
change

Current
Charge
from 1st
April 2021

Budgeted
Income
Net of VAT
for 2021/22

Proposed
Charges
from 1st
April 2022

Percentage
Increase in
Charge

£

£

£

%

Indication of
Potential
Income Net
of VAT for
2022/23
£

ENVHT/8430u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

760.00

4,560

783.00

3.03%

4,700

ENVHT/8430u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

131.00

0

135.00

3.05%

0

-

-

No Charge

No Charge

0

No Charge

N/A

0

01-Apr-21

495.00

0

510.00

3.03%

0

01-Apr-21

250.00

500

257.50

3.00%

520

01-Apr-21

250.00

0

257.50

3.00%

0

ENVHT/8684u
ENVHT/8684u
ENVHT/8684u

Non
Vatable
Non
Vatable
Non
Vatable

Transfer (based on 4
hours)

ENVHT/8684u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

168.00

0

173.50

3.27%

0

Mobile Homes Fit
and Proper Person
Test Application Fee

TBC

Non
Vatable

TBC

261.00

0

269.00

3.07%

0

TBC

Non
Vatable

TBC

At Cost,
Recovered
in full from
site owner

0

At Cost,
Recovered
in full from
site owner

N/A

0

Mobile Homes Site
Manager
Appointment Costs

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - ENVHT

Houses of Multiple
Occupation Licences
**

Ledger Code

VAT

Date of
last
change

Current
Charge
from 1st
April 2021

Budgeted
Income
Net of VAT
for 2021/22

Proposed
Charges
from 1st
April 2022

Percentage
Increase in
Charge

£

£

£

%

Indication of
Potential
Income Net
of VAT for
2022/23
£

HMO Licence Part 1
fee - Processing a
licence application for
either 2 years or 5
years

ENVHT/8685u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

823.00

0

848.00

3.04%

0

HMO Licence Part 2
fee - Licence scheme
running costs,
including compliance
monitoring

ENVHT/8685u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

458.00

0

472.00

3.06%

0

Variation of an HMO
Licence

ENVHT/8685u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

141.00

0

145.50

3.19%

0

Page 49

** If licence applicant is a member of a recognised landlord scheme, there is a 20% reduction in these licence fees
Acupuncture

ENVHT/8680u

Ear Piercing

ENVHT/8681u

Tattooing

ENVHT/8682u

Electrolysis

ENVHT/8683u

Registrations

15 of 21
14-21hh

Non
Vatable
Non
Vatable
Non
Vatable
Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

178.00

0

183.50

3.09%

0

01-Apr-21

178.00

0

183.50

3.09%

0

01-Apr-21

178.00

0

183.50

3.09%

0

01-Apr-21

178.00

0

183.50

3.09%

0

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - ENVHT

Risk Assessment

Page 50

Private Water
Supplies Risk
Assessment and
Sample Analysis

Ledger Code

ENVHT/8417u

VAT

Non
Vatable

Date of
last
change

01-Apr-21

Other Investigations

ENVHT/8417u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

Small Supplies
(Regulation 10)
Sample Analysis

ENVHT/8417u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

Large Supplies
(Regulation 9, Group A
+ B) Sample Analysis

ENVHT/8417u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

Bacteriological Sample
Analysis

ENVHT/8417u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

Private Water Sample
Re-test

ENVHT/8417u

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

ENVHT/8417u

Non
Vatable

Carrying out works or
measures that an
owner has failed to
carry out in
accordance with an
improvement notice

N/A

Current
Charge
from 1st
April 2021

Budgeted
Income
Net of VAT
for 2021/22

Proposed
Charges
from 1st
April 2022

Percentage
Increase in
Charge

£

£

£

%

Cost of
Officer time
at £40.40
per hour

Cost of
Officer time
at £41.70
per hour

Cost of
Officer time
at £40.40
per hour
plus lab
test fees
£80.80 plus
lab test
fees

Cost of
Officer time
at £41.70
per hour
plus lab
test fees
£83.40 plus
lab test
fees

£80.80 plus
lab test
fees
£40.40 plus
lab test
fees
£80.80 plus
lab test
fees
At Cost Recovered
in full from
the Owner

Please note - The lab test fees are based on the fees paid to an external laboratory for each sample analysis

16 of 21
14-21hh

24,710

£83.40 plus
lab test
fees
£41.70 plus
lab test
fees
£83.40 plus
lab test
fees
At Cost Recovered
in full from
the Owner

Indication of
Potential
Income Net
of VAT for
2022/23
£

3.22%

3.22%

3.22%

3.22%

3.22%
3.22%

N/A

25,510

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - ENVHT

Housing
Enforcement Notice
Immigration
Inspection

Removal of Unfit
Food

Page 51

Food Hygiene Rating
Scheme Rescore
Inspection

Exhumations
Charges

17 of 21
14-21hh

Ledger Code

VAT

Date of
last
change

Current
Charge
from 1st
April 2021

Budgeted
Income
Net of VAT
for 2021/22

Proposed
Charges
from 1st
April 2022

Percentage
Increase in
Charge

£

£

£

%

ENVHT/8689u

Non
Vatable

Per inspection (3
hours minimum with
hourly charge
thereafter )

ENVHT/8687n

VAT
Inclusive

01-Apr-21

Per removal

ENVHT/8519z

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

Per Inspection

ENVHT/8763z

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

164.00

0

Environmental Health
Officer Attendance
Fee (per hour)

ENVHT/8583z

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

40.40

01-Apr-21

At Cost,
Recovered
in full from
those
requesting
the
exhumation

Per notice

Exhumation costs
incurred by the Council

ENVHT/8583z

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

599.00
148.80 plus
49.60 per
hour after 3
hours
At Cost,
Recovered
in full from
food
business

0

3.01%

0

3.02%

0

N/A

0

169.00

3.05%

0

0

41.70

3.22%

0

0

At Cost,
Recovered
in full from
those
requesting
the
exhumation

N/A

0

0

0

617.00

Indication of
Potential
Income Net
of VAT for
2022/23
£

153.30 plus
51.10 per
hour after 3
hours
At Cost,
Recovered
in full from
food
business

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - ENVHT - FIXED
PENALTY NOTICES

Ledger Code

VAT

Date of
last
change

Current
Charge
from 1st
April 2021

Budgeted
Income
Net of VAT
for 2021/22

Proposed
Charges
from 1st
April 2022

Percentage
Increase in
Charge

£

£

£

%

Maximum full penalty no discount allowed

ENVHT/8629z

Non
Vatable

08-Jun-18

150.00

Graffiti

Maximum full penalty

ENVHT/8638z

Non
Vatable

25-May-17

Graffiti

Minimum discounted
penalty

ENVHT/8638z

Fly-posting

Maximum full penalty

ENVHT/8638z

Fly-posting

Minimum discounted
penalty

ENVHT/8638z

Maximum full penalty

ENVHT/8638z

Minimum discounted
penalty

Maximum full penalty

Littering

Page 52

Unauthorised
distribution of free
literature on
designated land
Unauthorised
distribution of free
literature on
designated land
Alarm noise: failure
to nominate keyholder or to notify
local authority of
key-holder's details
Alarm noise: failure
to nominate keyholder or to notify
local authority of
key-holder's details
Nuisance parking
Nuisance parking

18 of 21
14-21hh

150.00

0.00%

80.00

80.00

0.00%

25-May-17

50.00

50.00

0.00%

25-May-17

80.00

80.00

0.00%

25-May-17

50.00

50.00

0.00%

Non
Vatable

25-May-17

80.00

80.00

0.00%

ENVHT/8638z

Non
Vatable

25-May-17

50.00

50.00

0.00%

ENVHT/8634z

Non
Vatable

25-May-17

80.00

80.00

0.00%

Non
Vatable
Non
Vatable
Non
Vatable

0

0

0
Minimum discounted
penalty

ENVHT/8634z

Maximum full penalty

ENVHT/8635z

Minimum discounted
penalty

ENVHT/8635z

Non
Vatable

25-May-17

Non
Vatable
Non
Vatable

25-May-17

50.00

100.00

0

0

0
50.00

0.00%

100.00

0.00%

60.00

0.00%

0
60.00

Indication of
Potential
Income Net
of VAT for
2022/23
£

0

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - ENVHT - FIXED
PENALTY NOTICES
Abandoning a
vehicle
Abandoning a
vehicle

Maximum full penalty

Ledger Code

ENVHT/8636z
ENVHT/8636z

Fly-tipping

Maximum full penalty

ENVHT/8637z

Fly-tipping

Minimum discounted
penalty

ENVHT/8637z

Failure to produce a
waste transfer note

Maximum full penalty

ENVHT/8637z

Failure to produce a
waste transfer note

Minimum discounted
penalty

Domestic waste
receptacle offences
Domestic waste
receptacle offences

Page 53

Minimum discounted
penalty

Industrial and
commercial waste
receptacle offences
Industrial and
commercial waste
receptacle offences
Noise exceeding
permitted level domestic premises
Noise exceeding
permitted level domestic premises
Noise exceeding
permitted level licensed premises

19 of 21
14-21hh

VAT

Non
Vatable
Non
Vatable
Non
Vatable
Non
Vatable

Date of
last
change
25-May-17

Current
Charge
from 1st
April 2021

Budgeted
Income
Net of VAT
for 2021/22

Proposed
Charges
from 1st
April 2022

Percentage
Increase in
Charge

£

£

£

%

200.00

200.00

0.00%

0

0

25-May-17

120.00

120.00

0.00%

25-May-17

400.00

400.00

0.00%

25-May-17

120.00

120.00

0.00%

Non
Vatable

25-May-17

300.00

300.00

0.00%

ENVHT/8637z

Non
Vatable

25-May-17

180.00

180.00

0.00%

Maximum full penalty

ENVHT/8637z

Non
Vatable

25-May-17

80.00

80.00

0.00%

Minimum discounted
penalty

ENVHT/8637z

Non
Vatable

25-May-17

40.00

40.00

0.00%

Maximum full penalty

ENVHT/8637z

Non
Vatable

25-May-17

110.00

110.00

0.00%

Minimum discounted
penalty

ENVHT/8637z

Non
Vatable

25-May-17

60.00

60.00

0.00%

Maximum full penalty

ENVHT/8634z

Non
Vatable

25-May-17

110.00

110.00

0.00%

Minimum discounted
penalty

ENVHT/8634z

Non
Vatable

25-May-17

60.00

60.00

0.00%

Maximum full penalty no discount allowed

ENVHT/8634z

Non
Vatable

25-May-17

500.00

500.00

0.00%

120

0

Indication of
Potential
Income Net
of VAT for
2022/23
£

120

0

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - ENVHT - FIXED
PENALTY NOTICES

Community
Protection Notice
breach
Community
Protection Notice
breach

Maximum penalty paid within 14 days

Ledger Code

ENVHT/8789z

VAT

Non
Vatable

Date of
last
change

25-May-17

Current
Charge
from 1st
April 2021

Budgeted
Income
Net of VAT
for 2021/22

Proposed
Charges
from 1st
April 2022

Percentage
Increase in
Charge

£

£

£

%

100.00

100.00

Indication of
Potential
Income Net
of VAT for
2022/23
£

0.00%

0

0

Minimum penalty paid within 7 days

ENVHT/8789z

Non
Vatable

25-May-17

75.00

75.00

0.00%

Operating a vehicle
engine when parked

Maximum penalty - not
paid within 28 days

ENVHT/8635z

Non
Vatable

25-May-17

40.00

40.00

0.00%

Operating a vehicle
engine when parked

Minimum penalty paid within 28 days

ENVHT/8635z

Non
Vatable

25-May-17

0
20.00

0
20.00

0.00%

Page 54

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - ENVHT - LOCAL AIR POLLUTION PREVENTION AND CONTROL FEES (LAPPC)
The Council is responsible for issuing permits and charging fees for certain industrial activities under the Pollution Prevention Control element of the Environmental
Permitting Regulations (EPR) 2010. Further information on current fees charged is available from the Environmental Health department.

20 of 21
14-21hh

CONTAMINATED LAND - CLAND

Enquiry

IMPROVEMENT GRANTS - IMPGR

Administration Charges for Disabled
Facilites Grants

Page 55

Administration Charges for Housing
Improvement Grants

HOUSING STRATEGY - HSTRA

Self Build and Custom House Build
Registration Fee (annual charge)

21 of 21
14-21hh

Ledger Code

CLAND/8623n

Ledger Code

VAT

VAT
Inclusive

VAT

Date of
last
change

01-Apr-21

Date of
last
change

IMPGR/8716m

Non
Vatable

01-Apr-21

IMPGR/8717n

VAT
Inclusive

01-Apr-21

Ledger Code

HSTRA/8811z

VAT

Non
Vatable

Date of
last
change

01-Apr-21

Current
Charge
from 1st
April 2021

Budgeted
Income
Net of VAT
for 2021/22

Proposed
Charges
from 1st
April 2022

Percentage
Increase in
Charge

£

£

£

%

84.00

0

86.60

Current
Charge
from 1st
April 2021

Budgeted
Income
Net of VAT
for 2021/22

Proposed
Charges
from 1st
April 2022

Percentage
Increase in
Charge

£

£

£

%

% of Total
cost in line
with current
DFG Policy
5% of Total
COST +
VAT

26,500

2,410

3.10%

% of Total
cost in line
with current
DFG Policy
5% of Total
COST +
VAT

N/A

2,480

Proposed
Charges
from 1st
April 2022

Percentage
Increase in
Charge

£

£

£

%

65.60

Indication of
Potential
Income Net
of VAT for
2022/23
£
27,300

Budgeted
Income
Net of VAT
for 2021/22

370

0

N/A

Current
Charge
from 1st
April 2021

63.60

Indication of
Potential
Income Net
of VAT for
2022/23
£

3.14%

Indication of
Potential
Income Net
of VAT for
2022/23
£
380

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO HEALTH & HOUSING COMMITTEE
meeting date:
title:
submitted by:
principal author:

DECISION

28 OCTOBER 2021
APPROVAL OF AMENDMENTS TO THE DFG POLICY
DIRECTOR OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
RACHAEL STOTT – HOUSING STRATEGY OFFICER

1

PURPOSE

1.1

Propose amendments to the DFG policy to improve the overall offer to applicants and
ensure vulnerable households are able to remain in their own homes for as long as
possible.


Community Objectives – To address the housing needs of all households in the
borough.



Corporate Priorities – To be an efficient Council.



Other Considerations – Maximise use of grant awards.

2

BACKGROUND

2.1

Delivering DFG adaptations is a mandatory function of the Council which must be set
out in an approved policy. Within the Better Care Fund award there is a requirement
that any money paid under this grant determination must only be used for the specific
purpose of funding adaptations for disabled people who qualify for a Disabled Facilities
Grant. This is made under the Housing Grants, Construction and Regeneration Act
1996 or under the Regulatory Reform (Housing Assistance) Order 2002 or any other
social care capital projects where otherwise agreed as above.

2.3

If agreed the policy is required to go through a consultation period for 6 weeks with
relevant parties made aware of the changes, including Occupational Therapists (OT),
LCC and Social Services departments.

3

ISSUES

3.1

Over the past few years there has been annual slippage of commitment of the monies,
in addition, for the past 18 months during the pandemic, spend has been particularly
difficult. The underspend was reported to Health and Housing Committee in September
(minute 244) and Members asked that we consider ways of increasing approvals and
the DFG offer available to applicants. A number of changes have been considered to
help increase delivery and have been included within the revised policy attached as
Appendix 1.

3.2

The proposed amendments are as follows



Increase the discretionary grant (RVA) from £7k to £10k.
Remove the restriction of allowing only 1 item to be included as an Ribble Valley
Adaption (RVA)

Page 57
1



Include the option to use trained assessors for assessing minor adaptations to
remove the requirement for OT assessments on non-complex cases.

3.2

It is considered by introducing these measures the programme will see an increase
in the opportunity for qualifying residents to access the grants, improving services for
the local community and addressing the desire to increase delivery.

4

RISK ASSESSMENT

4.1

The approval of this report may have the following implications:


Resources – The Better Care fund allocated annually supports DFG delivery in the
borough. The measures proposed will be contained within existing ring-fenced
capital budgets and will continue to be regularly monitored.



Technical, Environmental and Legal – There will be training costs to enable staff
to become trained assessors and increased time in carrying out assessments.



Political – Providing an efficient and responsive service is essential for this
mandatory function.



Reputation – Vital that the funding is utilised effectively and awarded to give the
best value.



Equality & Diversity – The service is accessible for all qualifying residents and
promoted to ensure maximum access.

5

RECOMMENDED THAT COMMITTEE

5.1

Approve the proposed amendments to the policy and that the revised document be
subject to appropriate consultation.

5.2

Delegate consideration of the consultation responses to the Director of Economic
Development and Planning, in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of this
Committee, and subject to there being no issues raised, adopt and publish the policy
as soon as practicable.

RACHAEL STOTT
HOUSING STRATEGY OFFICER

NICOLA HOPKINS
DIRECTOR OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

For further information please ask for Rachael Stott, extension 3235.

Page 58
2

Proposed amended
Discretionary
Disabled Facilities Grant Policy
Housing Grants, Construction and Regeneration Act 1996
The Regulatory Reform (Housing Assistance) (England and Wales)
Order 2002

Reviewed October 2021

Page 59
3

1. Introduction
Housing is a key determinant of health and poor housing is directly linked to poor health. This
disabled facilities grant policy details the financial assistance that the Council aims to provide
to support improvements to enable disabled occupants to remain in their own home through
the use of the Better Care Fund allocation.
The Council is required to adopt a Discretionary Disabled Facilities Grant Policy which sets
out how it intends to use its discretion to develop schemes having regard to the needs of the
Borough, the availability of funding, and the Council’s priorities.
This Discretionary Disabled Facilities Grant Policy forms part of the Council’s over-arching
Housing Strategy. This policy was first adopted January 2018 and has proved to be successful
in supporting the householder to maintain independent living.

2. Aims and priorities
Improving the housing conditions across the Borough will support improvements in health and
well-being as well as having a positive impact on the quality of local neighbourhoods,
particularly for those residents who are vulnerable and cannot access their homes and gardens
due to their disability.
This policy sets out in greater detail our offer to disabled occupants and their families. It also
details to local Councillors, local residents and our stakeholders how we will work to maintain
and improve the provision of adapted property across the borough.
Appendix 1 details the assistance schemes that the Council intends to offer during the life of
this policy and sets out specific eligibility criteria relating to each scheme.
The health and well-being of disabled and vulnerable residents is often compromised due to
their homes not meeting their specific needs, and this can impact on their ability to live with
dignity in their homes. The need for any adaptation will be assessed by an Occupational
Therapist unless it is a non- complex medical condition and then a trained trusted assessor
may carry out the assessment.

3. Disabled Facilities Grants
The Council has a statutory obligation to administer mandatory Disabled Facilities Grants
(DFGs) to provide aids and adaptations to enable disabled residents to live independently
within their own homes.
The eligibility requirements, scope of works, and the general requirements governing
mandatory DFGs are prescribed and the Council is unable to deviate from these requirements.
The Council is required to administer Disabled Facilities Grants to all eligible applicants
irrespective of their tenure, and the Council aims to work collaboratively with housing
associations to fund aids and adaptations within social housing wherever possible to ensure
everyone has the same opportunity to have their home adapted.
In some cases the use of Disabled Facilities Grants is able to assist with reducing the length
of stay in hospital and facilitating a quick return to home. This also reduces the demand for
residential care placements.

4

Page 60

4. Discretionary Top-up Grant
The Council have agreed to use discretionary powers to provide in eligible cases a top-up
award in addition to the £30,000 mandatory grant. In more complex cases the work required
often goes over the mandatory grant award maximum. This top-up of a maximum of £25,000
will assist to provide all the required work identified by the Occupational Therapist. In addition
to this, the 10% administration fee will also be eligible for the discretionary grant. The additional
£25,000 can only be accessed where the full £30,000 of mandatory grant has been utilised.
The discretionary element will be registered as a land charge if the works include alterations
to the property on owner occupied properties and, in the event the property is sold within a 10
year period, the Council require repayment. * Please see exception policy. In exceptional
circumstances where more than one DFG is approved, more than £25,000 may be registered.
The availability of the top-up grant is at the discretion of the Council and subject to availability
of funding. Any applications for the discretionary top up over £10,000 will be considered by
the Chair of Health and Housing Committee and the Director of the service.

5. Ribble Valley Adaptation Grant
For some households the means testing requirement makes them not eligible for assistance.
This often means the works are not carried out or don’t fully meet the person needs. The
Ribble Valley adaptation allows a grant to provide 2 items and the associated works to address
the needs of the applicant as recommended by the Occupational Therapist up to a maximum
of £10,000. This will fund the cost of 2 items prioritised by the Occupational Therapist. Where
the RVA is providing the calculated contribution, the applicant will still be eligible for further
items to be provided as a DFG. The applicant can then choose as to whether they fund the
remaining works themselves. The full grant will be registered as a land charge if the works
include alterations to the property on owner occupied properties and, in the event the property
is sold within a 10-year period, the Council require repayment. * Please see exception policy.
The availability of the Ribble Valley Adaptation Grant is at the discretion of the Council and is
subject to the availability of funding.

6. Review of the policy
The ability to provide Discretionary Top up and Ribble Valley Adaptation grants will be
reviewed quarterly with regard to financial capacity to award the discretionary element.
Mandatory grants will take priority.
The provision of Discretionary Top up and Ribble Valley Adaptation DFGs will be reported to
each Health and Housing Committee.
The policy will be reviewed annually by the Health and Housing Committee.

5

Page 61

Priority 1 – Assist disabled and vulnerable residents to remain in their homes through the provision of aids and adaptations
Scheme
Mandatory
Disabled
Facilities Grant

Assistance
Available
Maximum
assistance
per
application:

Page 62

Statutory
maximum:
£30,000
from Better
Care Fund
allocation

Purpose

Scope of Assistance

Eligibility

Scheme Conditions

Assistance to:

Aids and adaptations to:

Applications to include:

Meet the Council’s
statutory obligation to
assist disabled
residents to live
independently in their
homes

a) be recommended by
an Occupational
Therapist or a
trained assessor;

Applications considered
from:

b) meet the regulations
governing eligibility for
works, including:
 adaptations to aid
access into and
around the property;
 works to ensure the
safety of the
applicant;
 provision of suitable
bathroom or sleeping
facilities, heating,
and access to
lighting and power;
 provision of suitable
kitchen facilities or
adaptation of existing
kitchen, and;
 works to enable a
disabled resident to
care for dependent
residents.
6

a) disabled home owners;

a) completed application
form, and;

b) disabled tenants (both
in the private and social
housing sectors);

b) two estimates for the
works in the required
format

c) disabled persons living
at home with their
family, and;

Applications subject to:

d) parents or guardians of
a disabled child;

a) means test through
standard test of
resources, except where;
b) the grant is approved in
respect of a disabled child
under the age of 19
Works to be:
a) completed within 12
months of grant approval;
b) completed to the
satisfaction of the Council
c) 10% admin is charged for
the technical support and
administration of the grant

Scheme

Assistance
Available

Purpose

Scope of Assistance

Eligibility

Scheme Conditions
Grants in excess of £5,000
to be:
a) registered as a local
land charge against the
property if the works
include alterations to the
property on owner
occupied properties (ie,
not equipment)

Page 63

b) a maximum of £10,000
be repaid if the property
is sold, transferred, or
assigned within 10
years.
Ribble
Valley
Adaptation Grant

Maximum
As per
individual
DFG
grant
£10,000 +
10% admin
fee
Only
1
application
per 5 years.

Mandatory

Ribble Valley adaptation As per mandatory DFG
DFG only applicable for 2
items and associated
works to address the
needs of the applicant;
 provision of stair lift
 conversion bathroom to
wet room
 ceiling track hoist
 wash only bidet
 provision of ramps, half
steps and galvanised
rails

7

All scheme conditions are
the
same as Mandatory DFG
above except:
 no means test

Scheme

Disabled Facilities
Discretionary
Top up Grant

Page 64

Assistance
Available
To be
funded from
Better Care
Fund

Purpose

Maximum
assistance
per
application:

Assistance to:

Scope of Assistance

Eligibility

 the full grant will be
registered as a charge
against the property for
10 years, if the works
include alterations to the
property owner occupied
(ie, not equipment).

 access inside or
outside the property
 Any other adaptation
as recommended by
the OT or a trained
assessor

Aids and adaptations to
be:

a) provide top-up
funding to meet the (As set out above for
reasonable cost of Mandatory Disabled
£25,000
aids and
Facilities Grants)
from Better
adaptations to
Care Fund
assist the applicant
allocation
to live
+ admin fee
independently in
their home, where a
Disabled Facilities
Grant is approved
at the statutory
maximum and the
eligible expense
less contribution
also exceeds the
current maximum
(currently £30,000).

8

Scheme Conditions

Applications considered
from:
a) applicants for a
Mandatory Disabled
Facilities Grant, where
the eligible costs of the
work exceed the
mandatory grant
b) To be approved by
Chair of Health and
Housing Committee
and the Director of
Economic
Development and
Planning on an
individual basis

Applications to include:
a) No separate application assistance linked to
Mandatory DFG
application
Applications subject to:
a) means test through
standard test of
resources, except where
b) the grant is approved in
respect of a disabled
child under the age of 19

Scheme

Assistance
Available

Purpose

Scope of Assistance

Eligibility

Scheme Conditions
Works to be:
a) completed within 12
months of
application approval
b) completed to the
satisfaction of the
Council

Page 65

All the discretionary top up
grant amount to be:
a) registered as a local
land charge against the
property if the works
include alterations to the
property on owner
occupied properties (ie,
not equipment)
b) the full grant to be
repaid if the property is
sold, transferred, or
assigned within 10
years.

9

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
DECISION
RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO HEALTH AND HOUSING COMMITTEE
meeting date:
title:
submitted by:
principal author:

28 OCTOBER 2021
ALTERNATIVE SYSTEM FOR DOG WASTE / LITTER BINS
DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY SERVICES
JOHN HEAP

1

PURPOSE

1.1

To present to committee the recommendations of the Dog Fouling Working Group.

2

BACKGROUND

2.1

At the time of writing, the Council has around 560 litter / dog bins across the
borough. In line with a decision of Community Services Committee some years ago,
the majority of those bins are designated to accept litter and dog waste. In practice it
appears that many of the bins that are designated for dog waste only are used for
both purposes as well.

2.2

Of the total stock of bins, 42 are emptied by the dog wardens on a weekly basis.
These bins are often in locations frequented by dog walkers but inaccessible to the
refuse collection vehicles that service around 85% of the total. The remaining bins
are located in our parks and play areas and are serviced by the ground’s
maintenance team. Town Centre bins are also emptied as required by the early
morning street cleansing teams.

2.3

When the ‘dedicated’ dog waste bins were first deployed, they were emptied by the
refuse collection crews during their daily rounds. When the stock of those was
expanded substantially at a later date, it was recognized by committee that if they
were to be placed along dog walking routes, they would need to be serviced in some
other way, so the Council doubled the dog warden resources so that this new work
could be picked up by the wardens as part of their contracted duties.

2.4

Complaints have been received at times from staff whose duties include emptying
dog waste (in all of the teams involved) but appropriate personal protective
equipment is issued in each area and – for the most part – our staff carry out their
work as determined by the Council.

2.5

In order to examine this matter in more detail than is practical in a committee setting,
a working group was set up to investigate whether/how the Council can improve the
service substantially.

3

ISSUES

3.1

The Working Group was proposed by Health & Housing Committee against a
background of increased dog ownership and increasing evidence that more Ribble
Valley residents were walking regularly for exercise during the Covid Pandemic.

3.2

Complaints of full and overflowing bins have increased over the period and at the
same time, evidence of misuse of the bins and fly-tipping has mushroomed. When a
complaint originates from a resident or from a parish council however, the
explanation of what’s causing the problem is rarely seen as acceptable.

3.3

At the Working Group’s meeting held on 26 July 2021, a report was requested
examining the costs of practicalities associated with providing and servicing the bins
across the borough, with an assumed increase in numbers of bins in response to
growing demand. The theoretical limit set was a total of 800 bins.

3.4

The assumptions requested to underpin the report were that the number of bins
might reach that upper limit of 800 and that bins were to be emptied twice a week.

Page 67

The starting premise was that a new, standalone service could take over, but officers
advised that an alternative be considered using existing resources, supplemented by
a team of 3 new vehicles and appropriate personnel.
3.5

Both options were presented to a meeting of the working group on 15 October 2021,
and the comparison is included below for committee’s information. Both options are
based on a number of assumptions and the costs quoted are derived from current
prices/rates as accurately as possible.

3.6

In addition to whatever the measures might be introduced to improve the service, the
working group felt that it is important that a coordinated aware ness campaign should
be developed, covering publicity in the Council’s own media, in the local press and
on social media.

4.

ANALYSIS

4.1

The majority of our existing stock of bins is emptied once per week by refuse
collection crews as they pass. The remaining bins are emptied by grounds
maintenance staff or by dog wardens, so it is unlikely that any of those areas could
offer any saving in personnel or vehicles arising from giving up those peripheral
tasks.

4.1.1

Option 1
If we consider the creation of a new, dedicated team to take on the whole of the task,
emptying all the bins (up to a new maximum of 800) twice per week we need to
include travel time, so assume 10 minutes average per bin, per collection. (The
current actual task time ranges from around 1 minute for a wheeled bin when the
RCV can pull up right next to it to move them, to more than 10 minutes to access
remote locations or to clear up fly-tipping or overflows).
800 bins x 10 minutes

=

133.3 hours to empty each bin once

2 empties x 133.3 / 37

=

7.2 units, each with a vehicle

add 14% for holidays etc.

 8.2 units

Based on 1 man operation on street cleansing staff pay and including for some direct
oncosts:
Annual cost of personnel 8 x 25,323

=

£202,584

Each unit would need a vehicle. A Ford Transit, caged tipper vehicle is currently
available for £38,000 with Euro 6 diesel engine, or will be available at £60,000, full
electric (daily range 350km or 219 miles).
Because of the price difference and the fact that we don’t yet have charging facilities
in Salthill Depot for electric vehicles, the working group was content to proceed for
the moment, on the assumption that diesel engine vehicles would be the more likely
– at least initially.
8 x £38,000

=

£304,000 capital on vehicles

240 extra bins x £136.75 (Nov 2020 price)

=

£32,820 capital on bins

It is possible that some savings on vehicles could be made if the units worked in
teams of 2. However, to get through the workload, this would have to reduce the
average time per empty to 5 minutes. Given that travel time makes up the bulk of
this average (the teams have to cover 244 sq. miles twice in the week) it is doubtful
whether this is realistic.
Check No. 1
-2-

Page 68

800 bins x 2 empties per week/37 hours

=

43 bins per hour

So each unit must empty 43/4

=

11 bins per hour

=

5.45 mins / bin

So if 5 mins per empty were realistic, 4 units would just about get through the work
Check No. 2
7 RCV’s currently cover the borough and empty 85% of bins
In a week they travel 1985 km total
1985 x 0.62

=

1231 miles per total

If we assume that all bins could be collected once within this weekly mileage
Then 2 collections
At an average speed 20mph 2462/20
800 bins:

7386/800

=

2 x 1231

=

2462 miles per week

=

123.1 hours travel per week

=

7386 minutes travel per week

=

9.2 minutes travel per bin

This suggests that 10 minutes per bin is more realistic, and that 8 units would
therefore be needed to cover the borough (probably lone workers rather than teams
of 2).
4.1.2

Option 2
If we assume that all existing arrangements remain place, the service could be
enhanced by the addition of supplementary resources. Then, in simplistic terms, the
workload of the ‘new’ team is halved, as the service improvement is to move from
the existing level of 1 empty per week for the majority of bins to twice a week.
This leads, then, to a reduced-cost upgrade with the capital requirement being:
4 x £38,000

=

£152,000 capital on vehicles

240 extra bins x £136.75

=

£32,820 capital on bins

It seems reasonable to assume that the additional revenue cost would also be
halved to £112,210 based on half the number of additional staff, half the additional
fuel consumption etc.
4.2

Clearly, both options are based on a number of assumptions as to how the new
system could work. This service is one that is determined – to some degree – by
geography. Additional bins to cope with dog waste need to be deployed in areas
where dog owners walk frequently, and some of the demands that we have received
in recent months have been for bins to be placed in areas that are unapproachable
in motor vehicles. So if, for example, many of the additional bins were to be
deployed in more remote locations, the target service time of 10 minutes may be
unachievable, whereas the opposite may be true if all the new bins are placed
alongside roads.

-3-

Page 69

5

CONCLUSIONS

5.1

Based on the assumptions outlined above a new, dedicated litter and dog bin service
emptying all 800 bins twice per week would require a team of 8 operatives (with 8
vehicles). This includes no cover for sickness / holidays to ensure continuity of
service.
Capital investment for 8 vehicles

=

£ 304,000

Capital investment for 240 bins

=

£ 32,820

Total capital

=

£ 336,820

Annual revenue cost, personnel 8 x 25,323

=

£ 202,584

Fuel 2462 x 6.9 L/100km

=

£

8,834 Litres per annum

8834 x 1.34

=

£ 11,837 pa diesel cost

Indicative total annual revenue cost

=

£214,421

(This excludes some other costs such as tax / insurance / maintenance)
The fact that the cost of a dedicated service is so high illustrates vividly why the
Council decided in the past to opt for the efficiency of a weekly collection from most
bins using a hybrid delivery system, with some town centre bins receiving extra
attention as required.
5.2

Option 2 offers a more modest cost of £184,820 in capital and £112,210 extra
revenue cost per year. This option is dependent on existing arrangements remaining
in place.

5.3

In each case, the new capital assets will have to be incorporated into the Council’s
replacement programme, with the vehicles being replaced after 6 or 7 years (if
existing patterns continue) and the bins after anything between a couple of years to
20 or more! Although reference was made above to electric vehicles, cost
projections for diesel-engined trucks have been used to keep the costs down and in
recognition of the fact that we don’t yet have facilities in the Depot to charge electric
vehicles. (As a side issue, it is worth noting that there is no room in the Depot for an
additional 4 or 8 vehicles to park up at night).

5.4

Based on the information provided, the working group preferred to pursue Option 1
as a new, stand-alone service. The group did recognize, however, that in light of the
inevitable pressure on Council resources, Committee might be more comfortable
with the reduced costs of Option 2.
Committee ultimately will have to consider whether this is a reasonable ‘bid’ in the
budgeting process, given the provisional budget forecast reported by the Director of
Resources to last month’s meeting of Policy and Finance Committee.

6

RISK ASSESSMENT

6.1

Approval of this report may have the following implications:
Resources – There is no provision currently in the Council’s budget for these
new/supplementary services. The revenue and capital implications of both options
are included ion the body of the report, but each estimate is based on a number of
assumptions which are yet to be proven.

-4-

Page 70

If Committee are minded to support either of the options proposed, then the next
stage would be to recommend that option to Policy & Finance Committee as a
growth item to be included in the Council’s revenue budget from next year, and as a
bid for the capital resources outlined to be included in the Council’s capital
programme.
No resources have been identified at the time of writing to support either the revenue
growth or the capital investment.
Technical, Environmental & Legal – There are no technical obstacles to the service
enhancements included in the report, provide that the extra resources are available.
The service itself is not a statutory obligation, although many residents might argue
that there is a moral obligation to protect the environment of the area by offering this
service. The negative impact on the environment of dog faeces, whether bagged or
not, is well documented, including the health risk to those coming into direct contact
with dog faeces.
Political – There are no political implications arising as a direct result of this report
Reputation – The growing number of complaints from dog owners and others about
overflowing litter bins suggests that it is reasonable to conclude that there is an
expectation that the Council will respond to the increased use we’re seeing of our
litter and dog bins.
Equality and Diversity – No implications have been identified arising as a direct result
of this report.
7

RECOMMENDED THAT COMMITTEE

7.1

Decide which, if either of the options proposed to put forward to Policy & Finance
Committee as a growth item to be considered in the Council’s budgetary process for
the coming financial year.

7.2

Decide from what date the new services should become operational (and, therefore,
at which point both capital and revenue resources would be required).

DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY SERVICES

-5-

Page 71

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
HEALTH and HOUSING COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC HOUSING WORKING GROUP
DRAFT TERMS OF REFERENCE
General:
1. The Working Group has been constituted by the Health and Housing Committee.
2. Nominated members of the group:
Councillors: A Brown, R Elms, B Holden, M Robinson and R Sherras.
3. Three nominated Councillors of the group are required to be present to be quorate.
4. The Group does not have any delegated decision-making powers.
5. The Group will consult with the relevant Chairs of other service committees as
appropriate.
6. Meetings will be arranged as necessary to provide a policy steer to affordable housing
proposals, and to respond flexibly to strategic housing issues as they arise.
7. The minutes of any meetings will be reported to the Health and Housing Committee.
8. These terms of reference are to be reviewed annually.

Aims and objectives of the Group:
1. To aid the delivery of affordable and specialist housing in the borough.
2. To match the supply of homes in the borough with identified housing needs.
3. To promote understanding of the general housing needs of the local community and to
advise the Health and Housing Committee as appropriate.
4. To support the delivery of the strategic housing objectives 2018-2021 as agreed at the
Housing Forum.
5. To ensure group members are aware of proposals for affordable housing developments
in the borough
6. To provide guidance to members, on requests for advice regarding affordable housing
schemes.
7. To provide an informed response to affordable housing development proposals in the
borough.
8. To work in partnership with the Council’s preferred registered providers and Homes
England, to deliver the most needed housing in the right location.
In addition to the above, the Group will monitor the delivery of affordable and specialist
housing in the borough.

Revised September 2021 v1.0

Page 73

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
INFORMATION

RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO HEALTH AND HOUSING COMMITTEE
meeting date:
title:
submitted by:
principal author:

28 OCTOBER 2021
CAPITAL MONITORING 2021/22
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
ANDREW COOK

1

PURPOSE

1.1

To report the progress on this Committee’s 2021/22 capital programme for the period to the
end of September 2021.

1.2

Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities:


Community Objectives – none identified.



Corporate Priorities - to continue to be a well-managed council, providing efficient
services based on identified customer need.



Other Considerations – none identified.

2

2021/22 CAPITAL PROGRAMME BACKGROUND

2.1

Five capital schemes for this Committee’s original estimate budget, totalling £639,640, were
approved by the Special Policy and Finance Committee and Full Council at their meetings in
February 2021 and March 2021 respectively. This included four new scheme budgets for
2021/22 and budgets for two 2020/21 schemes that had been moved from the 2020/21 capital
programme to the 2021/22 capital programme.

2.2

In addition to the original estimate budget above, the following budget changes have been
made so far in 2021/22:


Three capital schemes were not completed by 31 March 2021 and had unspent budget
available at that date. The total unspent budget of £595,170 on those schemes, known
as slippage, has been moved into the 2021/22 capital programme budget, after approval
by this Committee in June 2021.



Since approval of the original estimate budget for this Committee, the Disabled Facilities
Grants (DFGs) funding for 2021/22 from Central Government has been confirmed as
£393,008. The DFGs scheme budget was initially set at £347,000 on the basis that this
would be changed to reflect the confirmed DFGs funding that was received. Therefore,
the DFGs 2021/22 budget was increased by £46,010 to £393,010.



Two additional capital schemes, with budgets totalling £55,740, were approved by Policy
and Finance Committee in March 2021.

2.3

As a result of the above, the total approved budget for this Committee’s capital programme
of eight schemes is £1,336,560. This is shown at Annex 1.

3

CAPITAL MONITORING 2021/22

3.1

The table overleaf summarises this Committee’s capital programme budget, expenditure to
date and remaining budget, as at the end of September 2021. Annex 1 shows the full capital
programme by scheme. Annex 2 shows scheme details, financial information and budget
holder comments to date for each scheme.

1 of 17
12-21hh

Page 75

Original
Estimate
2021/22
£
424,300

Budget
Moved
from
2020/21
£
215,340

Slippage
from
2020/21
£
595,170

Additional
Approvals
2021/22
£
101,750

Total
Approved
Budget
2021/22
£
1,336,560

Actual
Expenditure
including
commitments
as at end of
September
2021
£
271,826

Remaining
Budget as
at end of
September
2021
£
1,064,734

3.2

At the end of September 2021 £271,826 had been spent or committed. This is 20.3% of the
capital programme total approved budget for this Committee.

3.3

No schemes had been completed by the end of September 2021. Of the eight schemes in
the capital programme, two schemes will not be completed in-year, it is unlikely at this stage
that four of the schemes will be completed in-year and two schemes are on-going grants
schemes.

3.4

Progress on the schemes to date (remaining budgets shown in brackets) is as follows:


Disabled Facilities Grants (£704,584): Committed expenditure at the end of September
2021 was based on seventeen schemes approved in previous years and twenty-three
schemes approved so far in 2021/22. In addition to this, there were a further sixteen
applications working towards approval, five currently approved schemes where
additional approval may be required to fund further work now identified and there are
twenty-seven referrals from Occupational Therapists that may become formal
applications in the near future. Further referrals and applications are expected in-year.
With regard to the issues previously highlighted that have led to less schemes being
approved and completed so far in 2021/22, the technical officer capacity has increased
now that the surveyor vacancy is filled, but the limited availability of contractors to
quote/tender for works and complete works promptly post Covid-19 lockdown is an ongoing issue. Housing officers are considering options to attract more contractors to quote
for and complete works in shorter timescales and other measures to increase DFGs
spend.
At this stage, there is no certainty that the scheme budget will be fully committed by yearend. Any unspent budget at year-end will be rolled forward as slippage into 2022/23
because this scheme is financed by ring-fenced DFGs grant income from MHCLG and
some funding from Onward Homes.

2 of 17
12-21hh



Landlord/Tenant Grants (£186,740): Committed expenditure at the end of September
2021 was based on the one scheme approved previously and the grant was paid in
September 2021. No additional schemes have been approved so far in 2021/22. This
reflects reduced landlord interest in the scheme. The town centre health check work did
identify some under-used properties. Officers will follow up on these properties to identify
whether any could lead to Landlord/Tenant projects. Given this, at this stage it is unlikely
that the scheme budget will be fully committed by year-end.



Clitheroe Market Improvements (£78,600): The plans for the further phase of market
improvements, including the way forward for the bull-ring stalls, will be worked up by
officers. This work will commence later in 2021/22 to understand how the Covid-19
pandemic has changed the usage of the market. Following consultation with the market
traders, the plans will be reported to a future meeting of the Health and Housing
Committee for approval before work commences. In the meantime, minor works to make
the bull-ring stalls more weatherproof will be undertaken as a temporary improvement
measure.

Page 76



Replacement of Pest Control Van PK13 FJP (£13,800) and Replacement of Dog
Warden Van PE64 EYC (£13,500): The current vans are in good enough condition to
continue to be used throughout 2021/22, so the purchase of the new vans will now take
place in 2022/23.



Clitheroe Affordable Housing Scheme (£11,770): The property is still being
temporarily used as a homeless let until the Joiners Arms Flats 1 and 2 Renovation
scheme is completed, meaning the final refurbishment works are still to be completed.
At this stage, it is unlikely that this scheme will be completed in-year, based on it being
unlikely that the Joiners Arms Flats 1 and 2 Renovation scheme will be completed inyear, see below.



Joiners Arms Roof Renewal (£42,200): The preferred contractor has now been
selected for the roof renewal work, including the rendering work at the rear of the building.
The initial price from the preferred contractor is £43,050, which is £850 above budget. In
addition, there is currently a six-month delay on supply of the slate that must be used on
the roof and the price of the slate will rise by 8% from early 2022, meaning the scheme
cost is likely to increase further. The work has been ordered on this basis and additional
budget approval will be requested at revised estimate budget stage. Given the current
six-month delay on slate supply, at this stage it is unlikely that this scheme will be
completed in 2021/22.



Joiners Arms Flats 1 and 2 Renovation (£13,540): This scheme will now be
undertaken as soon as possible after the Joiners Arms roof renewal and rendering works
are complete. At this stage, the scheme is unlikely to be completed in 2021/22 because
the roof renewal scheme is subject to a six-month delay on slate supply.

4

CONCLUSION

4.1

At the end of September 2021 £271,826 had been spent or committed. This is 20.3% of the
capital programme total approved budget for this Committee.

4.2

No schemes had been completed by the end of September 2021. Of the eight schemes in
the capital programme, two schemes will not be completed in-year, it is unlikely at this stage
that four of the schemes will be completed in-year and two schemes are on-going grants
schemes.

SENIOR ACCOUNTANT

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

HH12-21/AC/AC
15 October 2021
For further information please ask for Andrew Cook
BACKGROUND PAPERS – None

3 of 17
12-21hh

Page 77

ANNEX 1
Health and Housing Committee – Capital Programme 2021/22

Cost
Centre

Scheme

Page 78

DISCP

Disabled Facilities Grants

LANGR

Landlord/Tenant Grants

CMIMP

Clitheroe Market Improvements

PVFJP

Original
Estimate
2021/22
£

Budget
Moved from
2020/21
£

Slippage
from
2020/21
£

Additional
Approvals
2021/22
£

Total
Approved
Budget
2021/22
£

Actual
Expenditure
including
Remaining
commitments Budget as
as at end of
at end of
September
September
2021
2021
£
£

347,000

0

567,500

46,010

960,510

255,926

704,584

50,000

136,740

15,900

0

202,640

15,900

186,740

0

78,600

0

0

78,600

0

78,600

Replacement of Pest Control Van PK13 FJP

13,800

0

0

0

13,800

0

13,800

PVEYC

Replacement of Dog Warden Van PE64 EYC

13,500

0

0

0

13,500

0

13,500

CLIAH

Clitheroe Affordable Housing Scheme

0

0

11,770

0

11,770

0

11,770

JROOF

Joiners Arms Roof Renewal

0

0

0

42,200

42,200

0

42,200

JRENO

Joiners Arms Flats 1 and 2 Renovation

0

0

0

13,540

13,540

0

13,540

424,300

215,340

595,170

101,750

1,336,560

271,826

1,064,734

Total Health and Housing Committee

4 of 17
12-21hh

ANNEX 2

Individual Scheme Details and Budget Holder Comments
Disabled Facilities Grants
Service Area: Housing and Regeneration
Head of Service: Colin Hirst
Brief Description of the Scheme:
The scheme provides grant aid to adapt homes so elderly and disabled occupants can remain in their own home. The
grants can provide for minor adaptation, for example the installation of a stair lift, up to the provision of a bathroom and
bedroom extension.
Revenue Implications:
Administration fees are paid to the Council for any individual Disabled Facilities Grants scheme that the Council
administers. The actual administration fee income varies each year, dependent on the number and value of schemes
completed in-year.
Timescale for Completion:
The Disabled Facilities Grants budget operates throughout the financial year.
Capital Cost:

Original Estimate 2021/22

£
347,000

Slippage from 2020/21

567,500

Additional Approvals 2021/22

Actual
Expenditure
including
commitments
as at end of
September
2021
£

Remaining
Budget as at
end of
September
2021
£

46,010

Total Approved Budget 2021/22

960,510

ANTICIPATED TOTAL SCHEME COST

960,510

255,926

704,584

Progress - Budget Holder Comments
September 2021: Committed expenditure at the end of September 2021 was based on seventeen schemes approved in
previous years and twenty-three schemes approved so far in 2021/22. In addition to this, there were a further sixteen
applications working towards approval, five currently approved schemes where additional approval may be required to
fund further work now identified and there are twenty-seven referrals from Occupational Therapists that may become
formal applications in the near future. Further referrals and applications are expected in-year.
With regard to the issues previously highlighted that have led to less schemes being approved and completed so far in
2021/22, the technical officer capacity has increased now that the surveyor vacancy is filled, but the limited availability of
contractors to quote/tender for works and complete works promptly post Covid-19 lockdown is an on-going issue.
Housing officers are considering options to attract more contractors to quote for and complete works in shorter
timescales and other measures to increase DFGs spend.
At this stage, there is no certainty that the scheme budget will be fully committed by year-end. Any unspent budget at
year-end will be rolled forward as slippage into 2022/23 because this scheme is financed by ring-fenced DFGs grant
income from MHCLG and some funding from Onward Homes.
5 of 17
12-21hh

Page 79

July 2021: Committed expenditure at the end of July 2021 was based on seventeen schemes approved in previous
years and twelve schemes approved so far in 2021/22. In addition to this, there were a further twenty one applications
working towards approval, two currently approved schemes where additional approval may be required to fund further
work now identified and there are twenty six referrals from Occupational Therapists that may become formal applications
in the near future. Further referrals and applications are expected in-year.
The number of schemes approved and completed so far in 2021/22 has been significantly reduced. This is because of
the limited availability of contractors to quote/tender for works and complete works post Covid-19 lockdown and reduced
technical officer capacity between April and July due to a vacancy on the Surveyors team. The technical officer capacity
should increase because the Surveyors team vacancy has been filled, but limited contractor availability is likely to remain
an issue for the foreseeable future.
At this stage, there is no certainty that the scheme budget will be fully committed by year-end. Any unspent budget at
year-end will be rolled forward as slippage into 2022/23 because this scheme is financed by ring-fenced DFGs grant
income from MHCLG and some funding from Onward Homes.

6 of 17
12-21hh

Page 80

ANNEX 2

Individual Scheme Details and Budget Holder Comments
Landlord/Tenant Grants
Service Area: Housing and Regeneration
Head of Service: Colin Hirst
Brief Description of the Scheme:
The scheme match funds a landlord’s investment in a property in return for an affordable rental property. Conditions of
the grant are nomination rights and a set rent level in line with LHA. The scheme is crucial for move-on accommodation
for families in temporary accommodation as the social housing waiting list is so long. The scheme is also used to bring
empty properties back into use.
Revenue Implications:
Administration fees are paid to the Council for any individual Landlord/Tenant Grants scheme that the Council
administers. The actual administration fee income varies each year, dependent on the number and value of schemes
completed in-year.
Timescale for Completion:
The Landlord/Tenant Grants budget operates throughout the financial year.
Capital Cost:

Original Estimate 2021/22

£
50,000

Budget Moved from 2020/21

136,740

Slippage from 2020/21

Actual
Expenditure
including
commitments
as at end of
September
2021
£

Remaining
Budget as at
end of
September
2021
£

15,900

Total Approved Budget 2021/22

202,640

ANTICIPATED TOTAL SCHEME COST

202,640

15,900

186,740

Progress - Budget Holder Comments
September 2021: Committed expenditure at the end of September 2021 was based on the one scheme approved
previously and the grant was paid in September 2021. No additional schemes have been approved so far in 2021/22.
This reflects reduced landlord interest in the scheme. The town centre health check work did identify some under-used
properties. Officers will follow up on these properties to identify whether any could lead to Landlord/Tenant projects.
Given this, at this stage it is unlikely that the scheme budget will be fully committed by year-end.
July 2021: Committed expenditure at the end of July 2021 was based on one scheme approved in 2019/20. The
scheme works are complete and payment of the grant is expected by September 2021. No additional schemes have
been approved so far in 2021/22. This reflects reduced landlord interest in the scheme. However, as part of the town
centre health check work officers are assessing opportunities of under-used and vacant properties, which may identify
some properties which could lead to Landlord/Tenant projects.

7 of 17
12-21hh

Page 81

ANNEX 2

Individual Scheme Details and Budget Holder Comments
Clitheroe Market Improvements
Service Area: Clitheroe Market
Head of Service/Director: Heather Barton/Nicola Hopkins
Brief Description of the Scheme:
This scheme budget of £175,000 is now focussed on officers developing plans for market improvements, after
consultation with the Market traders, and these plans being reported to Health and Housing Committee.
NOTE – The initial phase of market improvement works was completed in 2019/20 and 2020/21. This focussed
on erecting new uniform canopies on all cabins, hand painting fascia signs on all cabins and refurbishing the
market toilets. There is £78,600 budget available for 2021/22 onwards for a further phase of market
improvements. The plans for this further phase will be worked up by officers. Following consultation with the
market traders, the plans will be reported to a future meeting of the Health and Housing Committee for approval
before work commences.
Revenue Implications:
To be confirmed - dependent on the proposals developed for approval.
Timescale for Completion:
To be confirmed - dependent on the proposals developed for approval.
Capital Cost:
Actual
Expenditure
including
commitments
as at end of
September
2021
£

£
Original Estimate 2021/22

Remaining
Budget as at
end of
September
2021
£

0

Budget Moved from 2020/21

78,600

Total Approved Budget 2021/22

78,600

Actual Expenditure 2019/20

88,139

Actual Expenditure 2020/21

8,165

ANTICIPATED TOTAL SCHEME COST

0

78,600

174,904

Progress - Budget Holder comments:
September 2021: The plans for the further phase of market improvements, including the way forward for the bull-ring
stalls, will be worked up by officers. This work will commence later in 2021/22 to understand how the Covid-19 pandemic
has changed the usage of the market. Following consultation with the market traders, the plans will be reported to a
future meeting of the Health and Housing Committee for approval before work commences. In the meantime, minor
works to make the bull-ring stalls more weatherproof will be undertaken as a temporary improvement measure.

8 of 17
12-21hh

Page 82

July 2021: The plans for this further phase of market improvements, including the way forward for the bull-ring stalls, will
be worked up by officers. This work will commence later in 2021/22 to understand how the Covid-19 pandemic has
changed the usage of the market. Following consultation with the market traders, the plans will be reported to a future
meeting of the Health and Housing Committee for approval before work commences.
November 2020: The work on the initial phase of market improvements is now complete. The unspent budget from this
initial phase of works, £21,600, is to be added to the budget of £57,000 already set aside for a further phase of market
improvements. The plans for this further phase, including the way forward for the bull-ring stalls, will be worked up by
officers in 2021. Following consultation with the market traders, the plans will be reported to a future meeting of the
Health and Housing Committee for approval before work commences.
Given the above, the further phase of works will not be undertaken in 2020/21. It is recommended that the 2020/21
revised estimate for the scheme is reduced to £8,260 and that the remaining budget of £78,600 is moved to the 2021/22
financial year.
August 2020: The work on the initial phase of market improvements is now complete, save for the removal of stalls in the
bull-ring and purchase of pop-up stalls element of work being put on-hold. This is because the removal of stalls in the bullring is being reconsidered following a recent increase in trader demand for stalls.
The unspent budget from this initial phase of works, £21,643, is to be added to the budget of £57,000 already set aside
for a further phase of market improvements. The plans for this further phase, including the way forward for the bull-ring
stalls, will be worked up by officers in early 2021. This will allow for consultation with the market traders following the busy
Christmas period and the plans will be reported to a future meeting of the Health and Housing Committee for approval
before work commences. Given this, the further phase of works will not be undertaken in 2020/21 and approval will be
sought from members to move the remaining scheme budget into 2021/22 when the revised estimate capital programme
is presented for approval in January 2021.
March 2020: The majority of the initial phase of market improvement works was completed in-year. The underspend
was due to the cabins canopies quotes being lower than the budget set-aside, three canopy installations still to be
confirmed as installed correctly, no payments being made in-year for the sign-writing and no expenditure in-year on the
removal of the current stalls and purchase of pop-up stalls.
Slippage of £29,860 will be used to fund completion of the initial phase of market improvements in the first instance and
then any remaining budget will be added to the £57,000 budget already moved to 2020/21 for the further phase of
improvement works.
November 2019: The initial phase of work comprises erecting new uniform canopies on all cabins, hand painting fascia
signs on all cabins, refurbishing the market toilets and removing all stalls in the bullring. The first batch of canopies
installations are complete and the market toilets will be open to the public by Christmas 2019.
Some further work on the market toilets will take place in early 2020, alongside the work to complete the installation of all
the canopies, hand paint the fascia signs, remove the stalls from the bull ring and purchase pop up stalls. The work is
currently expected to be completed by the end of February 2020.
September 2019: Initial work on this scheme was approved by this Committee in September 2019. This initial phase of
work comprises erecting new uniform canopies on all cabins, hand painting fascia signs on all cabins, refurbishing the
market toilets and removing all stalls in the bull-ring. This work is currently being programmed in and the work is
expected to be completed by early 2020.
An overall budget of £118,000 has been set aside for this initial work in 2019/20. It is currently planned to move any
unspent budget on the scheme at year-end into the 2020/21 financial year and to bring a report to a future meeting of
this Committee in respect of any further improvements proposed to the Market.
July 2019: Initial plans to use part of the budget on this scheme are reported to this Committee elsewhere on this
agenda. If approved, this initial work will comprise erecting new uniform canopies on all cabins, hand painting fascia
signs on all cabins, refurbishing the market toilets and removing all stalls in the bull-ring. The budgeted cost of this initial
work is to be confirmed by this Committee and the work is expected to be completed by March 2020. It is proposed to
bring a further report to this Committee in respect of any further improvements proposed to the Market.
9 of 17
12-21hh

Page 83

December 2018: This scheme remains on hold, awaiting the final plans for the Clitheroe Market Development scheme.
As a result, there is expected to be no expenditure on the scheme in 2018/19. It is recommended that the £175,000
budget for this scheme is moved to the 2019/20 financial year and the 2018/19 revised estimate is nil.
September 2018: No change - The scheme remains on hold, awaiting the final plans for the Clitheroe Market
Development scheme.
July 2018: No change - The Clitheroe Market Improvements scheme is on hold, awaiting the final plans for the Clitheroe
Market Development scheme.
November/December 2017: This scheme is on hold, awaiting the final plans for the Clitheroe Market Development
scheme. As a result, there is expected to be no expenditure on the scheme in 2017/18. It is recommended that the
£175,000 budget for this scheme is moved to the 2018/19 financial year.
August/September 2017: No change - The Clitheroe Market Improvements scheme is on hold, awaiting the final plans
for the Clitheroe Market Development scheme.
July 2017: No change - The Clitheroe Market Improvements scheme is on hold, awaiting the final plans for the Clitheroe
Market Development scheme.
December 2016: The Clitheroe Market Improvements scheme is on hold, awaiting the final plans for the Clitheroe
Market Development scheme.
September 2016: The Clitheroe Market Improvements scheme is on hold, awaiting the final plans for the Clitheroe Market
Development scheme.
July 2016: No change to May 2016 comments.
May 2016: The Clitheroe Market Improvements scheme budget was initially approved in 2015, before the Clitheroe
Market Development scheme plans were announced. The detail of the Clitheroe Market Improvements scheme will be
reviewed to take into account and complement the final plans for the Clitheroe Market Development scheme. No
expenditure will take place until that detail has been confirmed.

10 of 17
12-21hh

Page 84

ANNEX 2

Individual Scheme Details and Budget Holder Comments
Replacement of Pest Control Van PK13 FJP
Service Area: Dog Warden & Pest Control
Head of Service: Heather Barton
Brief Description of the Scheme:
The current van (Fiat Doblo 1.3 SX Panel Van) is required to transport pest control staff to various sites around the
borough to carry out their work. The van was 7 years old in May 2020 and initially programmed for replacement at that
point. However, a review of the van in 2019 identified that the van was in good enough condition to move back the
planned replacement from 2020/21 to 2021/22.
The bid is for the purchase of the basic van plus additional adaptations to make the van fit for pest control purposes.
Revenue Implications:
There are no additional revenue implications above those of the existing van.
Timescale for Completion:
2021/22
Capital Cost:

Total Approved Budget 2021/22

£
13,800

ANTICIPATED TOTAL SCHEME COST

13,800

Actual
Expenditure
including
commitments
as at end of
September
2021
£

Remaining
Budget as at
end of
September
2021
£
0
13,800

Progress - Budget Holder comments:
September 2021: The current van is in good enough condition to continue to be used throughout 2021/22, so the purchase
of the new van will now take place in 2022/23.
July 2021: Procurement of the new van has been put on hold in-year. This is because the Pest Control service is part of
the Environmental Health Services team and available management and staff time on the team has been focussed on
other priority areas of work so far this year due to on-going staff vacancies within the team and additional pressures caused
by Covid-19. At this stage, it is unclear whether the van purchase will take place in-year.

11 of 17
12-21hh

Page 85

ANNEX 2

Individual Scheme Details and Budget Holder Comments
Replacement of Dog Warden Van PE64 EYC
Service Area: Dog Warden & Pest Control
Head of Service: Heather Barton
Brief Description of the Scheme:
The current van (Fiat Doblo 1.3 SX Panel Van) will be 7 years old and ready for replacement in May 2021. The van is
required to transport dog warden staff to various sites around the borough to carry out their work.
The bid is for the purchase of the basic van plus additional adaptations to make the van fit for dog warden purposes.
Revenue Implications:
There are no additional revenue implications above those of the existing van.
Timescale for Completion:
2021/22
Capital Cost:

Total Approved Budget 2021/22

£
13,500

ANTICIPATED TOTAL SCHEME COST

13,500

Actual
Expenditure
including
commitments
as at end of
September
2021
£

Remaining
Budget as at
end of
September
2021
£
0
13,500

Progress - Budget Holder comments:
September 2021: The current van is in good enough condition to continue to be used throughout 2021/22, so the purchase
of the new van will now take place in 2022/23.
July 2021: Procurement of the new van has been put on hold in-year. This is because the Dog Warden service is part of
the Environmental Health Services team and available management and staff time on the team has been focussed on
other priority areas of work so far this year due to on-going staff vacancies within the team and additional pressures caused
by Covid-19. At this stage, it is unclear whether the van purchase will take place in-year.

12 of 17
12-21hh

Page 86

ANNEX 2

Individual Scheme Details and Budget Holder Comments
Clitheroe Affordable Housing Scheme
Service Area: Housing and Regeneration
Head of Service: Colin Hirst
Brief Description of the Scheme:
The purchase of one property in Clitheroe to be rented out as an affordable rental unit, utilising commuted sum monies.
The property will be leased to a registered provider and the Council will have 100% nomination rights and the rent will be
capped at LHA rate. This scheme was approved by Policy and Finance Committee in November 2020.
NOTE – Final refurbishment budget now slipped to 2021/22, as the property was being used temporarily as a
homeless let at 2020/21 year-end.
Revenue Implications:
Annual lease income from the registered provider, set against yearly repairs and building insurance costs under the
terms of the lease. Depreciation will also be charged to the cost centre each year.
Timescale for Completion:
Purchase the property in 2020/21.
Capital Cost:
Actual
Expenditure
including
commitments
as at end of
September
2021
£

£
Original Estimate 2021/22

Remaining
Budget as at
end of
September
2021
£

0

Slippage from 2020/21

11,770

Total Approved Budget 2021/22

11,770

Actual Expenditure 2020/21

129,067

ANTICIPATED TOTAL SCHEME COST

140,837

0

11,770

Progress - Budget Holder comments:
September 2021: The property is still being temporarily used as a homeless let until the Joiners Arms Flats 1 and 2
Renovation scheme is completed, meaning the final refurbishment works are still to be completed. At this stage, it is
unlikely that this scheme will be completed in-year, based on it being unlikely that the Joiners Arms Flats 1 and 2
Renovation scheme will be completed in-year.
July 2021: The scheme was put on hold in January 2021 whilst the property was temporarily used as a homeless let. This
means the final refurbishment works are still to be completed. The property is still being temporarily used as a homeless
let until the Joiners Arms Flats 1 and 2 Renovation scheme is completed. It is unclear whether this scheme will be
completed in-year, based on it being unclear when the Joiners Arms Flats 1 and 2 Renovation scheme will be completed.

13 of 17
12-21hh

Page 87

March 2021: The property was purchased in-year and some of the planned refurbishment work was completed also.
However, scheme completion was put on hold in January 2021 whilst the property was temporarily used as a homeless
let. The homeless let was on-going at 2020/21 financial year-end. Slippage of £11,770 into 2021/22 is requested to fund
the final refurbishment works required in 2021/22.
November 2020: There was no spend by the end of November 2020, but the property was purchased in December 2020.
The refurbishment works are planned for early 2021, which means the scheme is planned to be completed in-year.

14 of 17
12-21hh

Page 88

ANNEX 2

Individual Scheme Details and Budget Holder Comments
Joiners Arms Roof Renewal
Service Area: Housing and Regeneration
Head of Service: Colin Hirst
Brief Description of the Scheme:
The existing roof coverings on the property (main & extension roofs) have reached the end of their expected life span,
the roof felt has become brittle and perished in places and there are significant numbers of visibly broken tiles. It is
anticipated that the majority of the roof tiles are degraded and brittle beyond repair. The chimneys and associated
flashings and mortar flaunching etc. are in need of repair work, as are the rainwater goods. Replacement of the roof
covering will require installation of additional insulation in the roof between the rafters to comply with Building
Regulations. The property is a Grade II Listed Building, this scheme proposes to remove and replace the existing roof
covering to ensure the fabric of the building is protected from further water ingress and the property is fit-for-purpose inline with the Council's policies. The existing covering will be removed and replaced with Blue Slate as per the
requirements of RVBC's Planning department.
NOTE – Scheme brought forward from 2023/24 to the 2021/22 capital programme through Policy and Finance
Committee approval on 30 March 2021. As part of bringing forward the scheme, members approved that the
rendering work at the rear of the building is added to the works to be undertaken. If this increases the quotes
received to an amount higher than the current scheme budget, then the issue is to be raised with senior officers
to then agree a way forward for the additional work.
Revenue Implications:
Lost rent income implications, only if any of the flats become uninhabitable, but work should be scheduled without the
need to close any of the rooms during the scheme.
Timescale for Completion:
It is anticipated that the works will take 6-8 weeks to fully complete.
Capital Cost:
Actual
Expenditure
including
commitments
as at end of
September
2021
£

£
Original Estimate 2021/22

Remaining
Budget as at
end of
September
2021
£

0

Additional Approvals 2021/22

42,200

Total Approved Budget 2021/22

42,200

ANTICIPATED TOTAL SCHEME COST

42,200

0

42,200

Progress - Budget Holder comments:
September 2021: The preferred contractor has now been selected for the roof renewal work, including the rendering work
at the rear of the building. The initial price from the preferred contractor is £43,050, which is £850 above budget. In addition,
there is currently a six-month delay on supply of the slate that must be used on the roof and the price of the slate will rise
by 8% from early 2022, meaning the scheme cost is likely to increase further. The work has been ordered on this basis
and additional budget approval will be requested at revised estimate budget stage. Given the current six-month delay on
slate supply, at this stage it is unlikely that this scheme will be completed in 2021/22.
15 of 17
12-21hh

Page 89

July 2021: This scheme is held up by the difficulty in identifying enough contractors prepared to quote for the works post
Covid-19 lockdown. At the end of July 2021, one further contractor quote was still needed before the preferred contractor
could be selected. Once the preferred contractor is selected, works completion will then be dependent on contractor
timescales. Given this, it is unclear whether this scheme will be completed in-year.

16 of 17
12-21hh

Page 90

ANNEX 2

Individual Scheme Details and Budget Holder Comments
Joiners Arms Flats 1 and 2 Renovation
Service Area: Housing and Regeneration
Head of Service: Colin Hirst
Brief Description of the Scheme:
Flats 1 and 2 at the Joiners Arms homelessness unit had to be taken out of service at short notice in February 2021 due
to serious water ingress and damp problems. In addition, both flats required redecoration and replacement of damaged
and dangerous flooring. Kitchen renovation was also required in Flat 1 because the kitchen units were damaged and could
not be maintained to a clean and hygienic standard.
These units are two of the larger self-contained family flats which brings pressure on the service to accommodate users
who need these larger units to meet their needs. Therefore, in March 2021 Policy and Finance Committee approved a
new capital scheme for the renovation of flats 1 and 2 at Joiners Arms in 2021/22 to ensure the work can be
progressed alongside the roof renewal scheme and that the flats are brought back into use as soon as possible.
Revenue Implications:
None – this is renovation of existing flats at the Council’s homelessness units.
Timescale for Completion:
2021/22
Capital Cost:
Actual
Expenditure
including
commitments
as at end of
September
2021
£

£
Original Estimate 2021/22

Remaining
Budget as at
end of
September
2021
£

0

Additional Approvals 2021/22

13,540

Total Approved Budget 2021/22

13,540

ANTICIPATED TOTAL SCHEME COST

13,540

0

13,540

Progress - Budget Holder comments:
September 2021: This scheme will now be undertaken as soon as possible after the Joiners Arms roof renewal and
rendering works are complete. At this stage, the scheme is unlikely to be completed in 2021/22 because the roof renewal
scheme is subject to a six-month delay on slate supply.
July 2021: This scheme is held up by the difficulty in identifying enough contractors prepared to quote for the works post
Covid-19 lockdown. At the end of July 2021, one further contractor quote was still needed before the preferred contractor
could be selected. Once the preferred contractor is selected, works completion will then be dependent on contractor
timescales. Given this, it is unclear whether this scheme will be completed in-year.
17 of 17
12-21hh

Page 91

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
INFORMATION

RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO HEALTH AND HOUSING COMMITTEE
meeting date:
title:
submitted by:
principal author:

28 OCTOBER 2021
REVENUE MONITORING 2021/22
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
ANDREW COOK

1

PURPOSE

1.1

To provide this Committee with information relating to the progress of the 2021/22
revenue budget, as at the end of September 2021.

1.2

Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities:


Community Objectives – none identified.



Corporate Priorities - to continue to be a well-managed council providing efficient
services based on identified customer need.



Other Considerations – none identified.

2

REVENUE MONITORING 2021/22

2.1

Shown below, by cost centre, is a comparison between actual expenditure and the
original estimate budget for the period April 2021 to September 2021. You will see an
overall underspend of £50,564 on the net cost of services, after allowing for transfers to
and from earmarked reserves. Please note that underspends and additional income are
denoted by figures with a minus symbol.

Cost
Centre

Cost Centre Name

AFHOU

Affordable Rent Properties

APLAC

Alma Place Unit

AWARM

Affordable Warmth

Net Budget
for the Full
Year
£
-3,000

Net
Budget to
the end of
September
2021
£
-5,352

Actual
including
Commitments
to the end of
September
2021
£
-3,917

Variance
£
1,435

G

2,350

-148

-781

-633

G

70

36

0

-36

G

CLAIR

Clean Air

1,870

266

338

72

G

CLAND

Contaminated Land

9,360

0

0

0

G

CLCEM

Clitheroe Cemetery

39,200

-1,754

-21,683

-19,929

R

CLDCY

Closed Churchyards

5,320

4,213

4,058

-155

G

CLMKT

Clitheroe Market

-38,660

-104,327

-114,236

-9,909

R

CMGHH

Community Groups - Health &
Housing

20,390

0

0

0

G

COMNL

Common Land

2,400

348

0

-348

G

CTBEN

Localised Council Tax Support
Admin

167,920

-17,104

-24,558

-7,454

R

DOGWD

Dog Warden & Pest Control

126,750

5,824

5,378

-446

G

1 of 15
13-21hh

Page 93

Cost
Centre

Cost Centre Name

Net Budget
for the Full
Year
£

Net
Budget to
the end of
September
2021
£

Actual
including
Commitments
to the end of
September
2021
£

Variance
£

339,360

-74,010

-79,908

-5,898

R

146,590

226,952

327,940

100,988

R

6,130

222

0

-222

G

29,370

-50,116

-59,471

-9,355

R

6,510

0

0

0

G

HGBEN

Environmental Health
Services
Housing Benefits

HOMEE

Home Energy Conservation

HOMES

Homelessness Strategy

HSASS

Housing Associations

HSTRA

Housing Strategy

47,880

6,372

5,769

-603

G

IMPGR

Improvement Grants

74,200

-14,384

-14,390

-6

G

JARMS

Joiners Arms

42,840

6,482

8,067

1,585

G

SHARE

Shared Ownership Rents

-460

-1,330

-1,329

1

G

SUPPE

Supporting People

7,420

200

-33,351

-33,551

R

UCRED

Universal Credit

22,400

-2,880

-1,106

1,774

G

1,056,210

-20,490

-3,180

17,310

-70

-36

0

36

Housing Related Grants Reserve Flexible Homelessness Support Grant

-18,560

0

0

0

Housing Related Grants Reserve Homelessness Reduction Act Funding

-6,460

0

0

0

Housing Related Grants Reserve Homelessness Prevention Grant

67,910

67,910

0

-67,910

Equipment Reserve - Joiners Arms
Furniture and Equipment

-500

0

0

0

1,098,530

47,384

-3,180

-50,564

ENVHT

Total Health and Housing Committee
Transfers to/(from) Earmarked
Reserves
Housing Related Grants Reserve Affordable Warmth Grant

Total after transfers to/(from)
Earmarked Reserves

Key to Variance shading

2.2

2 of 15
13-21hh

Variance of £5,000 or more (Red)

R

Variance between £2,000 and £4,999 (Amber)

A

Variance less than £2,000 (Green)

G

The red variances highlight specific areas of high concern, for which budget holders are
required to have an action plan. Amber variances are potential areas of high concern
and green variances are areas which currently do not present any significant concern.

Page 94

2.3

The main variances between budget and actuals on individual budget codes within cost
centres have also been highlighted and explained, as follows:


Red budget code variances (£5,000 or more) are shown with the budget holder’s
comments and agreed actions in Annex 1.



Amber budget code variances (£2,000 to £4,999) are shown with the budget
holder’s comments in Annex 2.

2.4

The largest overspend to date is the Housing Benefits rent allowance net overspend of
£103,260. However, there will be no significant rent allowance net overspend at yearend, because the total rent allowances paid in-year will be broadly funded by rent
allowance subsidy grant income received from the DWP at year-end.

2.5

Additional Domestic Abuse Support new burdens funding of £33,351 has been received
from MHCLG in-year. The budget will be amended at revised estimate stage to reflect
the additional funding and any associated in-year new burdens spend identified.

2.6

Outlined below are the other main variances to the end of September 2021 that are
unlikely to be rectified by the end of the financial year:

3 of 15
13-21hh



Clitheroe Market/Stalls (-£6,117): Higher stalls demand from traders than
budgeted for, reflecting the on-going increased popularity of the market among
shoppers and traders post Covid-19 lockdown in this demand-led fluctuating service
area.



Environmental Health Services/Street Trading Licence Income (-£5,770):
Several new street trading licences issued since the start of the financial year, which
has resulted in increased income in this demand-led fluctuating service area.



Localised Council Tax Support Admin/Admin Grant (-£5,446): Local Council Tax
Support Administration funding received from MHCLG for 2021/22 is higher than
budgeted for. The Council was not notified of the yearly funding level until after the
original estimate budget was set.



Homelessness Strategy/Homelessness Temporary Accommodation (-£5,422):
There is an on-going impact from Covid-19 on homelessness and homelessness
temporary accommodation costs for the year to date are currently being covered by
un-ring fenced MHCLG Covid-19 funding under the Policy and Finance Committee
budget. The impact for this Committee is an underspend to date on the normal
homelessness temporary accommodation budget.



Clitheroe Cemetery/Monument Fees (-£2,656): There have been a higher number
of requests for grave headstones and ashes plaques memorials than budgeted for,
in this demand-led fluctuating income area.



Housing Benefits/DWP – Pensions Credit Uplift New Burdens (-£2,066):
Additional funding received in-year from the DWP to reflect the burden on the
Council of administering the pensions credit uplift changes in-year. This funding was
not anticipated at original estimate budget stage.



Dog Warden & Pest Control/Domestic Rodent Pest Treatments (+£2,461):
There has been less demand for rodent pest control treatment than budgeted for in
the first half of the year and there has been some sickness absence.



Joiners Arms/Dwelling Rents (+£4,330): Lower occupancy at the Joiners Arms
homelessness unit than anticipated at budget setting stage. This is mainly due to
flats 1 and 2 being out of service since the end of March 2021 due to damp and
water ingress issues.

Page 95



Environmental Health Services/Private Water Samples (+£4,696): No private
water supplies risk assessment and samples work has been undertaken for the
year to date, due to on-going vacancies within the Environmental Health team,
meaning that available staff time has been focussed on other priority areas of work
for the year to date.

3

HOMELESSNESS PREVENTION GRANT 2021/22

3.1

At original estimate budget stage, we had just received notification from MHCLG that
new Homelessness Prevention Grant funding would be received in 2021/22 and that this
new grant would replace the previously separate Flexible Homelessness Support Grant
and Homelessness Reduction Act funding allocations received in previous years.

3.2

At that stage, the new Homelessness Prevention Grant funding of £67,912 received in
2021/22 was planned to be transferred to a new Homelessness Prevention Grant
earmarked reserve and additional homelessness costs in 2021/22 were to be funded by
transfers from amounts previously set aside in the Flexible Homelessness Support Grant
and Homelessness Reduction Act funding earmarked reserves.

3.3

Since the original estimate budget was set the following changes have been made with
regard to the homelessness funding allocation and transfers to and from reserves:


MHCLG have confirmed that the Homelessness Prevention Grant paid to councils
in 2021/22 must be used to help fund homelessness net expenditure in-year.
Therefore, the £67,912 grant received in May 2021 will not be transferred to a new
Homelessness Prevention Grant earmarked reserve, which is the reason for the
-£67,910 variance on Transfers to/(from) Earmarked Reserves at the end of
September 2021.



Because the Homelessness Prevention Grant must be used to help fund
homelessness net expenditure in-year, there is now no need to use amounts
previously set aside in the Flexible Homelessness Support Grant and
Homelessness Reduction Act funding earmarked reserves to fund additional
homelessness costs in 2021/22. The amounts in these reserves were subsequently
used to help fund homelessness net expenditure at 2020/21 year-end. Therefore,
the budgeted 2021/22 year-end transfers of £25,020 from the Flexible
Homelessness Support Grant and Homelessness Reduction Act funding earmarked
reserves will not take place.

3.4

The budget will be updated at revised estimate stage to reflect these changes.

4

CONCLUSION

4.1

The comparison between actual expenditure and the original estimate budget for this
Committee to the end of September 2021 shows an underspend of £50,564 after
allowing for transfers to and from earmarked reserves.

SENIOR ACCOUNTANT

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

HH13-21/AC/AC
18 October 2021
BACKGROUND PAPERS: None
For further information please ask for Andrew Cook
4 of 15
13-21hh

Page 96

ANNEX 1
Health and Housing Committee Revenue Monitoring – Red Variances

Ledger
Code

SUPPE/
8961z

Ledger Code Name

Supporting People/MHCLG
- Domestic Abuse Support
to Victim

Net
Budget for
the Full
Year
£

0

Net
Budget to
the end of
September
2021
£

0

Actual
including
Commitments
to the end of
September
2021
£

-33,351

Reason for Variance
Variance
£

-33,351

R

Page 97
CLCEM/
5056

Clitheroe
Cemetery/Grounds
Maintenance

5 of 15
13-21hh

64,760

32,390

17,768

Action Plan as agreed
between the Budget
Holder and Accountant

-14,622

R

Additional New Burdens funding received inyear from MHCLG to reflect the burden on
the Council in 21/22 of working with and
supporting Lancashire County Council, who
now have a statutory duty to provide support
to victims of domestic abuse and their
children residing within safe
accommodation. The Council was not
informed of this funding until after the
original estimate budget was set.

Less staff time input to the cemetery for the
year to date. Difficulty in recruiting casual
staff over the summer period meant some
maintenance tasks initially planned for
Summer 2021 could not be completed.

The budget will be
updated at revised
estimate stage to reflect
this additional income.

The aim is to carry out the
maintenance tasks not
completed over summer
in Autumn and Winter.
The budget will be
reviewed at revised
estimate budget stage to
reflect the latest full year
estimate for grounds
maintenance team input.

ANNEX 1
Health and Housing Committee Revenue Monitoring – Red Variances

Ledger
Code

Page 98

HGBEN/
8007z

ENVHT/
3081

Ledger Code Name

Housing Benefits/HRA Rent
Rebate Grant

Environmental Health
Services/Water Samples

6 of 15
13-21hh

Net
Budget for
the Full
Year
£

-20,880

15,300

Net
Budget to
the end of
September
2021
£

-10,444

7,662

Actual
including
Commitments
to the end of
September
2021
£

-19,422

0

Reason for Variance

Action Plan as agreed
between the Budget
Holder and Accountant

R

The higher Rent Rebate subsidy grant
income received to date was in line with the
estimate prepared for the 2021/22 DWP
subsidy grant initial estimate claim, which
was completed after the original estimate
budget was set. Rent Rebate subsidy grant
received plus Homelessness Prevention
Grant funding allocated to support Rent
Rebate payments are updated at year-end
to broadly reflect the actual Rent Rebate
payments for the year as a whole. As a
result, there is unlikely to be a significant
over-recovery of income at year-end.

The budget will be
amended at revised
estimate stage to reflect
the latest full-year
estimate for Rent Rebate
subsidy grant income.

R

No private water supplies risk assessments
and samples work has been undertaken for
the year to date, meaning there are no lab
tests costs. This is due to on-going
vacancies within the Environmental Health
team meaning that staff time has been
focussed on other priority areas of work for
the year to date. This underspend partly
offsets the under-recovery of private water
samples income for the year to date (see
ENVHT/8417u below).
It is likely that Environmental Health staff
time will continue to focus on other priority
areas of work until staff vacancies are filled.

The budget will be
amended at revised
estimate stage to reflect
the latest full-year
estimate for both water
samples costs and private
water samples income.

Variance
£

-8,978

-7,662

ANNEX 1
Health and Housing Committee Revenue Monitoring – Red Variances

Ledger
Code

CLMKT/
8825n

Ledger Code Name

Clitheroe Market/Stalls

Page 99

ENVHT/
8430u

Environmental Health
Services/Street Trading
Licence

CTBEN/
8009z

Localised Council Tax
Support Admin/Housing
Benefit & CT Benefit Admin
Grant

7 of 15
13-21hh

Net
Budget for
the Full
Year
£

-6,590

-4,560

-33,390

Net
Budget to
the end of
September
2021
£

-3,296

-3,038

-33,390

Actual
including
Commitments
to the end of
September
2021
£

-9,413

-8,808

-38,836

Reason for Variance

Action Plan as agreed
between the Budget
Holder and Accountant

R

There has been a higher demand for stalls
from traders than budgeted for, reflecting the
on-going increased popularity of the market
among shoppers and traders post Covid-19
lockdown in this demand-led fluctuating
service area.

The budget will be
amended at revised
estimate stage to reflect
the latest full-year
estimate for market stalls
income.

R

There have been several new street trading
licences issued since the start of the
financial year, which has resulted in
increased income in this demand-led licence
income area.

The budget will be
amended at revised
estimate stage to reflect
the latest full-year
estimate for street trading
licence income.

R

Higher Local Council Tax Support
Administration Grant received from MHCLG
for 2021/22 than budgeted for. The Council
was not notified of the yearly funding level
until after the original estimate budget was
set.

The budget will be
updated at revised
estimate stage to reflect
this increased income.

Variance
£

-6,117

-5,770

-5,446

ANNEX 1
Health and Housing Committee Revenue Monitoring – Red Variances

Ledger
Code

HOMES/
2450

Ledger Code Name

Homelessness
Strategy/Homelessness
Temporary Accommodation

Net
Budget for
the Full
Year
£

10,840

Net
Budget to
the end of
September
2021
£

5,422

Actual
including
Commitments
to the end of
September
2021
£

0

Reason for Variance

Action Plan as agreed
between the Budget
Holder and Accountant

R

There is an on-going impact from Covid-19
on homelessness and the Council has
incurred homelessness temporary
accommodation costs for the year to date.
However, those costs are currently being
covered by un-ring fenced MHCLG Covid-19
funding under the Policy and Finance
Committee budget. The impact for this
Committee is therefore an underspend to
date on the normal homelessness temporary
accommodation budget.

The budget and allocation
of homelessness
temporary
accommodation costs will
be kept under review
throughout the year.

R

Additional grant funding received in-year
from MHCLG to help cover any tenancy
support/bonds costs that the Council incur in
helping to support ex-offenders to find
private rented sector tenancies. This amount
is half of the £10,000 grant funding allocated
to the Council in 2021/22. The grant is ringfenced for use with ex-offenders and will
support any relevant in-year expenditure in
that area. The Council was not informed of
this funding until after the original estimate
budget was set.

The budget will be
updated at revised
estimate stage to reflect
this additional income and
any associated
expenditure in-year.

Variance
£

-5,422

Page 100
HOMES/
8605z

Homelessness
Strategy/MHCLG Accomm for Ex-Offenders
Scheme (Other Income)

8 of 15
13-21hh

0

0

-5,000

-5,000

ANNEX 1
Health and Housing Committee Revenue Monitoring – Red Variances

Ledger
Code

Page 101

ENVHT/
8417u

Ledger Code Name

Environmental Health
Services/Private Water
Samples

9 of 15
13-21hh

Net
Budget for
the Full
Year
£

-24,710

Net
Budget to
the end of
September
2021
£

-12,358

Actual
including
Commitments
to the end of
September
2021
£

0

Reason for Variance

Action Plan as agreed
between the Budget
Holder and Accountant

No private water supplies risk assessment
and samples work has been undertaken for
the year to date, meaning there is no private
water samples income. This is due to ongoing vacancies within the Environmental
Health team meaning that available staff
time has been focussed on other priority
areas of work for the year to date. The
resulting under-recovery of income to the
end of September 2021 is partly offset by
reduced water sample lab test costs of
£7,662 (see ENVHT/3081 above), the net
under-recovery of income to date being
£4,696. In addition, lower staff costs for the
Environmental Health team, due to staff
vacancies, will also offset this underrecovery of income.
It is likely that Environmental Health staff
time will continue to focus on other priority
areas of work until staff vacancies are filled.

The budget will be
amended at revised
estimate stage to reflect
the latest full-year
estimate for both private
water samples income
and water samples costs.

Variance
£

12,358

R

ANNEX 1
Health and Housing Committee Revenue Monitoring – Red Variances

Ledger
Code

Page 102

HGBEN/
8060z

HGBEN/
8002z

Ledger Code Name

Housing Benefits/DWP Discretionary Housing
Payments Inc

Housing Benefits/Rent
Allowances Grant

10 of 15
13-21hh

Net
Budget for
the Full
Year
£

-63,320

-5,127,300

Net
Budget to
the end of
September
2021
£

-31,660

-2,564,674

Actual
including
Commitments
to the end of
September
2021
£

-17,517

-2,536,236

Reason for Variance

Action Plan as agreed
between the Budget
Holder and
Accountant

R

The actual to date is the first of two payments
in-year from DWP. The full-year allocation of
Discretionary Housing Payments grant funding
from DWP was confirmed as £51,425 in
September 2021, which is £11,895 less than
the full-year amount budgeted for. This is
because the full-year allocation was notified to
the Council after the original estimate budget
was set. This grant funds additional
discretionary housing benefits spend in-year
by the Council and the Council will make less
discretionary housing benefits payments inyear to reflect the reduced funding. Thus,
there will be no significant under-recovery of
income at year-end.

The budget will be
updated at revised
estimate stage to reflect
the latest full-year
estimate for
Discretionary Housing
Payments grant funding
and related payments
in-year.

R

Rent Allowance subsidy grant income was
1.1% lower than the £2.565m budgeted for the
year to date. The reduced income is in line
with the estimate prepared for the 2021/22
DWP subsidy grant initial estimate claim,
which was completed after the original
estimate budget was set. Rent Allowance
subsidy grant received at year-end is updated
to broadly reflect the actual Rent Allowance
payments for the year as a whole (see
HGBEN/4652 below). As a result, there is
unlikely to be a significant under-recovery of
income at year-end.

The budget will be
amended at revised
estimate stage to reflect
the latest full-year
estimate for Rent
Allowance subsidy grant
income.

Variance
£

14,143

28,438

ANNEX 1
Health and Housing Committee Revenue Monitoring – Red Variances

Ledger
Code

HGBEN/
8814z

Page 103

HGBEN/
4652

Ledger Code Name

Housing Benefits/Recovery
of Rent Allowance
Payments

Net
Budget for
the Full
Year
£

-25,110

Net
Budget to
the end of
September
2021
£

26,300

Actual
including
Commitments
to the end of
September
2021
£

11 of 15
13-21hh

5,123,800

2,839,608

23,621

2,917,109

Rent Allowance payments were 2.6% higher
than the £2.866m budgeted for the year to
date, after adjusting for recovery of benefits
overpayments and non-cash transactions.
This is mainly due to a lower caseload
reduction for the year to date than budgeted
for. The overall caseload is reducing
throughout the year as part of the migration
from Housing Benefits to Universal Credit in
Ribble Valley, but caseload levels can vary
due to other factors throughout the year.
Any higher Rent Allowance payments for the
year as a whole will be reflected in more Rent
Allowance subsidy grant income received at
year-end from the DWP (see HGBEN/8002z
above), as payments for the full year are
broadly funded by subsidy grant received at
year-end. As a result, there is unlikely to be a
significant net overspend at year-end.

The budget will be
amended at revised
estimate stage to reflect
the latest full-year
estimate for Rent
Allowance payments.

Variance
£

74,822

Housing Benefits/Rent
Allowance Payments

Reason for Variance

Action Plan as agreed
between the Budget
Holder and
Accountant

R

ANNEX 2
Health and Housing Committee Revenue Monitoring – Amber Variances

Ledger
Code

CLCEM/
8442u

Page 104

HOMES/
8802u

Ledger Code Name

Clitheroe
Cemetery/Monument Fees

Homelessness
Strategy/Dwelling Rents

12 of 15
13-21hh

Net
Budget for
the Full
Year
£

-4,600

0

Net
Budget to
the end of
September
2021
£

-2,304

0

Actual
including
Commitments
to the end of
September
2021
£

-4,960

-2,477

Reason for Variance
Variance
£

-2,656

-2,477

A

There have been a higher number of requests for grave
headstones and ashes plaques memorials than budgeted for, in
this demand-led fluctuating income area.
The budget will be reviewed at revised estimate stage to reflect
the latest full-year estimate for monuments fees income.

A

Since the transfer of housing stock in 2008 the Council has had
nomination rights on a property in Longridge to use as
homelessness accommodation, whilst Onward Homes managed
the property. Onward Homes had requested that use of the
property at 23 Wellbrow Drive was formalised in a rental
agreement and this has been agreed from March 2021 onwards,
with a one month notice period. The Council pays rent to Onward
Homes, including for any void periods, along with being
responsible for some other costs. The Council rents the property
to homeless tenants, which provides rental income when the
property is occupied. This is the rental income in relation to this
agreement and helps cover the rental costs paid by the Council
(see HOMES/2446 below), subject to any void periods. The
agreement was set up after the original estimate budget was set
and a formal budget has still to be agreed.
The budget will be updated at revised estimate stage to reflect
this additional income.

ANNEX 2
Health and Housing Committee Revenue Monitoring – Amber Variances

Ledger
Code

HGBEN/
8956z

Page 105

CLMKT/
2402

Ledger Code Name

Housing Benefits/DWP Pensions Credit Uplift New
Burdens

Clitheroe Market/Repair &
Maintenance - Buildings

13 of 15
13-21hh

Net
Budget for
the Full
Year
£

0

8,200

Net
Budget to
the end of
September
2021
£

0

5,110

Actual
including
Commitments
to the end of
September
2021
£

-2,066

7,288

Reason for Variance
Variance
£

-2,066

2,178

A

This is additional funding received in-year from the DWP to
reflect the burden on the Council of administering the pensions
credit uplift changes in-year. This funding was not anticipated at
original estimate budget stage.
The budget will be updated at revised estimate stage to reflect
this income.

A

Increased costs to date compared to the profiled budget are due
to additional repairs spend in several areas, such as walls and
flagging repairs and repairs work on some cabins before new
cabin holders moved in.
This increase in costs to date will be taken into account as part of
managing the Council's overall repairs budgets across all Council
sites and the budget will be reviewed at revised estimate stage.

ANNEX 2
Health and Housing Committee Revenue Monitoring – Amber Variances

Ledger
Code

Page 106

HOMES/
2446

DOGWD/
8725n

Ledger Code Name

Homelessness
Strategy/Rent of Buildings

Dog Warden & Pest
Control/Domestic Rodent
Pest Treatments

14 of 15
13-21hh

Net
Budget for
the Full
Year
£

0

-8,130

Net
Budget to
the end of
September
2021
£

0

-3,579

Actual
including
Commitments
to the end of
September
2021
£

2,186

-1,118

Reason for Variance
Variance
£

2,186

2,461

A

Since the transfer of housing stock in 2008 the Council has had
nomination rights on a property in Longridge to use as
homelessness accommodation, whilst Onward Homes managed
the property. Onward Homes had requested that use of the
property at 23 Wellbrow Drive was formalised in a rental
agreement and this has been agreed from March 2021 onwards,
with a one month notice period. The Council pays rent to Onward
Homes, including for any void periods, along with being
responsible for some other costs. The Council rents the property
to homeless tenants, which provides rental income when the
property is occupied. This expenditure is the rent paid to Onward
Homes for this property, which is funded by rental income
received (see HOMES/8802u above), subject to any void periods.
The agreement was set up after the original estimate budget was
set and a formal budget has still to be agreed.
The budget will be updated at revised estimate stage to reflect
this additional expenditure.

A

There has been less demand for rodent pest control treatment
than budgeted for in the first half of the year and there has been
some sickness absence. At this stage, reduced income is
expected for the full year.
The budget will be updated at revised estimate stage to reflect
the latest full-year estimate for domestic rodent pest control
income.

ANNEX 2
Health and Housing Committee Revenue Monitoring – Amber Variances

Ledger
Code

JARMS/
8802u

Ledger Code Name

Joiners Arms/Dwelling
Rents

Page 107
15 of 15
13-21hh

Net
Budget for
the Full
Year
£

-29,980

Net
Budget to
the end of
September
2021
£

-13,747

Actual
including
Commitments
to the end of
September
2021
£

-9,417

Reason for Variance
Variance
£

4,330

A

Lower occupancy at the Joiners Arms homelessness unit than
anticipated at budget setting stage. This is mainly due to flats 1
and 2 being out of service since the end of March 2021 due to
damp and water ingress issues. In addition, there have also been
some void periods in the other flats. Flats 1 and 2 will be out of
service until the flats 1 and 2 renovation capital scheme is
completed, after the Joiners Arms roof renewal scheme is
completed. At this stage, the scheme is unlikely to be completed
in 2021/22, as the roof renewal scheme work is subject to a six
month delay on slate supply. Thus, under-recovery of rent
income is likely to continue throughout 2021/22.
The budget will be updated at revised estimate stage to reflect
this reduced income.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12
RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO HEALTH & HOUSING COMMITTEE
meeting date:
title:
submitted by:
principal author:

INFORMATION

THURSDAY, 28 OCTOBER 2021
GENERAL REPORT
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
MATTHEW RIDING – PART TIME HEAD OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

1

PURPOSE

1.1

To inform Committee of the relevant issues which have arisen since the last meeting.

1.2

Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities


Council Ambitions - The following reports generally relate to the Council’s
ambitions to make people’s lives healthier and safer.

2

HANSON CEMENT LIAISON MEETING

2.1

A liaison meeting was held on 23 September 2021. A copy of the minutes is attached
as Appendix A to this report.

3

AIR QUALITY- ANNUAL STATUS REPORT 2020

3.1

The mandatory annual air quality report has recently been completed and will be
submitted to DEFRA for consideration and validation. A copy of the report is attached
as Appendix B to this report.

3.2

The results from the 2020 monitoring programme and review of the government data
have identified no areas of likely exceedances of the national objective values for any
of the pollutants of concern inside or outside of the declared Air Quality Management
Area (AQMA). The monitoring programme has identified a dramatic reduction in
nitrogen dioxide levels at all sites in the first half of the year, although an increase in
nitrogen dioxide levels was observed at all sites throughout the second half of the year.

3.3

As a priority over the next few months, the Council will continue to work with partner
organisations, in particular the County Public Health team and other local authorities
in the development of a county wide guidance document for planning, to ensure all
developments adequately address air quality impacts. The Council will also continue
to expand its air quality monitoring programme by providing additional monitoring sites
for nitrogen dioxide in Longridge and Whalley. This is because there has been a
significant increase in vehicular movement in both settlements due to the large number
of new homes that have recently been built.

3.4

Looking ahead, it is anticipated that any proposed substantial infrastructure schemes
undertaken within the borough may have a temporary adverse impact on the air quality,
due to the potential increase in the movement of heavy goods vehicles.

4

COVID-19 UPDATE

4.1

During our last meeting, I reported that the number of cases in the Ribble Valley had
started to rise again. This pattern continued throughout September and the number of
confirmed positive cases peaked on 25 September 2021, when a total of 365 confirmed

Page 109

cases were reported for the previous 7 days (589 daily incidence per 100,000). A study
of these cases showed that a high percentage were school children. One school
reported an outbreak affecting over 50 (??) children and therefore Lancashire County
Council (LCC) deployed 2 Mobile Testing Units (MTU’s) to this site, to help facilitate
rapid testing and the early identification of positive cases.
4.2

The number of PCR tests undertaken at Edisford Local Testing Site (LTS) increased
significantly during the first three weeks of September, due to the rising number of
symptomatic cases. A record 1102 tests were recorded at Edisford LTS during the
week commencing 20 September 2021, although the number of tests reduced
noticeably at the beginning of October which coincided with the declining number of
symptomatic cases after 25 September 2021.

4.3

A meeting was held at Edisford LTS, on 21 September 2021, with representatives of
the Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC), LCC and RVBC to discuss the
possibility of reducing the footprint of the testing site. The meeting was requested by
the Council’s Head of Engineering Services in order to try and regain 30 parking
spaces, thereby helping to alleviate some of the traffic problems experienced on
Edisford Road. I am pleased to report that the meeting had a positive outcome and
that the footprint of the site will be reduced in the next few weeks. The Council is
currently negotiating an extension of the lease agreement with the DHSC, in order for
them to continue to use Edisford Road Car Park as a Local Testing Site for a further
six months.

4.4

The weekly vaccination data, published on 10 October 2021, recorded that a total of
48,605 Ribble Valley residents had been vaccinated with at least one dose, whilst
45,236 residents had received two doses.

4.5

The Council’s Local Contact Tracing team has had another busy two months. 455
cases were received from the NHS Test and Trace System during the period 9 August
to 1 October 2021. 288 cases (63.3%) were successfully contacted, whilst 40 cases
(9%) were contacted but refused to cooperate.

MATTHEW RIDING
PART TIME HEAD OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

MARSHAL SCOTT
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

For further information please ask for Matthew Riding, extension 4470

Page 110

HANSON CEMENT LIAISON COMMITTEE
MEETING DATE – THURSDAY 23 SEPTEMBER 2021
PRESENT:

Gary Young
Sam Wrathall
Cllr R Sherras
Cllr I Brown
Cllr D Berryman
Matthew Riding
Cty Cllr S Hind
Lynda England
Simon Perry
Marilyn Wood
Timothy Williams

-

Hanson Cement
Hanson Cement
RVBC
RVBC
RVBC
RVBC
LCC
Bellman Committee
Worston
West Bradford PC
Environment Agency

APPENDIX A

Before the meeting started Gary Young asked that Mary Gysbers (a long-standing member of this
committee) be remembered.
1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

1.1

Received from Cllr S O’Rourke (RVBC), Roy Porter (Chatburn PC) and Jonathan Haine (LCC)

2

MINUTES

2.1

The minutes of the meetings held on 26 September 2019 were circulated and approved as a
correct record.

3.

PLANT OPERATIONAL REPORT

3.1

Environmental and Health & Safety


Safety statistics
o 2021 to date = no incidents
o 2020 = 1 incident (contractor)
o During shutdown with 140 contractors on site = no incidents
o Near hits = 60 monitored and preventative action taken



Cement production stopped for 6 weeks in April/May 2020. The stock was wiped out in 2020
and there is now a steady increase in production and uplift in demand.
Fuel efficiency is measured – alternative fuel rate critical for financial and environmental
performance – this was on track.
Power consumption – electric is biggest cost on site = £12m pa
CO2 currently costing more than £52 per tonne = £32m pa. Cement factories are given a
CO2 allocation – this is going to reduce.
Stack emissions are monitored – NOx is close to the limit and is controlled by injection of
ammonia. Dust is close to limit and is controlled by current filter technology combined with
scrubber for SO2 control.
General incidents/complaints – the values are set by EA and individual incidents are
reported to them.
Hazardous substance consent – continue with hydrogen trial.
Hydrogen chloride – EA agreement to continued use of lime injection (with site inspections).
Water – issue with road tunnel and contamination of brook – work ongoing.
Maintenance audit with EA – improvement plan
Off-site monitoring of dust gauges – trend-line marginally going down – seasonal effect of
more dry weather is changing how this is addressed
Off-site monitoring of water at Bellman – high reading of particulates in Feb 2020 after
significant rainfall. Otherwise, all well under allowable limits













Page 111
NONMIN 230921



Off-site monitoring of water in River Ribble – high reading in Sept 2020 – pumping stopped
immediately and issue reported to EA. Subsequent installation of turbidity meter with
automatic shut from pumping. Otherwise, all under allowable limits
Settlement Pond – intercepts run off from SW side of plant. All readings below allowable
limits



4.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLAINTS – 2019 – TO DATE

4.1

Reportable incidents – 2019 = 36; 2020 = 57; 2021 = 9

Dust – April = 16 – general level of dust in the area. Complaints made to EA and a follow up
report and site visit – goes on public record with agreed actions including management
changes; maintenance procedures; improvement actions and major investment programme.

Dust – July = 15 – cyclone blockage on 12 July from tower – safety issue on site.

5.

COMMUNITY 2021

Fund to support local projects

Site visits

Support Ribble Rovers Trust

Alternative fuels (80%) supplied by Lancashire based companies

6.

KEY PROJECTS UPDATE

6.1

Energy and CO2

Significant ambitions in terms of sustainability, climate change and net zero emissions.
Commitments include reducing clinker from 75% to 70%; increasing alternative fuels from 24% to
43% and increasing biomass rate from 9% to 19% by 2030 with the significant challenge of
producing carbon neutral cement by 2050

Carbon capture and utilisation – there is a government funded project being piloted in
Norway using an amine wash. Heidelberg are also installing equipment in Sweden and HyNet
North West are utilising hydrogen.

To reduce the carbon footprint at Ribblesdale, efficiency improvements are taking place,
including a new cement type of over 11% limestone.

A government funded H2 trail has also just been completed where a combination of
hydrogen, glycerine and MBM is burned (carbon free). This was a success and the first in the
world, although only short term due to the cost and availability of fuels.

A RCP trial where the wet-gas scrubber is modified to remove both SO2 and CO2
emissions.

6.

QUARRY AND BIODIVERSITY UPDATE





7.

Work continues in Lanehead quarry – 90 blasts since January 2019
Work continues at Bellman quarry – 42 blasts since January 2019
Work has begun to recreate Bellman strip fields – aiming to promote biodiversity and
supplement plant and wildlife – hedges have been planted
3 of the 4 Bellman lime kilns have been rebuilt working with Clitheroe Civic Society and
Historic England/ English Heritage to preserve the 1875 kiln.

AOB






Gary reported that an approach had been made regarding a holding area and parking area
for use during the Haweswater Aqueduct Resilience Project
Gary reported upon rail crossing incidents and the need to keep his workforce safe. Looking
to install a SPID, improve the lighting and prosecute offenders who fail to stop.
Cty Cllr Sue Hind asked if cement dust was carcinogenic (having watched programmes
regarding 9/11) Gary confirmed that all staff have regular health screening and there was no
link to any cancer conditions.
Gary confirmed that the quarry had approximately 35 years of stone in it
Linda asked for permission to cut back ivy on big trees on the nature trail

Page 112
NONMIN 230921



Linda informed the group that the footpath had been blocked at the top of Old Road,
Chatburn

8.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

7.1

The next meeting of the Hanson Cement Liaison Committee will be held on Thursday 24 March
2022. Gary would arrange a site visit to the quarry.

The meeting closed at 4.00pm

Page 113
NONMIN 230921

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX B

Ribble Valley Borough Council

2020 Air Quality Annual Status Report
(ASR)

In fulfilment of Part IV of the
Environment Act 1995
Local Air Quality Management

October 2021
Page 115

Local Authority
Officer

Ken Robinson

Department

Environmental Health

Address

Ribble Valley Borough Council
Council Offices
Church Walk
Clitheroe
Lancashire
BB7 2RA

Telephone

01200 414468

E-mail

ken.robinson@ribblevalley.gov.uk

Report Reference
number

ASR2020

Date

October 2021

Page 116

Ribble Valley Borough Council

Executive Summary: Air Quality in Our Area
This report fulfils the requirements of the Local Air Quality Management process as set
out in Part IV of the Environment Act (1995), the Air Quality Strategy for England,
Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland 2007 and the relevant Policy and Technical
Guidance documents. The LAQM process places an obligation on all local authorities
to regularly review and assess air quality in their areas, and to determine whether or
not the air quality objectives are likely to be achieved. Where exceedances are
considered likely, the local authority must then declare an Air Quality Management
Area (AQMA) and prepare an Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) setting out the measures
it intends to put in place in pursuit of the objectives.

Air Quality in Ribble Valley Borough Council
Air pollution is associated with a number of adverse health impacts. It is recognised as
a contributing factor in the onset of heart disease and cancer. Additionally, air pollution
particularly affects the most vulnerable in society: children and older people, and those
with heart and lung conditions. There is also often a strong correlation with equalities
issues, because areas with poor air quality are also often the less affluent areas1,2.
The annual health cost to society of the impacts of particulate matter alone in the UK
is estimated to be around £16 billion.3
The Public Health England [now UK Health Security Agency] website has a health
protection indicator that considers the fraction of mortality in each area attributable to
particulate air pollution. The 2019 results revealed that the rate for England was 5.1%.
The value for Ribble Valley was 3.58% and for Lancashire as a whole 3.96%.
The principal pollutants of concern within Ribble Valley are those associated mainly
with traffic, these being Nitrogen Dioxide, and Particulate Matter. The Council only
monitors Nitrogen Dioxide emissions via a network of diffusion tubes and currently has
one declared Air Quality Management Area [AQMA] within the borough, located in
Clitheroe.

1 Environmental

equity, air quality, socioeconomic status and respiratory health, 2010
quality and social deprivation in the UK: an environmental inequalities analysis, 2006
3 Defra. Abatement cost guidance for valuing changes in air quality, May 2013
2 Air

Page 117

LAQM Annual Status Report 2020

iii

Ribble Valley Borough Council
Trend data over the last five years indicates that levels are declining slightly with
a marked decrease last year [coinciding with the Spring lockdown] and results since
2013 show only one exceedance of the national objective of 40µg/m3 either inside
or outside the declared AQMA. See Chart 1 below.
2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

Control Site
Royal British Legion 1
Royal British Legion 2
Royal British Legion 3
Greenacre Street
57 Whalley Road
AQMA Average
85 Whalley Road
John Wall Court
Feildens Arms

Chart 1 Annual NO2 figures. RBL3 was relocated for 2020. Key: Red >40; Amber 35 – 40; Green <35 ug/m3

It is important that work continues to maintain and improve the air quality within the
borough, given:


the recently published evidence on the harmful effects of both Particulate Matter
and Nitrogen Dioxide



the Council’s Ambition 3 To help make people’s lives safer and healthier and
Ambition 4 To protect and enhance the existing environmental quality of our
area (Corporate Strategy 2019-2023)



the Council’s duties under the Local Air Quality Management regime



the significant housing development within the area.

To that end the Ribble Valley Borough Council will continue to identify measures to
improve and maintain the air quality within the borough, including ensuring
developments do not adversely affect or significantly contribute to pollutant levels.
There have been no new major roads or industrial processes constructed within the last
year that will have a significant impact on air quality within the borough.

Actions to Improve Air Quality
Key actions the Council will be looking at over the next year include:
 Continuing with the diffusion tube monitoring programme, including those within
the AQMA,
 Continue to consider air quality for all relevant planning applications,
 Encourage greater use of public transport and alternative forms of travel,
including the provision of electric Page
vehicle recharging
points through the planning
118
LAQM Annual Status Report 2020

iv

Ribble Valley Borough Council



system.
We will continue to carry out the inspections and enforcement of permitted
premises within the borough under the Environmental Permitting Regulations.
Continue to work with partners in Public Health Lancashire, and across the
Lancashire District authorities in the development and publication of the
Lancashire Air Quality Planning Guidance Document. [Covid delayed].

Conclusions and Priorities
The results from the 2020 monitoring programme and review of the government data
have identified no areas of likely exceedances of the national objective values for any
of the pollutants of concern inside or outside of the declared AQMA. The monitoring
programme has identified an increase in nitrogen dioxide levels at all sites in the
second half of the year after a dramatic drop in the first half. The AQMA levels when
bias adjusted remain below the objective value of 40µg/m3.
As a priority over the coming months the Council will continue to work with partner
organisations, in particular the County Public Health team and other local authorities
in the development of a county wide guidance document for planning, to ensure all
developments adequately address air quality impacts. The council will also continue
its air quality monitoring programme, in addition to the other measures identified within
this report.

Local Engagement and How to get Involved
If you would like to get involved in the work being undertaken to tackle air pollution within
Ribble Valley; or you would like more information on how you can help reduce your
personal emissions then please contact the Environmental Health Department at
Ribble Valley Borough Council via e-mail at environmental.health@ribblevalley.gov.uk
Please see Appendix F for ideas about how personal choices can help to improve air
quality.

Page 119
LAQM Annual Status Report 2020

v

Ribble Valley Borough Council

Table of Contents
Contents
Executive Summary: Air Quality in Our Area .......................................................... iii
Air Quality in Ribble Valley Borough Council ................................................................ iii
Actions to Improve Air Quality ...................................................................................... iv
Conclusions and Priorities ............................................................................................ v
Local Engagement and How to get Involved ................................................................ v
List of Figures................................................................................................................................. vi

1

Local Air Quality Management.............................................................. 1

2
2.1

Actions to Improve Air Quality ............................................................. 2
Air Quality Management Areas ................................................................ 2

Ribble Valley Borough Council ....................................................................................................... 3

2.2
Progress and Impact of Measures to address Air Quality in Ribble Valley
Borough Council ........................................................................................................... 4
Table 2.2 – Progress on Measures to Improve Air Quality .............................................................. 6

PM2.5 – Local Authority Approach to Reducing Emissions and/or
2.3
Concentrations ............................................................................................................. 7
Lancashire County Council Actions on PM2.5 ......................................... 9
2.4
1.

Encourage the use of sustainable forms of travel ................................................................ 9

2.

Support the transition to low emission vehicles ................................................................. 10

3.

Create cleaner, healthier road networks ........................................................................... 10

4.

Embed air quality into policy ............................................................................................. 12

5.

Raise awareness and increase engagement..................................................................... 13

3
3.1
3.2

Air Quality Monitoring Data and Comparison ................................... 14
Changes to the Local Authority Area ..................................................... 14
Summary of Monitoring Undertaken ...................................................... 15

3.2.1

Automatic Monitoring Sites ............................................................................................... 15

3.2.2

Non-Automatic Monitoring Sites........................................................................................ 15

3.3

Individual Pollutants ............................................................................... 15

3.3.1

Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2)..................................................................................................... 15

3.3.2

Particulate Matter.............................................................................................................. 15

3.3.3

Sulphur Dioxide (SO2) ...................................................................................................... 15

Appendix A: Monitoring Results ............................................................................. 16
Table A.1 – Details of Non-Automatic Monitoring Sites ................................................................ 16
Table A.2 – Annual Mean NO2 Monitoring Results....................................................................... 17
Figure A.1 – Trends in Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations ........................................................... 18

Appendix B: Full Monthly Diffusion Tube Results for 2020 .................................. 19
Supporting Technical Information ................................................................................................. 21

Appendix D: Map(s) of Monitoring Locations and AQMAs ................................... 22

Page 120
LAQM Annual Status Report 2020

vi

Ribble Valley Borough Council
Appendix E: Summary of Air Quality Objectives in England ................................ 26
Table E.1 – Air Quality Objectives in England .............................................................................. 26

Appendix F: How to make a difference personally…..………………………………27
Glossary of Terms .................................................................................................... 30
References ................................................................................................................ 31

Page 121
LAQM Annual Status Report 2020

vii

Ribble Valley Borough Council

1

Local Air Quality Management

This report provides an overview of air quality in Ribble Valley Borough Council during
2020. It fulfils the requirements of Local Air Quality Management (LAQM) as set out in
Part IV of the Environment Act (1995) and the relevant Policy and Technical Guidance
documents.
The LAQM process places an obligation on all local authorities to regularly review and
assess air quality in their areas, and to determine whether or not the air quality
objectives are likely to be achieved. Where an exceedance is considered likely the
local authority must declare an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) and prepare an
Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) setting out the measures it intends to put in place in
pursuit of the objectives. This Annual Status Report (ASR) is an annual requirement
showing the strategies employed by Ribble Valley Borough Council to improve air
quality and any progress that has been made.
The statutory air quality objectives applicable to LAQM in England can be found in
Appendix E.

Page 122
1|Page

Ribble Valley Borough Council

2

Actions to Improve Air Quality

2.1 Air Quality Management Areas
Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) are declared when there is an exceedance
or likely exceedance of an air quality objective.
Ribble Valley Borough Council currently has one declared Air Quality Management
Areas within the borough. The AQMA was declared in 2010 following exceedances of
the annual mean objective value for Nitrogen Dioxide. The AQMA boundaries are
shown in Appendix D.

Page 123
2|Page

Ribble Valley Borough Council
Table 2.1 – Declared Air Quality Management Areas

AQMA
Name

Page 124

Whalley
Road,
Clitheroe
No.1

☒

Date of
Declaration

31/05/20
10

Pollutants
and Air
Quality
Objectives

NO2
annual
mean

City / Town

Clitheroe

One Line
Description

An area
encompassing
a number of
residential
properties at
the junction of
Whalley road
and
Greenacre
Street.

Is air
quality in
the AQMA
influenced
by roads
controlled
by
Highways
England?

No

Level of Exceedance
(maximum
monitored/modelled
concentration at a location
of relevant exposure)
At
Declaration

45

µg/m3

Now

38*

Action Plan

Name

Date of
Publication

Link

µg/m3

Ribble Valley Borough Council confirm the information on UK-Air regarding their AQMA(s) is up to date

*Dec 2020 at DT2, bias adjusted figure.

3|Page

Ribble Valley Borough Council

2.2 Progress and Impact of Measures to address Air
Quality in Ribble Valley Borough Council
Defra’s appraisal of last year’s ASR concluded that the previous report was acceptable.
The appraisal further identified that there had been a general improvement in air quality
over the year however, improvements within the declared AQMA have been
inconsistent and the authority should consider targeted traffic management measures.
The appraisal also supported the joint working between the council and the Lancashire
County Council.
Ribble Valley Borough Council has taken forward a number of direct measures during
the current reporting year of 2020 in pursuit of improving local air quality. Details of all
measures completed, in progress or planned are set out in Table 2.2.
Ribble Valley Borough Council does expect the following measures to be significantly
progressed over the course of the next reporting year, to help maintain and improve
air quality within its area:


To ensure all new developments have some form of electric vehicle recharging
capability.



Ensure all new developments have adequate cycle storage, especially
commercial/industrial developments.



Encourage the use of alternative means of travel to the internal combustion
engined car through the provision of travel plans for new developments and the
promotion of car sharing schemes, public transport and cycling.



Progress the implementation of electric vehicle recharge points on Council
owned car parks.

The principal challenges and barriers to implementation that Ribble Valley Borough
Council anticipates facing are lack of resources both within the Borough Council and
partner organisations.

Page 125
4|Page

Ribble Valley Borough Council
Whilst the measures stated above and in Table 2.2 will help to contribute towards
compliance and the general trend of monitoring shows an improvement in air quality,
Ribble Valley Borough Council anticipates that further evidence is required to enable
the revocation of Whalley Road, Clitheroe, AQMA No. 1.

Page 126
5|Page

Ribble Valley Borough Council
Table 2.2 – Progress on Measures to Improve Air Quality

Measure

1

Require
EVR
points on
all
appropriat
e planning
applicatio
ns

Promoting
Travel
Alternatives

Other

2

Raise
awareness
with
Members,
and public

Public
Information

Via the
Internet

3

Require
cycle
storage on
all
appropriate
planning
applications

Promoti
ng Travel
Alternative
s

Other

4

Develop
Lancashire
wide
Planning
Guidance on
Air Quality
and
Implement.

Policy
Guidance
and
Developmen
t Control

Regional
Groups Coordinating
programmes
to develop
Area wide
Strategies to
reduce
emissions and
improve air
quality

Page 127

Measu
re No.

EU
Category

EU
Classification

Organisations
involved and
Funding
Source

Implementation
Phase

Key
Performance
Indicator

Reduction in
Pollutant /
Emission from
Measure

Progress to Date

Estimated /
Actual
Completion Date

LA,
Funding:
Developers

Mar-16

All
appropriate
planning
applications
include EVR
point
condition

Reduce vehicle
emissions

On-going

On-going

Lead: LA
Environme
ntal Health

Mar-17

Website up to
date with
relevant
information

0.2 µg/m3

Implementation
on-going

On-going

Reduced vehicle
emissions

Implementation
on-going

On-going

Reduce emissions
promote
alternative forms
of travel

Draft policy
complete, trying to
embed policy with
planners and to
include in revised
Core Strategy
document

Ongoing

Planning
Phase

LA ;
Funded by
developers

Policy Guidance
and
Development
Control

Mar-16

Mar-16

Ongoing

All appropriate
planning
applications
include cycle
storage
condition

Implementatio
n and use of
guidance
document

Comments /
Barriers to
implementation

Funding

Local Planning
Department,
government policy
on Planning

6|Page

Ribble Valley Borough Council

2.3 PM2.5 – Local Authority Approach to Reducing
Emissions and/or Concentrations
As detailed in Policy Guidance LAQM.PG16 (Chapter 7), local authorities are expected
to work towards reducing emissions and/or concentrations of PM2.5 (particulate matter
with an aerodynamic diameter of 2.5µm or less). There is clear evidence that PM2.5 has
a significant impact on human health, including premature mortality, allergic reactions,
and cardiovascular diseases.
Ribble Valley Borough Council is taking the following measures to address PM2.5:


The inclusion of PM2.5 assessment within Air Quality Assessments carried out
through the planning process.



Encouraging the use of alternative travel options e.g. cycling, walking, and use
of public transport.



Provision of Electric Vehicle Recharging points on appropriate new
developments.



The provision of EVR points on Council car parks: 10 bays capable of 11kW at
the Chester Avenue long-stay car park and 4 bays capable of 22kW at the
Railway View Avenue short-stay car park. These are in addition to the charging
points provided by Lancashire CC in York Street and the points for customer
use in the Tesco car park. 



Page 128
7|Page

Ribble Valley Borough Council


Raise awareness of the harmful effects of PM2.5 using the Public Health
Indicators which demonstrate that Ribble Valley suffers from an adult mortality
attributed to particulate matter of 3.58%.

Page 129
8|Page

Ribble Valley Borough Council

2.4 Lancashire County Council Actions on PM2.5
Lancashire County Council has an important role to play in taking action to reduce the
health impacts of air pollution. Responsible for transport planning, network
management, highway maintenance, public health and procuring local vehicle fleets,
there are a number of ways LCC can support local and county wide efforts to improve
air quality. In summary, the following activities are underway or in development:

1. Encourage the use of sustainable forms of travel


Lancashire's cycling and walking strategy – Actively Moving Forward – sets out an
ambitious plan for increasing the number of people walking and cycling in the
county by 2028. Through improving and increasing access to cycling and walking
infrastructure, alongside training and promotional activities, it aims to significantly
increase the amount of cycling and walking people do across the county.



As part of Lancashire's cycling and walking strategy, work has now commenced on
developing Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans (LCWIPs) for the five
Lancashire Highway and Transport Masterplan areas. The Plans will include a
network plan for cycling and walking infrastructure and a prioritised list of schemes
for delivery over short, medium- and long-term timeframes. These plans will be
used to support future infrastructure decisions and access new funding schemes
as they become available.



Connecting East Lancashire is a 'smarter travel choices' campaign designed to
encourage healthier and greener ways of travelling in East Lancashire. A dedicated
team of Business Travel Planners work with individuals and organisations across
east Lancashire to support a shift towards more sustainable and active forms of
travel.



The Safe and Healthy Travel team work with schools, workplaces and the
community to encourage safe and sustainable modes of travel. Initiatives for
schools are promoted though the Safer Travel Moodle and include: a series of
cycling and walking safety training programmes; guidance and resources for
teachers to encourage safe and active travel; and support for creating travel plans.

Page 130
9|Page

Ribble Valley Borough Council
2. Support the transition to low emission vehicles


The County Council is working with BP Chargemaster to deliver 150 electric vehicle
charge points across the County. The charging network will be accessible to drivers
from all over the country and will support local and national efforts to increase the
number of drivers purchasing electric vehicles. Presently, there are on-street
chargers provided in George St and King Street, Whalley and York Street,
Clitheroe.



The County Council is supporting six district councils with a low emission taxi
infrastructure scheme. Funded by the Office for Low Emission Vehicles, the
scheme will provide taxi drivers with access to 24 new rapid electric vehicle charge
points across the six districts. This, alongside a series of promotional activities and
suggested regulatory changes, is designed to produce a transition towards more
low emission taxi vehicles across Lancashire.

3. Create cleaner, healthier road networks


Work to develop the next Local Transport Plan (LTP4) for Lancashire, Blackpool
and Blackburn with Darwen is now underway. The Public Health team has
submitted an evidence base to thePage
process
highlighting transport related health
131
10 | P a g e

Ribble Valley Borough Council
challenges affecting the population of Lancashire and making recommendations
about how local transport planning policy can make a contribution to addressing
these. Air quality is one of the key themes of the evidence base and will be an
identified priority in LTP4. Stakeholder engagement and consultation will be carried
out during 2021. Approaches to improving air quality could include:
o Redesigning road networks to reduce congestion and separate vehicle
emissions from places where people live, work and congregate;
o Increasing access to cycling and walking infrastructure, and cleaner public
transport;
o Facilitating the move towards the use of low emission vehicles through
upgrading public transport and public sector vehicle fleets and introducing
new electric vehicle charge points;
o Targeting areas with high levels of air pollution, including considering the
introduction of Clean Air Zones.
The Local Highways and Transport Masterplans will be refreshed to align with the
priorities of LTP4, which will provide an opportunity to identify longer-term network
solutions that address issues in AQMAs and have a positive impact on air quality
generally.

Page 132
11 | P a g e

Ribble Valley Borough Council


The County Council's vehicle fleet will be fitted with a driver behaviour tracking
system to monitor and influence driver behaviour. The aim of the tracking system
is to improve driver performance, reducing fuel costs, road accidents and vehicle
emissions.

4. Embed air quality into policy


The County Council works with district planners to ensure air quality is a key
consideration of Local Plans, alongside wider public health issues. Providing
support to districts to develop policies that seek to ensure that new development
does not contribute to increasing levels of air pollutants and that requirements for
appropriate mitigation are in place.



The County Council, as part of its highways input into planning applications, actively
encourages measures that aim to promote sustainable forms of travel. Working
under the direction of the National Planning Policy Framework, the Council seeks
measures that facilitate cycling and walking, increase the use of public transport
and provide access to electric vehicle charge points. The Council also seeks
funding from developers, through section 106 contributions, to support existing bus
services or to provide new bus services suitable to serve development sites once
their built.



The County Council is working with Lancaster and Birmingham Universities to
develop evidence-based guidance for the use of green infrastructure as an
approach to mitigating the health impacts of road transport emissions. The
guidance will enable spatial planners, public services and the public to introduce
the most effective infrastructure at the most appropriate sites. In time, there may be
opportunities for further projects around this work.

Page 133
12 | P a g e

Ribble Valley Borough Council
5. Raise awareness and increase engagement


The Lancashire Insight website provides information on the sources and health
impacts of air pollution. Webpages include a Summary of Emissions Data,
Monitoring of Air Quality and Health Impacts and an Air Quality and Health
Dashboard.



The County Council is in the process of developing a clean air programme for
schools. The scheme will include: guidance and support for schools on developing
a clean air strategy; lesson plans, activities and resources for teachers; provision
of LCC's cycling and walking programmes; and resources to deliver a clean air
event, campaign and poster competition.



The County Council's Lead Member for Health and Adult Services has established
a network for elected members from across Lancashire and Cumbria to come
together to gain an understanding of the issues and the key messages to champion
and advocate in their communities.

Page 134
13 | P a g e

Ribble Valley Borough Council

3 Air Quality Monitoring Data and Comparison
with Air Quality Objectives and National Compliance
3.1 Changes to the Local Authority Area
A review of the area has been undertaken to assess any changes that have occurred
over the last 12 months and the potential for these to impact either negatively or
positively on air quality.
Significant residential development has been granted planning permission in some
areas of the borough. Air quality reports have been prepared for most of these
developments with most indicating a negligible impact. Monitoring of the borough using
diffusion tubes is currently being undertaken by the Council and the results are detailed
below.
There have been no major road improvements or new roads or significant changes in
traffic flow over the last year, with no significant changes to the railway network
throughout the borough. There are no bus depots or significant ports within the
borough. The airport at BAE systems Samlesbury can no longer be used due to
significant construction.
No new industrial sources, including biomass plants have been identified which are
likely to make a significant contribution to pollutant emissions.

Page 135
14 | P a g e

Ribble Valley Borough Council

3.2 Summary of Monitoring Undertaken
3.2.1 Automatic Monitoring Sites
Ribble Valley Borough Council does not undertake any automatic (continuous)
monitoring.
3.2.2 Non-Automatic Monitoring Sites
Ribble Valley Borough Council undertook non- automatic (passive) monitoring of NO2
at 8 sites during 2020. Table A.1 in Appendix A shows the details of the sites.
Maps showing the location of the monitoring sites are provided in Appendix D. Further
details on Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) for the diffusion tubes, including
bias adjustments and any other adjustments applied (e.g. “annualisation” and/or
distance correction), are included in Appendix C.

3.3 Individual Pollutants
The air quality monitoring tubes are calibrated by DEFRA against results from
continuous monitors to derive a bias adjustement factor. This figure is applied
to the raw data from the NOx tubes. Further details on adjustments are
provided in Appendix C.
3.3.1

Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2)

Table A.2 and Figure A.1 in Appendix A compare the adjusted monitored NO2 annual
mean concentrations for the past 5 years with the air quality objective of 40μg/m3.
For diffusion tubes, the full 2020 dataset of monthly values is provided in Appendix B,
Table B.1.
3.3.2

Particulate Matter

Ribble Valley Borough Council does not monitor PM10 or PM2.5 levels. However. a
check of the Defra background maps indicates no likely exceedances of the objective
levels for either of these two pollutants.
3.3.3

Sulphur Dioxide (SO2)

Ribble Valley Borough Council does not monitor SO2 levels. A review of the national
dataset shows that the nearest monitoring stations, located some distance away, do
not show any exceedance of the SO2 objective level.

Page 136
15 | P a g e

Ribble Valley Borough Council

Appendix A: Monitoring Results
Table A.1 – Details of Non-Automatic Monitoring Sites
Site
ID

Site Name

DT1

Bolland
Prospect

DT2
DT3

Royal British
Legion 1
Royal
British
Legion 2

Site Type

X OS
Grid Ref

Y OS
Grid
Ref

Pollutants
Monitored

In
AQMA?

Distance to
Relevant
Exposure
(m) (1)

Distance to
kerb of
nearest road
(m) (2)

Tube
collocated with
a Continuous
Analyser?

Inlet
Height
(m)

Urban
Background

374803

441511

NO2

NO

0

10.5

NO

2

Roadside

374234

441291

NO2

YES

0

1.8

NO

2

Roadside

374234

441291

NO2

YES

0

1.8

NO

2

Page 137

DT4

Greenacre St

Roadside

374222

441315

NO2

YES

0

1.5

NO

2

DT5

57 Whalley
Road

Roadside

374213

441240

NO2

YES

0

1

NO

2

DT6

85 Whalley
Road

Roadside

374175

441153

NO2

NO

0

1.6

NO

2

DT7

John Wall
Court

Roadside

373911

441497

NO2

NO

10

1.8

NO

2

DT8

Feildens Arms

Roadside

364027

431179

NO2

NO

13.6

1

NO

2

Notes:
(1) 0m if the monitoring site is at a location of exposure (e.g. installed on the façade of a residential property).
(2) N/A if not applicable.

16 | P a g e

Ribble Valley Borough Council
Table A.2 – Annual Mean NO2 Monitoring Results

Site ID

Site Type

Page 138

DT1

Urban
Background

DT2

Roadside

DT3

Roadside

DT4

Roadside

DT5

Roadside

DT6

Roadside

DT7

Roadside

DT8

Roadside

Monitoring
Type

Valid Data Capture
for Monitoring
Period (%) (1)

Valid Data
Capture
2019 (%) (2)

100

Diffusion
Tube
Diffusion
Tube
Diffusion
Tube
Diffusion
Tube
Diffusion
Tube
Diffusion
Tube
Diffusion
Tube
Diffusion
Tube

NO2 Annual Mean Concentration (µg/m3) (3)
2015

2016

2017

75

11.88

12.61

10.57

11.89

9.95

100

100

33.30

39.23

34.61

38.60

33.69

100

100

36.24

41.38

37.25

38.28

34.51

100

100

24.60

28.14

25.16

27.18

23.87

100

100

33.17

35.85

33.80

33.32

32.80

100

100

25.31

28.63

26.56

92

75

15.99

15.99

15.99

100

100

18.43

18.86

16.60

26.57

31.43

15.99

15.99

17.93

20.12

2018

2019

☒ Diffusion tube data has been bias corrected
☒ Annualisation has been conducted where data capture is <75%
Notes:
Exceedances of the NO2 annual mean objective of 40µg/m 3 are shown in bold.
NO2 annual means exceeding 60µg/m 3, indicating a potential exceedance of the NO2 1-hour mean objective are shown in bold and underlined.
(1) Data capture for the monitoring period, in cases where monitoring was only carried out for part of the year.
(2) Data capture for the full calendar year (e.g. if monitoring was carried out for 6 months, the maximum data capture for the full calendar year is 50%).
(3) Means for diffusion tubes have been corrected for bias. All means have been “annualised” as per Boxes 7.9 and 7.10 in LAQM.TG16 if valid data capture for
the full calendar year is less than 75%. See Appendix C for details.

17 | P a g e

Ribble Valley Borough Council
Figure A.1 – Trends in Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations

Trends in Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations
45.00
40.00
35.00

Page 139

Annual mean NO2 Level (µg/m3)

30.00
25.00
20.00
15.00
10.00
5.00
0.00
2015

2016
DT1

2017
DT2

DT3

2018
DT4

DT5

2019
DT6

DT7

2020

DT8

18 | P a g e

Ribble Valley Borough Council

Appendix B: Full Monthly Diffusion Tube Results for 2020
Table B.1 – NO2 Monthly Diffusion Tube Results - 2020
NO2 Mean Concentrations (µg/m3)
Annual Mean
Site
ID

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Raw
Data

Bias
Adjusted
(0.83) and
Annualised
(1)

Page 140

DT1

14.6

14.0

11.1

6.0

6.0

6.6

5.8

7.4

10.5

12.0

18.0

19.3

Distance
Corrected
to
Nearest
Exposure
(2)

10.9

9.1

9.1

33.5

31.9

27.4

17.6

21.9

34.3

17.9

35.3

33.5

33.4

38.1

46.0

30.9

25.6

25.6

32.0

36.6

26.9

18.5

24.8

29.2

21.1

32.4

33.5

36.1

44.4

45.1

31.7

26.3

26.3

DT4

28.3

27.0

21.5

12.8

15.4

21.9

14.9

23.8

23.3

29.1

33.0

18.3

22.4

18.6

18.6

DT5

36.4

28.2

16.0

28.5

20.5

29.8

31.2

34.5

42.8

42.4

30.3

25.1

25.1

24.1

0.0

28.8

33.0

39.0

23.
3

DT2

DT3

DT6

DT7

DT8

32.4

20.8

31.2

29.8

26.3

15.3

13.8

22.8

15.7

19.4

19.4

20.7

19.3

14.0

10.0

11.4

13.3

12.8

13.0

17.1

17.8

24.2

24.5

16.5

13.7

13.7

22.3

21.7

16.1

9.4

9.9

12.0

12.6

13.1

13.8

18.1

21.8

20.6

15.9

13.2

13.2

19 | P a g e

Ribble Valley Borough Council
☐ Local bias adjustment factor used
☒ National bias adjustment factor used
☐ Annualisation has been conducted where data capture is <75%
☒ Where applicable, data has been distance corrected for relevant exposure

Notes:
Exceedances of the NO2 annual mean objective of 40µg/m 3 are shown in bold.
NO2 annual means exceeding 60µg/m 3, indicating a potential exceedance of the NO2 1-hour mean objective are shown in bold and underlined.
(1) See Appendix C for details on bias adjustment and annualisation.
(2) Distance corrected to nearest relevant public exposure.

Page 141
20 | P a g e

Ribble Valley Borough Council
Ribble Valley Borough Council

Appendix C: Supporting Technical Information / Air Quality Monitoring Data
QA/QC
The diffusion tubes used by Ribble Valley Borough Council were supplied by Gradko Environmental Ltd, using a 50% TEA /
Acetone solution. The DEFRA Air Quality website gives a bias adjustment figure of 0.83 for the 2020 data set.

Page 142
No co-location study has been undertaken
by Ribble Valley Borough Council, and so the national bias adjustment figured derived from the table above has been used
to adjust all results obtained by Ribble Valley Borough Council. The results of the Workplace Analysis Scheme for Proficiency
(WASP) and a field intercomparison exercise precision survey indicated a good overall level of precision with collocated
studies for the Gradko diffusion tubes.
21 | P a g e

Ribble Valley Borough Council

Appendix D: Map(s) of Monitoring Locations and
AQMAs
AQMA Boundary – Whalley Road, Clitheroe No. 1

Page 143
22 | P a g e

Ribble Valley Borough Council

DT4 374222 441315
DT2 374234 441291
DT3 374234 441291

DT5 374222 441315

DT1 374803 441511

Page 144
23 | P a g e

Ribble Valley Borough Council

DT7 373911 441497

DT6 374175 441153

Page 145
24 | P a g e

Ribble Valley Borough Council

DT8 364027 431179

Page 146
25 | P a g e

Ribble Valley Borough Council

Appendix E: Summary of Air Quality Objectives in
England
Table E.1 – Air Quality Objectives in England
Pollutant
Nitrogen Dioxide
(NO2)
Particulate Matter
(PM10)

Sulphur Dioxide
(SO2)

7 The

Air Quality Objective7
Concentration
200 µg/m3 not to be exceeded more
than 18 times a year
40 µg/m3
50 µg/m3, not to be exceeded more
than 35 times a year
40 µg/m3
350 µg/m3, not to be exceeded more
than 24 times a year
125 µg/m3, not to be exceeded more
than 3 times a year
266 µg/m3, not to be exceeded more
than 35 times a year

Measured as
1-hour mean
Annual mean
24-hour mean
Annual mean
1-hour mean
24-hour mean
15-minute mean

units are in microgrammes of pollutant per cubic metre of air (µg/m 3).

Page 147
26 | P a g e

Ribble Valley Borough Council

Appendix F: How to make a difference personally.
Air quality impacts are not generally the result of single source but are as a result of a
number of combined impacts. Small contributions to air pollution are therefore more
important than they may seem and need to be recognised if current air quality issues
are to be resolved and to generally deliver better air quality. The principle ‘look after
the pennies and the pounds will look after themselves’ comes to mind. Road traffic is
an obvious example of an impact arising from numerous sources with control in the
hands of each vehicle owner. The choice to use a wood burning/solid fuel stove to
heat your home or to have a garden bonfire is another example. The choices
individuals (you) make are therefore crucial to improve air quality. The following are
therefore some suggested actions which if adopted would significantly contribute to
improving air quality in the Ribble Valley area:-

1) Internet technology available today allows communication and transactions to
take place without the need for personal travel. Wherever possible the use of
technology can remove or reduce polluting emissions and also save you
valuable time and often money.

2) Where a journey is needed, choosing to walk or cycle means that you are not
adding to pollution and has the added benefit of keeping you fit and healthy.
Electric bikes (E bikes) provide a new possibility for many.
Some good information and suggestions can be found at the following link:
http://www.lancashire.gov.uk/roads-parking-and-travel/alternative-ways-totravel.aspx

3) Traffic queues are regularly noticeable around school pick up and drop off
times. This results in increased air pollution around these times. Where
possible avoid using a car to take your children to and from school. If feasible,
please make safe and secure cycle or walking arrangements rather than use
your car. If you do use your car, please do not leave your car engine idling
while you are waiting as this further adds to the problem and canparticularly
impact on people who live in the vicinity of schools.

Page 148
27 | P a g e

Ribble Valley Borough Council
4) If you need a car, consider leasing or purchasing a lower emission vehicle such
as an electric car. If an electric car does not currently meet your specific needs
or is not a possibility, then if you can, choose a smaller, more fuel-efficient car:
this usually will have significant emission benefits.
5) Please take the bus or train if this is an option.

In addition to reducing the pollution you create, you can also do things to reduce your
exposure to air pollution. These are a few suggestions:Get out of your car
Not only will you be reducing pollution if you don’t drive, you will reduce how much
pollution you breathe as often sitting in traffic surrounded by vehicles exhausts can
be the worst place to be.

Choose where you walk
Air pollution along main roads with buildings close to the road can be particularly high.
If possible avoid walking along main roads, choose side roads. If you can’t avoid them
walk as far away from the kerb as possible – pollution levels usually decrease quickly
the further you get away from them. Watch out for your young children also: if they are
in a pram, don’t forget that they can be even closer to a vehicle’s exhaust.

Choose where you exercise
Don’t run or cycle along busy roads if you can avoid them. Choose locations where
traffic is lower or ideally, where there is no traffic at all.
Get out of town
Not always an option, but if you can go out to places where the air is cleaner (the
Ribble Valley is full of great locations). If possible, go there by public transport, or
walk or cycle so you don’t add to the problem.

Avoid times when pollution is worst
If you can, don’t travel when traffic is busiest as this will usually be when the pollution
is at its worst. This will not be a favourite for many, but walking in the rain reduces the
pollution we breathe in.

Page 149
28 | P a g e

Ribble Valley Borough Council
Air pollution indoors?
Air pollution inside can be an issue as we often produce dust from activities such
as DIY, cleaning and also some pollution from cooking and heating our homes.
Ventilate your home and minimise obviously dusty or smoky activities. Choose to heat
your home using a ‘clean’ fuel. If you smoke, this the first thing to stop doing.

Wood burning stoves and garden bonfires

Pollution emissions from wood burning stoves are much higher than from gas or electric
heating systems and the combined impact of a number of stoves in urban areas can
lead to noticeably poorer air quality. Wood burning stoves and other solid fuel
installations also significantly affect the air quality inside your home and therefore
impacts on the health of you and your family. Garden bonfires can also similarly add
to local pollution. It is therefore very helpful and beneficial to your health if these more
polluting choices can be avoided.
Below is an indication of the relative emissions of small particulate matter [PM2.5]
from domestic heating methods:

Page 150
29 | P a g e

Ribble Valley Borough Council

Glossary of Terms

Abbreviation

Description

AQAP

Air Quality Action Plan - A detailed description of measures,
outcomes, achievement dates and implementation methods,
showing how the local authority intends to achieve air quality limit
values’

AQMA

Air Quality Management Area – An area where air pollutant
concentrations exceed / are likely to exceed the relevant air quality
objectives. AQMAs are declared for specific pollutants and
objectives

ASR

Air quality Annual Status Report

Defra

Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs

DMRB

Design Manual for Roads and Bridges – Air quality screening tool
produced by Highways England

EU

European Union

FDMS

Filter Dynamics Measurement System

LAQM

Local Air Quality Management

NO2

Nitrogen Dioxide

NOx

Nitrogen Oxides

PM10

Airborne particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter of 10µm
(micrometres or microns) or less

PM2.5

Airborne particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter of 2.5µm
or less

QA/QC

Quality Assurance and Quality Control

SO2

Sulphur Dioxide

…

…

Page 151
30 | P a g e

Ribble Valley Borough Council

References
Local Air Quality Management, Technical Guidance LAQM. TG (16), 2016, DEFRA

Local Air Quality Management, Policy Guidance (PG16), 2016, DEFRA

Ribble Valley Borough Council’s online Planning Database https://www.ribblevalley.gov.uk/planningApplication/search
Ribble Valley Annual Status Report 2018, 2019, Ribble Valley Borough Council.
Ribble Valley Annual Status Report 2018, 2018, Ribble Valley Borough Council.

Ribble Valley Annual Status Report 2017, 2017, Ribble Valley Borough Council.

Ribble Valley Annual Status Report 2016, 2016, Ribble Valley Borough Council

Ribble Valley Updating and Screening Report 2015, 2015, Ribble Valley Borough
Council.

Lancashire County Council Highways Department – traffic flows via mapzone website,
http://mapzone.lancashire.gov.uk/

Page 152
31 | P a g e

Public Document Pack

Agenda Item 13

Minutes of Dog Fouling Working Group
Meeting Date:
Present:

Monday, 26 July 2021, starting at 10.30 am
Councillor J Alcock (Chair)

Councillors: R Newmark
In attendance: Director of Community Services and Acting Head of Environmental
Health
1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies were received from Cllr. Mary Robinson and Marshal Scott.

2

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON 16 APRIL 2021
The minutes of the meeting held on 16 April 2021 were approved as a correct record.
It was noted that the Terms of Reference had been revised to reflect a change of
membership to the working group and the number of members required to be
quorate.
The revised Terms of Reference are attached to these minutes.

3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest.

4

UPDATE ON ACTIONS FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING
John Heap (Director of Community Services) noted that he had reviewed three
iterations of the litter prevention notices and would choose the most appropriate and
decide on the most suitable words.
At the meeting the working group considered:
 The use of body cameras by dog wardens and authorised officers to consider
the legal and health and safety aspects of dog wardens wearing such devices
and to examine the working practices of dog wardens wearing the cameras.
 The role of dog wardens and where their emphasis should be placed namely:
enforcement, educational or bin emptying.
 The need to increase the number of bins currently in use in the Borough, the
type and size of bins to use, the locations they should be placed, and the role
parish councils have in the provision and emptying of bins.
On the above point, the group authorised John Heap to consult with officers
and prepare a report that examined the costs (capital and revenue) and
practicalities, associated with providing a maximum of 800 public litter bins
throughout the Borough. The assumptions underpinning the report will be that
the bins are emptied twice per week, using a team of three men and three
waste collection vehicles, to supplement all existing arrangements.
The group was reminded that, to get bids for growth items into the Council’s budget,
an estimate of the costs (both revenue and capital) is needed for the start of the
budget process in October. For this to be achieved, officers will need to bring the
estimates back to this group first, for sign off.

5

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
There were no other items of business.

Page 153

6

NEXT STEPS AND ACTIONS
Matt Riding will:
 Discuss with Mair Hill (Head of Legal and Democratic Services) and with Phil
Dodd (Health and Safety Advisor) on the legal and health and safety aspects
of dog wardens wearing body cameras.
 Examine the working practices of dog wardens wearing body cameras and
report back to the working group.
John Heap will:
 Consult with officers and prepare a report that examines the costs (capital and
revenue) and practicalities, associated with providing and servicing up to 800
public litter bins throughout the Borough. The assumptions underpinning the
report will be that the bins are emptied twice per week using existing
resources, supplemented by a team of three men and three waste collection
vehicles.
 The report will be submitted to this working group in the first instance, prior to
it being submitted to the Health and Housing Committee the Community
Committee and finally to the Policy and Finance Committee.

7

DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
The date of the next meeting will be arranged once the report by the Director of
Community Services has been prepared.

The meeting closed at 12.10 pm
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, Mike
Hill, mike.hill@ribblevalley.gov.uk

Page 154

Minute Item 2
Dog Fouling Working Group
Revised Draft Terms of Reference
1.

The Working Group has been constituted by the Health and Housing Committee at its’
meeting held on the 18 March 2021 (Draft Minute 1064 refers).

2.

The purpose of the group is to review the Council’s current arrangements, specifically
as they relate to the provision of dog bins and the frequency they are emptied.

3.

Nominated Members of the group:
Councillors Alcock (chair), R Newmark and M Robinson.

4.

The group will meet as necessary.

5.

Two nominated Councillors of the working group need to be present to be quorate.

6.

The working group does not have any delegated decision-making powers.

7.

The working group will consult with the relevant Chairs of other service committees as
appropriate.

8.

The group will identify issues and explore realistic options regarding the Council’s
current arrangements, taking account the principles of best value for the Council, the
needs of the local community, local residents and Council staff.

9.

The working group will take the form of a Task and Finish group with the aim of
completing its considerations by dd month year to enable reporting to the month
Health and Housing Committee.

Page 155
3

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 156

Agenda Item 16

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 157

This page is intentionally left blank

